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1, Sgypee—  the City of Spruce Grove, in the Province of Alberta, make oath and swear

that:

1. T am the trustee o/ e d 25 such have personal knowledge of the matters
hereinafter deposed to, except where stated on information and belief, in which case I

believe the same to be true.

2 In September of 2020, I instructed my counsel to make an application compelling the
Government Defendants to produce all of their r /eleV ant materials regarding the issues of

HMTQ breaching their fiduciary duty to help ” with his lawsuit.

3. [ am advised by my counsel that despite the Court Order requiring the Government
Defendants to disclose all relevant records, that they have not disclosed all of their
relevant records in their Supplementary Affidavit of Records. Iam also advised that the
Supplementary Affidavit of Records was not prepaied by a Government employee, but
rather was prepared based on information and belief from Amanda Kostek, counsel for
HMTQ.

4. I am advised by Mr. Lee that HMTQ did not disclose in its Supplementary Affidavit of
Records a memo dated October 20, 1986 from John Mould to Dr. Herb Sohn. The memo
is attached as Exhibit "A" to my Affidavit,

5 I am advised by Mr. Lee that during questioning of Ms. Besler on April 9, 2021, Mr. Lee
referred to a transcript in which this memo was mentioned. In the afternoon Ms. Kostek
provided a copy of the memo, which was in the possession of her client. This memo
states that HMTQ had a practice to not help foster children to sue for neghgence and not
to sue foster parents, which are the two things that HMTQ did not do for- No
explanation has been provided for the failure to disclose this memo in HMTQ’s

Supplementary Affidavit of Records

0. The news article referred to in the memo has not been disclosed to me.
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10.

I am advised by Mr. Lee that the evidence from Jackie Stewart, Sharon Heron and Susan
Bercov seems to indicate that HMTQ has a large number of records from 1999 to 2004
related to the issue of whether the Government knew or ought to have known that they

had a duty to helpﬁwith his potential lawsuit.

Attached as Exhibits "B" and "C" are transcripts of court proceedings in the VB v.
HMTQ case on Sept 28, 2004 and Oct 29, 2004 in which Susan Bercov, counsel for
HMTQ. stated:

(1) that HMTQ does not know why the Public Trustee is not willing to represent the
Biood children Ex B pg 23 line 26 to pg 24 line 8.

(ii) that the Government has the power to help foster children to sue, but is unsure if
that power is with the Public Trustee or Child Welfare, (Ex C pg2 lines 2 to 17)

(ii)  "that to date a considerable amount of work is being devoted to congidering these
issues" Ex C pg 3 line 2 to 13.

Attached as Exhibit "D" are excerpts of the questioning of Jackie Stewart on April 19,
2012 in TL v. HMTQ in which jackie Stewart swears that:

(1) there were meetings in the early 2000s on the topic of the representation of foster
children in civil matters (pg 43 —49)
(11) HMTQ claimed privilege over the records from the meetings (pg 49)

Attached as Exhibit "E" are excerpts of the questioning of Sharon Heron on July 12,
2012, in 7L v. HMTQ in which Sharon Heron swears: (pgs 170 - 200)

(1) from 1999 there was a big debate going on within the government as to whether
the Public Trustee or Child Welfare ought to be helping foster children with
potential civil actions (pg 171)

(ii) the debate was amongst lawyers in the Government (pg 172).

(iii)  they were looking for a more arms length process (pg 173).

(iv)  there was a perception of a possible conflict of interest (pg 174).

(v) Jackie Stewart was involved (pg 177).

(vi)  there were documents created from these meetings (pg 189).
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16.

HMTQ's Supplemental Affidavit of Records does not identify any records from the
meetings and communications described in Exhibit’s "B", "C", "D" and "E" in the
producible list of documents or in the privileged list of documents.

12. When Jackie Stewart was Questioned in this action on July 16, 2004, she deposed that:

(Exhibit "F"):

(i) "I'm not aware of any interpretive memos or anything else other than what policy
that there is in place.” (Pg 4 line 19 and 20).

(i)  that she knew that no documents existed based on "Just from my general
knowledge working in that Ministry and interacting with people and knowing
what is being corresponded.” (Fg 16 line 13 to 15).

. The Sharon Hervn 1999 memo attached as Exhibit “G* refers to "options papers.” These

"options papers have niot been disclosed in HMTQ's Affidavit of Records.

. The Supplementary Affidavit of Records of HMTQ Schedule 2B describes an April 28,

1987 memo from R. Neii Dunae, Civil Law Section to Dr. Herb Sohn, Children's
Guardian, referencing legal advice in March 23, 1987 memorandum from Camilla Witt.

Attached as Exhibit "H" arc excerpts from the January 2003 Government Telephone
Directory listing Neil Dunne as the Executive Director Civil Law Branch. Mr. Lee
advised me and [ believe that the Directory also identifies the following lawyers who
worked for the Civil Law Branch who were involved in representing HMTQ in lawsuits
brought by foster children alleging that HMTQ breached her duty to assist the foster
children with their potential civil actions, and other individuals whose names have been
mentioned in questioning as being involved in the issue of foster children with potential
causes of action: Phil Goodman, Russ Pickford, Bill Wong, Jackie Stewart, Kelly Besler,
Lora Lea Gaboriau, Laura Alcock, Susan Rankin, Peggy Hartman, Alan Meikle QC,
Jeanette Fedorak, Rita Sumka, Susan Bercov, Neil Boyle, Kate Bridgett, David Kinloch,
Doug Lewis, Shelley MacDonald, Jeff Mayan, Bill Olthuis, Brenda Feehan, Avery
McNary, Reeva Parker, Jack Klinck QC, Roman Bombak and Suzanne McAfee.

I require the memo from Neil Dunne:

(1) to connect records and information that Mr. Dunne had in 1987 to individuals
working for HMTQ to prove what HMTQ knew or oughi to have known about
HMTQ's duty to assist @il vith his potential cause of action.
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20.

22,

(i)  to establish that HMTQ possessed records that HMTQ knew had to be identified
in their Affidavits of Records in lawsuits by foster children alleging a failure to
help them with their potential civil actions, including in,{s lawsuit,

Y

The Supplementary Affidavit of Records includes information that in 1987 the Public

Trustee had been advised that a policy decision had been made confirming that the

Children's Guardian and not the Public Trustee would be the party to consider whether to

pursue civil action for foster children. (letter Sept 19, 2012 from Shores Jardine to

Robert Lee). Attached as Exhibit "I".

.1 am advised by my counsel that in 2004, Jack Klinck testified in the Blood case that the

Assistant Deputy Minister Civil Law was aware that the Public Trustee’s position that the
Public Trustee had no duty to assist foster children with potential civil actions and that
the duty to assist foster children with potential civil actions belonged to the Director of
Child Welfare as the guardian of the foster children, was the correct interpretation of the
law (pg 60 to 71). Attached as Exhibit "J".

My counsel has advised me that HMTQ is taking the position that some of the documents
are privileged, but they have not provided any evidence substantiating that the documents
were created for the purpose of being kept confidential. Attached as Exhibit "K" are
excerpts of the testimony of Kelly Besler on April 9,2021. Ms. Besler failed to answer
questions relating to HMTQ's claim of privilege. (Pg 81 to 86). Ms. Besler later testified
that HMTQ's policies about helping foster children sue were not intended to be kept
secret from foster children. (pg 131 to 135)

Attached as Exhibit "L" are excerpts of the testimony of Jackie Stewart on April 1,

2021. Ms. Stewart testified that HMTQ did not have a policy to keep information about
helping foster children a secret from foster children. (pg 28 to 42). Ms. Stewart swore the
Supplementary Affidavit of Records, but she testified that she did not know why the 1987
records are privileged. (pgs 66 - 67) Ms. Stewart testified that she was not aware of a
policy to keep secret from foster children which arm of the government was to help them
with their potential civil actions (pg 150 -151).

. Attached as Exhibit “M" and "N" are the answers to Undertakings of Jackie Stewart and

Kelly Besler which were given in 2004 and 2006, respectively. HMTQ did not provide
answers to these undertakings until 2021. HMTQ objected to many of the questions on
the basis that they are too broad.

I am advised by Mr. Lee that he has not completed his questioning of Ms. Besler and that
he anticipates that he requires another full day to complete his questioning of HMTQ's
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24.

28,

Corporate Officer. Mr. Lee advised me that HMTQ's failure to provide full disclosure
and late disclosure, the many incidents of conflict of interest that must be examined and
the poor familiarity with important records and events are reasons why the questioning
requires two full days. Mr. Lee indicated that the questioning could take more than 1 day
depending on the preparation of Ms. Besler for the questioning,.

W'
in ‘e Statement of Claim, it is alleged that the Government Defendants knew or
they ought have known that they had a legal duty to help mvith his potential
lawsuit after Mr. Ve catastrophically assaulted W and caused ’ brain
injury. 7L [ (o)
The documents that*-needs which I believe the Government has in its possession
are records that show:

(i) everyone who received the policy information that Child Welfare was the part of
the Government that would help foster children to sue and that il wouid not be the
Public Trustee (the policy records).

(ii) where the policy records were stored, what file folder they were kept in and which
offices they were kept in.

(iii)  how the policy was communicaied to the staff after the policy was nade.

(iv)  the people who were aware of the policy.

) how the policy was reviewed from 1999 to 2004 and by whom.

(vi)  how found the policy records were located and the paper trail that lead to the
records being located and included in the TL Affidavit of Records. <>

(vii)  which individuals were aware of the existence of the records after they were
produced in the TL Affidavit of Records

(viii) whether anyone in the Government made the firm of Chomicki Baril Mah familiar
with the policy records

(ix)  how the policy records were eventually included in HMTQ's Supplementary
Affidavit of Records in Tristan's case.

I am advised by Mr. Lee that the policy records between the Public Trustee, Child
Welfare and Alberta Justice were included in the 7L Class Action about 10 years ago, but
they were not disclosed to Sl in his lawsuit until 2021,

—_—
ol

. Attached as Exhibit “0” to my Affidavit is a letter dated November 12, 2020 from

Amanda Kgstek claiming at page 5 and 6 that the policy records were not disclosed
because WM claim that the Government failed to help him with his potential civii
action because that issue was subsumed by the TL Class Action. Aftached as

Exhibit “P” js the Governinent's original Answer to Undertakings which claims that the
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policy records were not relevant because the TL Class Action subsumed the

issue. Previously attached as Exhibit “M” is the Government's Revised Answers to
Undertakings, which retracts the Government's original excuse for failing to disclose the
records.

I am advised by Mr. Garber that HMTQ has not paid the costs in the amount of $4,000.00
which were ordered to be paid by this Court by Order dated January 18, 2021. Attached
as Exhibit Q is an email sent by Mr. Garber on April 10, 2021 concerning payment of
the costs.

I am advised by Mr. Garber that HMTQ has not indicated whether HMTQ has made the
inquiries of HMTQ’s litigation manager or insurance risk manager to determine if there is
a registry or data base regarding lawsuits filed against HMTQ for failing to sue for foster
children, as required by para. 7 of the Order of this Court dated February 18, 2021.
Attached as Exhibit R is a follow up email sent by Mr. Lee to Ms. Kostek on April 13,
2021.

. Attached as Exhibit S are excerpts from the Alberta Children’s Services Annual Reports

for the years 2000-2001, 2001-2002, and 2016-2017.
I make this Affidavit in support of an application:

(a) compelling HMTQ to comply with the Court Order requiring HMTQ to file a
Supplementary Affidavit of Records that identifies all of their relevant records, by a
date to be set by this Court;

(b) denying HMTQ's claims of privilegs:

(¢) compelling HMTQ to provide full answers to the undertakings of Kelly Besler from
2006 and Jackie Stewart from 2004, by a date to set by this Court;

(d) compelling HMTQ to provide full answers to the questions that were refused or taken
under advisement on April 1, 2021 and April 9, 2021, by Jackie Stewart and Kelly
Besler respectively, by a date to be set by this Court;

(e) compelling Kelly Besler to re-attend for questioning until questioning has been
completed;

(f) Declaring the Defendant HMTQ to be in civil contempt of court for failing to obey a
court order requiring HMTQ to:

i) Pay costs in the amount of $4,000.00;

(if)  Serve a Supplementary Affidavit of Records containing all relevant and
material documents which pertain to the pleadings;

(ili)  Make inquiries including the Defendant’s litigation manager or insurance
risk manager to determine if a registry of data base has been created or



maintained regarding lawsuits filed against HMTQ for failing to sue for
foster children, or negligent investigation.

SWORN BEFORE ME on
April 30, 2021 at Edmonton, Alberta.

{Commissioner for Oaths in and for the ) A

Province of Alberta)



3
=

bis is Behibi " ""\ " gterred 1o I B
i 7l e P
) Y)

Pl es i s W

Bl .H'mm‘ @

-|\‘

n;.’:&s".‘

Slarane

T T L L
OO

.h..cl‘ o of t.n_.ns il

et

Lo Province oirlkeria

yhet

Tldpl=



o Abcia  MEMORANDUM

L

FROM

TO

SUBJECT

SOCIAL SERVICES
AND COMMUNITY HEALTH

John Mould QUR FILE REFERENCE

Children's Guardian

Edmonton Region YOUR FiLE REFERENCE

Dr. Herb Sohn pDATE October 20, 1986
Provincial

Children's Guardian TELEPHONE 422-5833

Civil Actions on Behalf of Children Under Guardianship

Based on the content of the attached September 19, 1986 article
from the Calgary Sun, I have the following comments/concerns
with regard to our current procedures vis a Vvis pursuit of
civil action on behalf of children under guardianship:

(1) In my experience, it has not been the practice of the
department to pursue ¢civil action on behalf of children
under guardianship in instances when they have been injured
through acts of omission {(neglect; negligence), or through
acts of commission (physical or cexual assault), at the
hands of substitute caretakers (foster parents; group
home staff, institutional staff); i

(2) There are no guidelines that identify the range of
circumstances which, when any one occurs in respect to
a child under guardianship, we should refer for assessment
for possible civil action;

(3) Given the respomsibility of the Children's Guardian for
children under guardianship, it seems possible that in
spome civil actions (parcticulazrly those when the child has
been injured by a substitute caretaker), the Children's
Quardian may be named as one of the respondents;

(4) Given the possibility the Children's Guardian could be
sued civilly by a child under guardianship, and given the
adage, "Justice-must not only be done but be seen to be
done.", our current procedure for identifying/assessingf
undertaking civil action on behalf of a child under
guardianship may bring into guestion the extent tO which
Children's Guardian will pursue court action in those
instances when he may be a respondent;

/ r
L
£ QOCT 231986 s
HEAD OFFICE
. hid
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ABJ023541

ABI023541



Civil Actions Cont'd -2

(5) If we should be pursuing civil action on behalf of children
under guardianship who are injured by their substitute
caregivers, 1 am concerned about the potential implications
for our alternate care resources, particularly the foster
care program.

In my estimation, all it would take would be one publicized
court action where a set of foster parents were successfully
sued by a child they had cared for, for many foster parents
to decide to withdraw their services because they feel the
cisk to them (in resprct to being sued) is too great,

I woulld be interested in your thoughts regarding the above.

Children's Guardian
Edmontdn Region

Attachment

ABJ023542
ABI023541
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1~ MS. BERCOV: I can't ﬁngwer that. No notice

2 was given to the public trugtag_gf Eﬁig ??t%??;_?ﬂﬁ-I am .
3 not prepared, sir, to answer on behalf of .the publie

4 trustee. I think they would have to answer. 1f Mr. Lee

5 had brought his application, the: position of the

6 Department of Chlldren e Services would be that this is

7 not appropriate circumstances to bring and commence this

8 action.

9 THE COURT: Sorry. Say that again.

10 MS. BERCOV: Tf an application were brought --

11 THE COURT: Yes.

12 MS. BERCOV: -- i.e., Mr. Lee had continued and

13 not abandoned his application, our position at his |

14 application would be that‘this is not an appropriate n
15 circumstance for the Court -- i
16 THE COURT; Because there are no

17 merits to the case?

18 MS. BERCCV: Because therse is no. meritq_tq the
19 case and because it's not in thelbest %gper§s§ of the _
20 chlldren for the actlon to proceed at this time for a ;
21 host of ;e§§gqs. So it isn’'t really a question or an %
22 issue, and I wanted toO be clear about that. This isn’t %
23 really a question about who is going to bring the i
24 action. It’s very much a question of whether this i
25 action should be brought at all. and then and only |
26 then, who should bring 3k,

- 27 THE COURT: sut isn’t the public




23
such that it should be brought, they would file a

Statement of Claim and they would set out in the

Statement of Claim why -- that an applicatlon wlll be
made for the appolntment -- to the Court for the
appo:.ntment of a Ne::{t Friend and why the circumstances |
are such that that should be done, and then -- ;

THE COURT: Se. you are S§ying
evgryth%ng would be okay if only Ms. Blood had .applied
for permission?

MS. BERCOV: Exactly, 51r, Which is why we did

not -- I don‘t want to prevent Ms. Blood from bringing
an application if she believes that there is a good
cause of action and there are appropriate circumstances
where it should be brought. We disagree. But if she d
believes that, Justice Brooker has said she is entitled
to bring an application to have herself or someone else
appointed. And so we did not apply to strike when Mr.
Lee indicated he would be bringing that application.
It’s only when he abandoned the application that we
said, all right, now we neea to apply to strike.

And Mr. Lee talks about no remedy. There is a
remedy. There is cleérly a remedy. Apply for the
appointment, or for Court approval or authority to bring

the action. And Mr. Lee started that and then abandoned

it. And that is her remedy.
THE COURT: Okay. -Now, why is the

public trustee not acting?. ’ . , = r
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MS.

BERCOV: When we were last before you,
you raised the question under Section 34(4) of the
Child Welfare Act, Who has the authority to commence
actions on behalf of children who are under a
permanent guardianship order? It is the position of
Her Majesty that Government has the authority under
that section to commence actions on behalf of children

that are under a permanent guardianship order. It is
—_ - ——
not clear whether that authority vests with the

Y — T, g 5 .
Director of Children's Services or with the Public

Trustee.

Further, the question of who is in the best

position to determine whether an action should be

brought and how this sheuld be determined raises

numerous difficult issues. Mr. Lee himself touches

upon some of these issues when he argues that
Govermment is in a conflict in acting.

Also, while Mr. Lee argues that children the age
of the children iﬁ this case should have the right to
retain and instruct counsel, there is an affidavit
that Mr. Lee filed in this action which says that
Mr. Lee was told directly by one of the children that
that child does not want an action to be brought now.
These are only some of the issues that need to be
considered in determining who is in the best position
£o act and how the decision should be made.

We can advise Your Lordship that Alberta is not

i
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the only jurisdiction in Canada facing these issues.
Several other provinces are congidering these issues.
I can also advise Your Lordship that to date a
con31derable amount of tlms and work is being devoted

to considering these issues. We expect that by spring

of: next year we will have completed the necessary work.

to answer the guestlon of who is in. the best position
to assess whether an actlon should be brought and, in
a very practical way, how that assessment should be
done. |

In the meantime, in this case, we understand that
the OFffice of the Public Trustee is prepared to act

and would like to address you on that matter.

THE COURT: Yes, Ms. McAfee.
*Submissions by Ms. McAfee
MS. MCAFEE: 8ir, the Publiec Trustee is

_prepared to act to- consider whether aﬁy legal actiomn

should be brought on behalf of these children, and to
address any perception of conflict, the Public Trustee
will retain independent counsel to review the
children's situations. We have approached Janice
Agrios with the law firm of Miller and Thomson, and
she has agreed to act to conduct an independent review
and to provide the Public Trustee with her advice as
to whether an action should be commenced on behalf of

these children. Children's Services has informed the

public Trustee that they will cooperate fully with
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Affidavits of Records. That's your remedy .

MR. LEE: My remedy is to request a further and better
Affidavit of Records if she gives me an answer to the
guestion. When she doesn't tell me if she's looked. If
she's looked, then why would I make the application. I need
to know if she's looked or not to determine whether I feel
that's adequate.

MR. HOLMSTROM: and those allegations have been denied in
the pleadings and that is not information that that's a
guestion she's not going to answer here and if you feel
that's something that has to be pursued you've got to bring
an application in that regard.

MR. LEE: Mr. Holmstrom, I know that you've denied
this section of the Statement of Claim.

MR. HOLMSTROM: Right.

MR. LEE: That's why I'm asking if she looked for the
documents yet. I'm assuming she didn't look for the

documents yet because you're denying that in the Statement of

Claim, that's what I want to get clarified here and if that's
the case, then I'm going to wait until that proceeding is
dealt with before I examine further on this area.

MR. HOLMSTROM: First of all Mr. Lee, there's no need to
raise your voice.

MR. LEE: I didn't feel I was.

MR. HOLMSTROM: I've spoken in a very measured tone and my
objections have been relevant and appropriate. You may

disagree with that but ycu have your remedy. She's already

EXCEL REPORTING SERVICES
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been asked the question that I said she's not going to answer
and that's the end of it. Raising your voice against me
isn't going to cause me toO change my mind.

MR. LEE: I'm not raising my voice, Mr. Holmstrom.
T'm simply asking for the grounds of the objection please.

MR. HOLMSTROM: The entire matter involving the systemic
negligence has been denied in the pleadings.

MR. LEE: I understand that.

MR. HOLMSTROM: That is not an appropriate matter involving
* What you're asking for isn't relevant in
respect of this matter and she's not going to answer the
question. It's Jjust simply too remote.

(BRIEF ADJOURNMENT) .

MR. LEE: Mr. Holmstrom, I have a copy of a decision
of Justice Claxton with relation to the allegations of
systemic negligence. Justice Claxton permits the allegations
and I understand that despite this decision by Justice
Claxton you're maintaining your objection?

MR. HOLMSTROM: and I've referred you to the decision of
Madam Justice Read which was filed judgement given March 3rd,
2004 paragraph 94 where she says and I guote "I am not aware
of a cause of action for systemic negligence.” And she
proceeds to strike out that paragraph and I am maintaining
the objection I put on the record to that guestion and this
witness will not answer the question that you put to her,

Mr. Lee.

MR. LEE: Tf we could mark as the next exhibit the

EXCEL REPORTING SERVICES
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decision of Justice Claxton.

EXHIBIT D-3: Decision of Justice Claxton
MR. LEE: Ms. Stewart, can you tell me what steps you
took to look for documents that exist within the department

of Child Welfare related to fundlng as being a contributing

factor to the injuries to, funding of the

Child Welfare system?

HOLMSTROM: Funding of the Child Welfare or funding as
it relates to e
LEE: . Funding of the Child Welfare system as it

1121

relates to N

Can you explain your gquestion. I don't understand it.

What steps did you take to determine if there are any records

that exist within Child Welfare that are relevant to the

allegation by the Plaintiff that inadequate funding of the

Child Welfare system as it relates to AR Causcd
or contributed to ” s injuries?

I'm not aware of any documents that specifically state that

“*s injuries were as a result of funding issues
related to the Child Welfare system.
My question was not whether you were aware of a certain

thing. My guestion was what steps did you take?

HOLMSTROM: You haven't answered that she took any steps
yet

LEE: T don't think she did take any steps.

HOLMSTROM: I think the proper gquestion is asking if she

did take any steps not what steps. I think you've got to

EXCEL REPQORTING SERVICES
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start with the determination first if anything was done on
that specific point that you've asked.

LEE: I prefer to ask this one in question and
when I say what steps, she can say no steps. If she took
steps then she can tell me the steps sO0 my guestion
eliminates the need to ask two gquestions.

HOLMSTROM: Well, I disagree with you. I don't think
your guestion is clear.

LEE: You don't think the question of what steps
did you take to find documents as it relates to the
allegations that 1nadequate funding caused oI contributed to
the injuries of‘ is clear?

HOLMSTROM: T think you have to ask whether she did take
any steps as opposed to what steps were taken. What steps
were taken I would suggest to you py the wording presumes
that steps were taken. T think you first have to determine
if steps were taken.

MR. LEE: Ms. Stewart, when I ask you what steps were
taken you can tell me no steps, do you understand EHat?

Yes:

So what steps did you take to determine if there are any
records that exist that relate to the Plaintiff's allegation
that inadegquate fundlng of the Child Welfare system as it

relates to“ caused or contributed to the

":'i/\ i
VLA

injuries to B ek
I didn't take any steps.

What steps did you take to determine if there are any records

2XCEL REPORTING SERVICES
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— 1 that are relevant to the allegations by the Plaintiff that

2 inadequate investigations including inadequate investigations
3 of fosggr parents caused or contributed to the injuries of

4 P

5 A I didn't take any steps to look for those documents.

6 Q What steps did you take to determine if there are any records
7 that exist related to the Plaintiff's allegation that

8 inadequate case mggagement caused or contributed to the

9 injuries to ﬂk?‘

10 A Pardon me, inadequate what?
11 0 Case management? i

\ LA /

12 A Any documents related to the case management that FEEIEE
13 received would be apparent on Tt s Child Welfare
s Ld records so those records are provided.

15 Q What steps did you take to look for documents that would be

16 relevant to the issue of standard of care in relation to the

17 case management by Child Welfare of “ s case?

18 MR. HOLMSTROM: Again Mr. Lee, that's a question that has

19 been asked and a question that has been answered.

20 MR. LEE: I didn't ask about case management.

21 MR, HOLMSTROM: You asked that question previously and the

22 answer has been begin and the records have been produced, I

23 pbelieve that was the evidence of this witness.

24 MR. LEE: I don't recall ever asking her any questions

25 about standard of care in relation to case management.

26 MR. HOLMSTROM: You related to guestions about standard of
— 27 care and you referred to the steps being taken by Child

EXCEL REPORTING SERVICES
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Welfare and I'm saying to you she has answered the question
and the records have been practiced.

LEE: Mr. Holmstrom, you don't work for Child
Welfare so it would be difficult for you to know whether the
documents have been produced or not as you did not swear the
Affidavit so I'm asking this witness whether she has produced
any documents dealing with the standaxrd of care on case
management.

HOLMSTROM: Tt's a different question and in any event,
you've asked guestions about standard of care. She's given
you the evidence here and she's indicated in her evidence
that she's produced all documents so she doesn't have to keep
answering the same guestion whether you change a word or two
or put it in a different order. She doesn't have to.

LEE: Mr. Holmstrom, I'wve conducted law less vyears
than you. You're senior to me but I've seen many times
during examinations of witnesses where they give a broad

global answer and then when you get into the details, they go

oh, yes, oh, I know that, because they didn't address their
mind to it. I would like to have this witness address her
mind to specific allegations in the Plaintiff's Statement of
Claim. Is that all right, because maybe when she says 1 got
all the records she forgot about something, is that okay?
Can I ask that.
HOLMSTROM: Given the questioning that you've done here
today, it doesn't appear that they have forgotten anything.

There are some matters that are part of undertakings under

EXCEL REPORTING SERVICES
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advisement that will be reviewed and you'll get a response.
Beyond that my objection is as stated and she's not going to
answer that question.

(DISCUSSION OFF THE RECORD) .

MR. HOLMSTROM: It's only 12 o'clock. You've taken a number
on breaks. I'm here, my client's here. I'm occupied this
afternoon. You will finish the examination, Mr. Lee.

MR. LEE: It's 12 o'clock, Mr. Holmstrom, normal
courtesy between lawyers is to take a lunch break. Normal
courtesy to the court reporter is to take a lunch break. I
have no idea why you're pointing your finger to the table in
a very demonstrative manner and now are looking at me very
sternly when it is the customary practice for lawyers during
examination to discovery to allow the court reporter to take
a lunch break.

MR. HOLMSTROM: I haven't heard that the court reporter say
she requires a lunch break. I don't require a lunch break

right now. Ms. Stewart, do you require a lunch break right

now.

A No, I don't.

MR. HOLMSTROM: We are here.

MR. LEE: I would like to have a lunch break. Am I
allowed to have a lunch break, Mr. Holmstrom?

MR. HOLMSTROM: There's been less than two hours of
discovery, Mr. Lee. 1It's only 12:00 now. I suggest you
continue so we can finish.

MR. LEE: Mr. Holmstrom, normally I take my lunch

EXCEL REPORTING SERVICES
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working for Child Welfare, did Child Welfare assist
any child under guardianship to take legal action?
1 wouldn't have that information.

Did you believe in 1999 that a major impediment to
suing for children in care is that Child Welfare
workers are employees of the Government and the
Provincial Government is 1ikely to be the major

target of such Tawsuits?

MR. BRANCH: Sorry. Objection on relevance

there. We've talked about the fact that this
Titigation does not include allegations involving
lawsuits against the Government.
OBJECTION TAKEN TO - Did you believe in 1999
that a major impediment to suing for children
in care is that Child Welfare workers are
employees of the Government and the Provincial
Government is likely to be the major target of
such Tawsuits?
MR. LEE: Did you believe in 1999 that a
major impediment to doing -- to helping children sue
was because Child Welfare workers are employees of
the Government and the Provincial Government would
1ikely be embarrassed by lawsuits brought by

children in care against foster parents?

MR. BRANCH: That's fair.

A,
Q‘

I didn't personally believe that.
MR. LEE: In 1999 was the Public Trustee

[wiZ)

s

(cre )
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assisting children under guardianship to sue? ?
No. We wished thsy were.

You wished they were?

Well, there was a debate about the role of the

Public Trustee because the estates went there.

Q. So where was this debate going on?

MR. BRANCH: I'11 just caution the witness I
think it's okay for her to say what she said to this
point, but from our review of the documents, most of

that debate occurred between lawyers, so ii's

privileged.
ORJECTION TAKEN TO - So where was this debate
going on?
8.. ¥R. LEE: Where was this debate going on?
MR. BRANCH: I just objected on the grounds of
privilege. "
Q. MR. LEE: This debate was going on betweén

lawyers for Chilc Welfare and Tawyers for the Public
Trustee; 1is that carrsect?

A, I have been =-

MR. BRANCH: : I know that to be so, so, yes,

that's our objection. Whether the witness knows it

or not --
A. I do know it.
MR. BRANCH: -~ I'm claiming privilege.

A. And I do know it.
g. WNE. LEES Okay. So there was a debate
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1 going on between -- g
2 Discussion is a hetter word. {
3 -- the Tawyers -- discussion going on between

4 Tawyers for Child Welfare and the Public Trustee --

5  MR. BRANCH: She already --

6 Q. MR, LEE: -- about who should sue for:

7 children in care?

8 MR. BRANCH: She already answered that

9 question.

10 Q. MR. LEE: Is that right? I didn't get the

11 answer .

12 MR. BRANCH: The answer is Yyes.
13 Q. MR. LEE: wWhat time period are we talking
14 about? i
15 In the late '90s. é
16 Q Do you know if there were any documents created? |
17 Were these discussions, or was there communication,

18 written communication betweéen the lawyers?
19  MR. BRANCH: That's privileged.
20 MR. LEE: The existence of documents is not
21 privileged. The content of the documents would be
22 privileged, not the existence of documents.
23  MR. BRANCH: I'm maintaining the objection.

24 You can sort it out with the Court. ;
25 OBJECTION TAKEN TO - Do you know if there were é
26 any documents created? Were these i
27 discussions, or was there communication, é
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written communication between the Tawyers?
MR. LEE: Were there any documents created
while this discussion was going on between 1awyers
for Child Welfare and lawyers for the Public

Trustee?

MR. BRANCH: We're claiming privilege.

OBJECTION TAKEN TO - Were there any documents
created while this discussion was going on
between lawvers for Child Welfare and Tawyers

for the Public Trustee?

MR. LEE: So just let me get it clear here.

Let me ask vou -- okay. So you say that you and
other people wished that the Public Trustee was
assisting children under guardianship to sue in
1999:; is that correct?
T don’t think I said that. If I did, I most
certainly didn't intend to.
Okay. My guestion was:
In 1999 was the Public Trustese assisting
children under guardianship to sue?
A. No. We wished they were.
That's probably not correct on my part. We were
looking for a different mechanism armed -- more
arm's length to manage these Tew situations that
were coming to our attention.
Why? Why were you looking for a different

mechanism? Wasn't the existing mechanism working
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well?

We believed -- I bslieved there was a -- there could

be a perception that you weren't distant enough, so

there might be better mechanisms in place. And

suing of course is only one part of any remedy and

perhaps, in my personal opinion, the last remedy.
There's lots of other things that you cou'ld

offer to help people when things didn’t go well,

1ike counseling, heiping them understand,

information.

Anything else?

Well, only a case-by-case basis, but there are

things that you can do.

Okay. Let's talk about this Jast answer you gave.

You say you believed there was -- there could be a

perception that there weren't -- that you weren't

distant enough.
You mean that the procedure of having the CEO

or the regional directors deciding whether to sue
for children in care or not was not distant enough?
1+ could have been an optics of it.

Okay. So you felt that there was a concern about
the optics about the director -- the regional
director of Child Welfare deciding whether or not to
sue a foster parent; is that right?

Could be.

What was the optic?

it it
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MR.

MR.
MR.

I helieved that some people thought that it wasn't
distant enocugh and that that may have hampered a
good decision in the best interest of the child.
Why? |

Well, I personally didn't believe it.

Why did you believe that people would think that?

BRANCH: That's speculative to the max.
LEES No, this is her answer.

BRANCH: Her belief --

LEE: This is her belief.

BRANCH: Her belief about other people's
belief.

Yas. -

BRANCH : Why other people believed it?
She was aware that other people believed it, but
why --

LEE? Okay.

BRANCH: -- other peoplie believed it is

way beyond the realm of relevance.
OBJECTION TAKEN TO - Why did you believe that
people would think that?

M. LEE Why did you believe that some
pecple didn't think it was distant enough?

. BRANCH: That's not -- that's speculative.
LEE: It's not speculative. It's her

opinion. If her opinion is speculative, then that's

open to my cross-examination.
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1 MR. BRANCH: I don't think her belief about

2 other people's beliefs is relevant to the common

3 issues.

4 MR. LEE: It certainly is, because it

5 certainly goes towards this fraud.

5 Q. So please tell me --

7 MR. BRANCH: You have my objection.

8 OBJECTION TAKEN TO - Why did you believe that
9 some people didn't think it was distant

10 enough?

11 @. MWR. LEE: What was the concern that it

12 would hamper a good decision 1in the best interests
13 of the child?

14  MR. BRANCH: You have my ==

15 Q. MB. LEE: Why would it hamper a decision in
16 the best interest of the child? |

17  MR. BRANCH: She already said that she didn't
18 believe that herself.

19 OBJECTION TAKEN TO - Why would it hamper a
20 decision in the best intersst of the child?

21 Q. MR. LEE: Okay. So Tet me understand this.
22 You believed that some people thought it wasn't

23 distant enough that they may have hampered a good
24 decision in the best interest of the child. Did you
25 discuss your belief with anyone?

26 MR, BRANCH: Her belief about other people's
27 beliefs?
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LEE: That's right.
We had -- we -- I had a general discussion about is

there a better mechanism to manage these situations.

MR. LEE: Who did you have that discussion
with?
BRANCH : And if it's lawyers, you should

just say it was with a Tawyer.

Lawyers.

BRANCH : And you can't tell -- divulge the
information itself.

it was lawyers and senior officials.

MR. LEE: Okay. Who were the senior
officials, and who were the Tawyers?

BRANCH: .. : Go ahead.

Peggy Ha;%;;ﬁlwas a lawyer; Jackie Stewart was one
of the people that we discussed it with; John
McDermott; and I can't recall who else.

MR. LEE: Okay. I just want to be clear.
You just made -- gave an answer -- we had -- we had
a general discussion about is there a better
mechanism to manzge these situations. By "these
situations,” do you mean when a child has a possible
lawsuit against & foster parent?

1t was much broader than that. It would be when a
child needed -- or may have a civil claim, so that
could be injury cof any form.

Okay. And this was in 1999 you were having this
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general discussion?

Yes.

Was it earlier than '99?

The actual discussion I believe was in "93. It
could have been '98. )

And there was a general discussion about whether
there was a better mechanism to manage children with
a possible lawsuit; is that right?

Yes.

Okay. Now, I only want to talk about the
conversations that you had with Jackie Stewart and
John McDermott. What discussions did you have with
Jackie Stewart and John McDermott about the better
mechanism to manage making decisions for children
with possible Tawsuits?

Well, I'm not going to be able to recall it in
detail because it was some time ago.

What you can remember.

But what I can remember is we discussed what some
other jurisdictions were looking at and then other
possible options within our own province. For
examplie, a Court-appointed lawyer, next friend,
Children’s Advocate, Public Trustee, a whole broad
range. Is there any better approach?

Was there considered a problem with the current
approach?

I personally didn’t think there was --

I
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@. Was there --

A. -- but there could have been.

@. -- an expressed opinion by --

MR. BRANCH: You're going to have to let the
witness finish her answers.

€. BR. LEE; Sure. Go ahead.

A. But I also recognized that there could have been a
perceived problem with the way it was donse.

Q. Okay. I just want to go into your belief about this
perceived problem about how it was done. In your
-opinion or in your belief at that time in 1888, what
perceived problem did you have with deciding ifT a
child in care wanted to sue a third party driver who
crashed into the child under guardianship?

MR. BRANCH: She didn't -=- vour guestion
embeds an assumption that she had a perceived
problem. She didn't say that.

MR. LEE: Ckay. Let me ask it again.

a. Did you perceive that there would be a problem --

sorry. Did you believe that there could be a
perception of a problem with a child in care -- let
me rephrase it. Did you perceive that there would
be a problem -- Tet me try again.

Did you beliesve that there could be a
perception of a problem with the regional director
of Child Welfare making a decision to sue a driver

who crashed into a child under guardianship?

it et i TR T A S 1
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MR. BRANCH: It's relevance. Belief of a
perception is too far removed from actual facts.

We're here to deal with facts.

MR. LEE: : Well, I'm discussing her
perception of a problem.

MR. BRANCH: No, you were discussing her
belief about a perception of a problem.

MR. LEE: So let me ask it this way --

MR. BRANCH: You're two steps removed from the
facts.

OBJECTION TAKEN TO - Did you believe that
there could be a perception of a probiem with
the regional director of Child Welfare making
a decision to sue a driver who crashed into a
child under guardianship?

Q. MR. LEE: So Tet me ask it this way: You
say that you had a -- you believed there could be a
perceived problem with the way it was done. Okay.
Let's first deal with the way it was done.

What do you mean by the way it was done?

MR. BRANCH: And that's what we've been doing
for the last four hours, so that's asked and
answered.

OBJECTION TAKEN TO - What do you mean by the
way it was dene?

Q. MR..LEE: Please tell me what you mean by

the way it was done. Are you talking about certain

iy
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MR.

types of lawsuits or all Tawsuits?

We’re talking about -- we're talking about
situations that come to a director's attention, and
then they would individually examine all the cases
and make a determination whether ih fact they needed
their lawyer basasd on the best interests of the
child and all the facts on a particular case.

Okay. So my question to you is, Why did you believe
that there could be a perception of a problem in
that? Doesn't Child Welfare make decisions for

children in their best interests every day?

. BRANCH: That's too Tar removed from the

tfacts. Belief about perceptions is too far removed
from the facts. Sorry. You can ask what she

thought, but I'm not going to let --

LEE: That is what I'm doing} She says
this is her belief.

BRANCH : Belief about a perception of
others, that's too far removed.

LEE: That's her belief. It's her

belief. How is it not related to the facts?
BRANCH: It's not relevant. She could --
I could believe that you think the sky is green, but
that doesn't make the sky green. It's too far
removed from the facts.

OBJECTION TAKEN TO - Why did you believe that

there could be a perception of a problem in
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that? Doesn't Child Welfare make decisions
for children in their best interests every
day?
MR. LEE: Did you believe that members of
the public thought that the director of Child
Welfare was in a conflict of interest?
BRANCH : Objection. Relevance.
OBJECTION TAKEN TO - Did you believe that
members of the public thought that the
director of Child Weifare was in a conflict of

interest?
MR. LEE: Did you believe that the public

and children in care would believe that Child
Welfare was not initiating lawsuits to protect the
Government?

BRANCH : Objection. Relevance, generally

and specifically in that the Tawsuit does not
include an evaluation of Government Tlawsuits against;

Governmeni.
LEE! I didn't say against Government.
I'1T1 ask again then.
BRANCH : You said to protect the
Government.
OBJECTION TAKEN TO - Did you believe that the
public and children in care would believe that i
Child Welfare was neot initiating Tawsuits to

protect the Government? %

s
!
i
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. PBR. LEE: Did you believe that the public

and children in care would believe that Child
Welfare would not initiate Tawsuits based on
appropriate criteria?

MR. BRANCH: Objection. Relevance. Nowhere

in the Cooper test does it talk about the

belief about the belief of the public being relevant :

to an assessment of the duty.
MR, LEE: I doubt if anywhere 1in Cooper do
we see the Tevel of malice that we see exhibited in

this case, so it wouldn't come up.

MR, BRANCH: I know Cooper. Cooper was a
friend of mine. There was lots of malice alleged
there too.

OBJECTION TAKEN TO - Did you believe that the
public and children in care would believe that
Child Welfare would not initiate Tawsuits

based on appropriate criteria?
8: HPR. LEE: Let's Took at this here. Let's

talk about the existence and absence of the content
of the policies of Child Welfare in 1999. So that's
what I'm -- that's the common issue I'm dealing with
now.

So in 1999, you had some policies in place
about helping children with possible Tawsuits?

MR. BRANCH: Asked and answered.
OBJECTION TAKEN TO - So 1in 1999, you had some

A

e e

i,
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policies in place about helping children with
possible Tawsuits?
MR. LEE: So did you believe that there was
some problems with the existing policies in place in
10997
I believed that it was an opportunity to see whether
there was a different and perhaps better mechanism
than we had in place. I didn't know whether there
was or wasn't. That's why we looked at what other
jurisdictions were doing and explored. At the end
of the day, there may have been nothing better than
what we were already doing:
Okay. So let's look at what you knew and what you
did and what your concerns were about the existing
policy in 1899.

So tell me, in 1999 what were the concerns that
you had, that Jackie Stewart communicated, and that
John McDermott communicated about the problems --
or, sorry, about the negative aspects about the

policies and practices that were in place in 19997

MR. BRANCH: Your assumption -- your question

embeds an assumption that there were concerns.
And that they were negative.
MR. LEE: No. You could say zero. You
could say that there were zero.
And that they were negative.
OBJECTION TAKEN TO - So tell me, in 1999 what

e A A b

iE
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were the concerns that you had, that Jackie
Stewart communicated, and that John McDermott
communicated about the problems -- or, sorry,
about the negative aspects about the policies
and practices that were in place in 1999?
MR. LEE: Well, you already told me that
you had a concern that there was perception by the
public, so I already know there was at Teast one
negative concern. So I want to hear all of them.
And I won't know all of them. But what I do recall
is we were looking at is there a different or better
mechanism? And maybe there wasn't than the way we
were approaching them, the way the organization was
approaching them.
Okay . '
T b
Go ahead.
Sc that's what we were Tooking at.
Okay.
We were exploring, as we do on many policies. We
explore options and then make a determination.
Okay. When you explore options, do you analyze?
Yes.
Okay. When you analyze, do you consider good points
and bad points --
Yes.

-- as part of your analysis?

e g TS K Y AT B e e e et
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Yes.

Okay. In this process that you went through, did
you analyze the current system that you had in place
in 1998 for helping children to sue?

We didn't finish the work when I was under -- I left
then.

I just want to know what you did. Don't tell me if
you finished. Just what did you do? Did you do
some analysis?

No.

No analysis?

It wasn't at that Tevel.

Okay. So tell me what you did then.

We were exploring options, so one of the options
could be remaining with the current practice, and we
were exploring other options.

Okay. So you told me some of these other things
that you could do --

And there could have been others.

-~ that you considered. What --

And there may have been others.

So you're deciding -- you were deciding in 1999
whether the current practice was better or worse
than these other possible practices; is that right?
Is that what you were doing?

Yes.

Okay. So let me understand how you do things. If
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you're comparing a current -- one practice to
another practice, I would understand that you would
have to analyze each practice and come up with
analysis of the benefits and cons of each practice
to put them up side by side.

Is that how you do analysis?
That’s how I do an analysis.
Okay. So you were going to analyze the difference
between the current practice and -- and I just need
to find the other opticns you gave.
And there could have been other options.
0f course there could be other options, but all I'm
doing is looking at what you considered at that
time. I'm not looking at something hypothetical.
I'm just Tooking at what you did at that time.
Mr. Lee, it was a start-up of a process.
And Tet's see. So you were saying you were looking
at Court-appointed Tawvers, next friend., Children's
Advocate, Public Trustee.
Private guardianships.
Private guardianships?
And there could be others that I don't remember.
Okay. Did you guys take notes?
I didn't.
Do you know it Jackie took notes?
I wouldn't know.

Well, you were there, weren't you?
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I don't remember.

Okay. So I'm just trying to understand how you
operated when you would have meetings then. Is it
correct that you would meet with Jackie Stewart and
John McDermott, or you talked to them on the phone,
and you would say, Some of the possible things that
we could do other than the way we're doing it now is
Court-appointed Tawyer, next friend, Children's
Advocate, Public Trustee, private guardianship.
Don't write that down. Try to memorize it.

Is that how you guys worked?

MR. BRANCH: Just before you answer .the

question, you haven't established that she met
without lawyers. She told you who was conducting
this evaluation. We know there were lawyers
involved. You peeled the Tawyers out, )

But you haven't confirmed whether they had
meetings with just people who weren't Tawyers and
discussed things that aren't privileged, so you need
to set that up.

MR. LEE; Okay. Let's just deal with what
you did before I deal with what the other people

did. Did you just memorize all of the different

options?

MR. BRANCH: IT you're getting into the

content of meetings, you have to establish that the

meeting isn't a privileged communication.
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MR. LEE: You told me that there was these

other options you considered. Did you just memorize

them, or did you write them down somewhere?

BRANCH : I'm going to object on the basis

of privilege because you refuse to clarify. the

question, so you have my objection.

LEE: Your objection 1is that maybe
Tawyers were involved?

BRANCH : To the best of my knowledge.
LEE:! You have to prove the objection.
BRANCH : : Right.

LEE: I don't have to disprove your
objection.

BRANCH : The documents I have reviewed
suggest that this is a1l -- the meetings were all
privileged.

There may have been meetings that aren't
privileged. 1 haven't reviewed this area with the
witness to know, so I'm inviting you to ask her if
there were meetings which were unprivileged.

CBJECTION TAKEN TO - Did you just memorize

them, or did you write them down somewhere?

LEE; Okay. Maybe you can help me with
this, then, Mr. Ward.

BRANCH : Branch.

LEE: Mr. Branch.

There are documents that you -- there are documents,
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it sounds 1ike -- Tet me ask you this. Let me ask
yoﬁ this, Ms. Heron: Do you know if Child Welfare
has been sued over this issue of failing to sue?

MR. BRANCH: That's not relevant to this
issue.

OBJECTION TAKEN TO - Do you know if Child
Welfare has been sued over this issue of
failing to sue?

Q. MR. LEE!: Do vou know if the Government has
failed to disclose the existence of these documents
of these meetings with Tawyers -- you, Peggy
Hautman (verbatim), Jackie Stewart, John
McDermott -- and failed to 1ist them in your Tist of
documents that are privileged?

A. I don't know that.

Q. Okay. Would you undertake to find that out?

MR. BRANCH: No.
UNDERTAKING - 6 - (REFUSED) TO ADVISE WHETHER

THE GOVERNMENT HAS FAILED TO DISCLOSE THE
EXISTENCE OF THE DOCUMENTS OF THE MEETINGS
WITH LAWYERS AND FAILED TO LIST THEM IN THE
LIST OF PRIVILEGED DOCUMENTS, AS REFERRED TO
ABOQVE.

g, MR, LEE? Okay. So you had discussions
with Peggy Hautman, Jackie Stewart, and John
McDermott; is that correct?

MR. BRANCH: You haven't established whether
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MR.

MR.

MR.

MR,

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

there are Tawyers in the room for this conversation.

LER: Peggy Hautman is a Tawyer.
MEIKLE: Hartman.

LEE: Hartman.

BRANCH : Okay. Well, then it's

privileged, so why are you asking the question?
LEE: I'm just asking whether they had
had discussions.

BRANCH : : You know the Taw on
solicitor-client privilege.

LEE: . Yes. And I know I can ask if
there were discussions. I can't ask about the
content. I can ask about everything around it. I
can ask about date, who is there. I can't ask about
the content. I know that.

BRANCH; But you already have the answer

that there were meetings.

LEE: Well, no. You're talling me that
I haven't proven that there were meetings or not, so
I'm trying to get to that. And then I'm going to
ask 1T there is documents.
You keep telling me to get to the underlying

facts. That's what I'm trying to get at.

OBJECTION TAKEN TG - So you had discussions

with Peggy Hautman, Jackie Stewart, and John

McDermott; is that correct?

MR. LEE: So were there discussions?

!
!
{
1
\
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MR.

MR.
MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

BARBER: Sorry, Mr. Lee. Can we just have
one second?

LEE! Sure.

BRANCH: Right. So your guestion is
retating to‘the subject matter of the discussion.
That subject matier is privileged.

LEE: Okay. So let's deal with it this
way .

Did you have a discussion with Peggy Hartman and
Jackie Stewart and John McDermott about better ways
to sue or better ways to help children in care sue?
BRANCH : Privileged.

OBJECTION TAKEN TO - Did you have a discussion
with Peggy Hartman and Jackie Stewart and John
McDermott about better ways to sue or better
ways to help children in care sue?

MR LEE? Okay. So there were discussions.

Were there any documents credated during the

interactions that you had with Peggy Hartman, Jackie

Stewart, and John McDermott regarding improving the

method of suing for children in care?

BRANCH : Relevance and privilege.
OBJECTION TAKEN TO - So there were
discussions. Were there any documents created
during the “nteractions that you had with
Peggy Hartman, Jackie Stewart, and John

McDermott regarding improving the method of

bbb A
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MR.

MR.

MR.

MR .
MR.

MR.

Q.

suing for children in care?
LEE: Okay. So I'm not going to go
into all my individual questions on this topic.
We'll just leave it that all my questions with
regard to anything related to these people you're

going to object to.

BRANCH : I have no idea whether your
questions are proper or improper.

LEE: Okay. So then let's go through
them all then.

Okay. So --

BRANCH: Anything involving meetings with

Tewyers I'm going to object to on the basis of
priviiege, ves.

LEE: Right. So I don't need to ask
all of my questions about the conversations at these
meetings with the lawyers?

BRANCH : With Tawyers. correct.

LEE: Okay.

Did you have any mestings or discussions with Jackie

Stewart outside the presence of a lawyer about the

issue of the process of suing -- helping children in
care sue?

Yes.

BRANCH : Just one second.

MR. LEE: Tell me everything about those

conversations?

e Y e R A T
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MR.

MR.

BEANCH: Before you answer the question,
you shouldn't divuige any information that you
obtained from Tawyers and passed on or Jackie
obtained from lawyers and passed on.

Thank you. _

BRANCH : So with that qualification, if
there is anything Teft, you can tell Mr. Lese.

The conversations were informal and very
exploratory. To my knowledge, no notes were taken.
MR. LEE: What did you discuss with Jackie?
We == initially we started by saying what are other
jurisdictions doing. _

And what were other jurisdictions doing?

B.C. == and I can't remember the details. B.C. had
an interesting option that we were -- that -- and so
she was looking into that to see how well it was
working.

What was it? Tell me about it.

But I can't remember the details. It was a separate
arm. As I recall to the best of my ability, it was
kind of like a Crimes Compensation mechanism. But,
again, it was soms time ago, and I don't recall the
details of 1t. So, you know -- and she was, I
think, canvassing other jurisdictions, or John
McDermott was as well. |

Sorry. What do you mean they were canvassing other

jurisdictions?
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A. Contacting, contacting other jurisdictions.

@. So Jackie Stewart was contacting --

A. Jackie or John, either one of them.

Q. Werse contactingldifferent jurisdictions to see what
they were doing?

A, HM-hm.

@. And did you receive -- did Jackie or John receive

responses from these other jurisdictions?

A. The only one that I remember is the one 1in British
Columbia, and we were aware of that from a 1ittle
bit before. The details of it, I can’t begin to

comment on.

MR. LEE: Off the record.
(DISCUSSION OFF THE RECORD)
@. MR. LEE: Ms. Heron, if vou could either

undertake to provide any documents that were
received from B.C. or notes from any conversations

from the B.C. people or identify in vour production
any documents that were received from B.C.

MR. BRANCH: We'll take that under advisement.

MR. BARBER: Yeah. I mean, I don't think
Ms. Héron, who has been retired for 12 years and is
here as a witness, can provide undertakings. But we
will certainly look and identify in the documents
that are produced.

MR. LEE: I wouldn't expect Ms. Heron to be

the one Tlooking for them. I know you would be the
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one having to look at them.

MR. BRANCH: - It's just a technical point.

MR. BARBER: It's not proper for her to be

Q. MR. LEE: Is it correct that in 1999, the
Public Trustee was declining to assist children in
care under PGO with possible Tawsuits?

MR. BRANCH: That's privileged from everything
I've seen.

OBJECTION TAKEN TO - Is 1t correct that in

1999, the Public Trustee was declining to f
assist children in ecare under PGO with ‘
possible Tawsuits?

@. MR. LEE: Okay. So 1et me understand

providing undertakings.
UNDERTAKING - 7 = (UNDER ADVISEMENT) TO

PROVIDE ANY DOCUMENTS THAT WERE RECEIVED FROM
B.C. OR NOTES FROM ANY CONVERSATIONS FROM THE
B.C. PEOPLE CR IDENTIFY IN THE PRODUCTION ANY
DOCUMENTS THAT WERE RECEIVED FROM B.C., AS
REFERRED TO ABOVE.

something. Obvicusly vou were the executive
director of Child Welfare in 1989. The Public

Trustee has various different officers -- sarry,

various different employees.
Did you personally have any communication with
anybody at the Public Trustee's office about whether

or not they were willing to sue for children under
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MR,

MR.

MR.

PGO?
No.
Why not?
Because other people were doing it on my behalf.
Who were these other people? The lawyers?
BRANCH: Yeah, so it's lawyers. It's
privileged.
OBJECTION TAKEN TO - Who were these other
people? The lawyers?
MR: LEE: So the lawyers were on your
behalf contactiﬁg the Public Trustee to determine if
the Public Trustee would assist children in care to

sus?

. BRANCH: Technically I know the witness

has done what she's done, but technically the

content of any legal advice sought or given is

privileged.

LEE: Okay.
OBJECTION TAKEN TO - So the Tawyers were on
your behalf contacting the Public Trustee to
determine if the Public Trustee would assist
children in care to sue?

MR. LEE: What- I want to understand is

i

this, Ms. Heron: Did you ask lawyers to contact thef

Public Trustee to find out if the Public Trustee was

willing to assist children in care under PGO to sue?

BRANCH : The content of any request of

H
f

i
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MR.

counsel 1is privileged.

LEE: Well, that's not legal advice.
BRANCH: Yeah.
LEE: So tell me how it falls within

the privilege.

BRANCH: IT someone is consulting you
about sexual abuse, you can't and shouldn't tell me,
so it's privileged.

LEE: IT somebody calls me up and says,
Can you phone the Government and find out if I can
apply and get a driver's 1icénce, I'm not giving
legal advice, and I have to disclose that
information. It wouldn't fall within
solicitor-client priviiege.

So tell me, Ms. Heron --

BRANCH : You can make that argument to the
Court.
LEE: I am going to, so lst ms set the

foundation of that argument.

BRANCH: You don't have to ask the

question again. You can ask a different guestion.
OBJECTION TAKEN TO - Did you ask lawyers to
contact the Public Trustee to find ocut if the
Public Trustee was willing to assist children
in care under PGO to sue?

MR. LEE; Let me set up the foundation of

that question. In what way -- or was there any way
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that you were asking -- asking for legal advice from
the Tawyer when you asked them to contact the Public
Trustee?

MR. BRANCH: Privileged. That question

doesn't ,make sense, and it's priv11eged.‘
OBJECTION TAKEN TO - In what way =-- or was
there any way that you were asking -- asking
for Tegal advice from the Tawyer when you
asked them to contact the Public Trustee?

@. MR. LEE: Did you use your lawyer to
contact the Public Trustee's Tawyer so everything
would be secret?

MR. BRANCH: Privileged.

MR. LEE: I guess so.

OBJECTION TAKEN TO - Did you use vour lawyer
to contact the Public Trustee's Tawyer so
everything would be secret?

a. MR. LEE: Let me ask it this wav: Do vou
know 1T the Public Trustee in the 1999 time period

was publicly taking the position that it wouldn't
sue for children in care?
A. I wouldn't know that.
@. So what discussicns did you have with the Children's
Advocate about suing for children in care?

Nene.
Q. Was that one of the options that you were looking

at?

=
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It was in the very late just beore I was Teaving,

and we were just starting the

what happened after I Teft.

rocess. [ don't know

And who was 1involved in that process then?

While I was still working?

Yeah. Jackie Stawart?.

My discussions were primarily with Jackie Stewart,
and there weren't a Tot of them by the way. It was

just very preliminary. And John

Mcbermott.

And, sorry, John lMcDermott was |[Jackie Stewart's

boss, did you sav?

Yes.

Okay. And he was between you gnd Jackie Stewart in

the chain of command?

Yes.

And their branch was something jgbout post-adoption

guardianship and Titigation support, correct?

Well, John was my assistant.

And that was the departmént you| were in charge of?

Well, that was a piece of what [

was in charge of.

A piece?

Yeah.

You weren't involved because you told me there was
nothing central about suing for|kids -- suing for
kids?

That's correet.
Right. Okay. So Jackie Stewart
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records exist with regard to the contents of paragraph 14 of
the amended amended Statement of Defence?

As I read paragraph number 14, it talks about policy manual
and as I indicated already 1've provided the policy manuals
so I'm not sure what you're asking.

Did you ask anybody if there are any documents that exist
that interpret the policy manual?

Yes.

Who did you talk to?

T've talked to Darrel Burch in the past.

Yes?

Through just general discussions I also am also aware of
documents or let me Jo pack and rephrase that. In terms of
who I've talked to sorry can you restate the guestion.

All I'm trying to find out is generally what steps did you
take to obtain documents that might be relevant to the issues
in paragraph 14,

Well as I understand it, there is I've obviously provided the
policy manual. T'm not aware of any interpretive memos OF
anything else other than what policy that there is in place.
Who did you talk to to determine that there are no
interpretive documents?

Well as I indicated I've talked to Darrel Burch about this in
the past. I've talked to Susan Rankin about Lhis.

Who is Susan Rankin?

She's our director of legal services.

Yes?

EXCEL REPORTING SERVICES
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outside the scope of this particular lawsuit.
LEE: That's fine. We'll deal with Justice
Macklin on that for his interpretation.
MR. LEE: What steps did you take to determine if
there were any documents that existed relevant to the issue
that Child Welfare and Iris Evans and Paula Tyler and Bill
Meade and yourself knew or ought te have known that Children
Services has a duty to commence civil actions and
compensation proceedings on behalf of “’P
I didn't take any steps because I don't believe there are any
documents that exist.
If you took no steps how do you know if any documents exist?
Just from my general knowledge working in that ministry and
interacting with people and knowing what is being
corresponded.
Well Ms. Stewart, you know that several children have made
requests for legal servicss or payments of legal fees when

they believe they have a potential lawsuit. Therefore is it

not correct that there would be some documents created and
memos written in responding to these children's requests that
would help to interpret or explain what the Child Welfare
policy is for assisting children in care who have a potential
lawsuit?

As you've already asked me, I'm not aware of any interpretive
memos.

I didn't just ask about interpretive memos. Clearly if a

child has asked for legal assistance in pursuing a civil

EXCEL REPORTING SERVICES
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CHILDREN'S SERVICES Mem-orandu‘m

From: Sharon Heron OUR FILE REFERENGCE:
Executive Director ,

Child Welfare YOUR FILE REFERENCE:

‘ To: CEOs : DATE: QOctober 7, 1999
Child and Famlly Services Authorites
TELEPHONE:
FAX: 427-3297
suBJEcT: Clvil Action Commenced on Bzhalf of a Child Under Guardianship

For those CEOs who have been involved in an orientation session on the role of
Director of Child Welfare, you will recall the discussions on the possible need fo
Initiate civil litigation In your capacily -as a guardian against the Department.
Since this Is very contentious, we had asked Justice to explore options which
are attached for your benefit. Another option to a next friend is to use the joint
guardianship provision of the CWA with the }oint guardian providing direction on

the legal matter.

I'm not sure what instructions you have provided to your staff in terms of your
involvement in these fypes of decisions. Because they are sensitive sltuations
and don't. (or shouldn’t) happen. that often, you may want to.be involved In the
decision making process. In that way you have a handle on the volume of
cases, can watch for frivolous actions and can also take Into account other
strategies to achieve what is required rather than a next frlend appointment.

For your information.

-

Sl e e

Sharon Heron

s
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Accountability and
Program Support Division

10th fi Sterling Place

9940 - 106 Sirest
Edmonton T5K 2N2
itain Mumber {780} 4276428
Fax (780) 422-9045
Assistant Deputy Minister
Gapdman, Phil (T80) 427-8428
Fax (780) 422-2045
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Anselmo, Suzanne (780) 422-47B1
Fickford, Russ (780) 415-6285
Fax (780) 422-9045
Administrative Assistant
Ulmer, Shiriey (780) 427-2886
Fax (780} 422-9045
. Administrative Suppor
- Tremblay, Ann (780) 422-3536
3 Williams, Heather (780) 427-8804

Fax (780} 422-9045

- Accountability Management

10th 11 Sterling Place

9940 - 106 Stresi
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Wain Mumbar (T80) 4224441
Fax (780) 422-9202
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Wang, Bili (780) 422-3540

Fax (780) 422-9202
Administrative Assistant

Sione, Ragquel (780} 427-6900
Fax (780) 422-9202

Administrative Support

Fitzgerald, Cathy (780) 422-5661

Fax (780) 422-9202
Litigation and Guardianship Services
10th 11 Sterling Place

9840 - 108 Strest

Edmonton TSI 2N2

Manager

Stewart, Jackis {780) 422-5640
Fax (780) 422-9202

Consultant

Bester, Kelly {780) 422-3587
Fax (780) 422-8202

Provincial Standards and Quality
ASSUrancs

10th f! Stering Place

2240 - 108 Strest

Edmenton TSI 2N2

Main Number (780) 4224441
Fax {780) 422-9202

Manager

Gaboriau, Lorz Lea (780) 427-2968
Fax (780) 422-9202

Ssnior Consultant

Alcock, Laura (780) 427-8385

Jordan-Mills, Ann {780) 427-3531
Fax (780) 422-8202

Consultant

Burion, Cheryl {780) 415-8314

Casault, Arden (780) 427-1311

Clement, Cathy {TBO) 427-7700

Mark, Michelle (780) 427-7834

Pearse, Geri (780) 422-4441

Wiebe, Kirsten (780) 422-5913
Fawx (T80) 422-9202

Quality Assurancs

10th fi Sterling Place

9940 - 108 Strest

Edmonton TSK 2N2

Main Number {780} 422-4441
Fax (780) 422-9202

Manager

Moonay, Maureen (780) 422-5874
Fax (T80) 422-9202

Senior Consultant

Wesllake, Don (T80) 427-76857

Fax (780) 422-9202

Community Support
10th i Sterling Place

9940 - 106 Strest

Edmonton T5K 2NZ

Kain Number {780} 415-8150
Fax (780) 415-5841

Director

Moorhouse, Tim {(780) 422-3305
Fax (780} 415-5841

Assistant to the Director

Jina, Nashiban {780) 415-8150

Fax (780) 415-5841

Prevention and Community Support
Upit

10th fl Sterling Place

9940 - 106 Strest

Edmonton T5K 2Nz

iain Number (780) 415-8151
Fax (780) 415-5841

Senior Manager

Fricke, Sheryl {780) 415-2221

Fax (780} 415-56841
Program and Finar:cial Review Officer
Facundo, Veronica (780) 427-2804
Fax (780) 415-5841
Program Review Officer

Trachimowich, Debbie (780} 427-2803
Fax (780} 415-5841

Administrative Support

Chameczuk, Irene (780} 422-5765

Fax (780} 415-5841
Prevention of Family Viclence Unit

Bth fl Sterling Place

9940 - 106 Streat

Edmonton TSK 2V1

Main Number {780) 422-52186
Fax (780) 427-2039

ldanager

Holliday, Jane (780) 427-7599

Fax (780) 427-2039
Business Manager

Harapnuik, Heather (780) 422-3599

Eax (780} 4272030
Consultant, Spousal Vielence

Ceams, Frances (780) 422-8422

Fax (780) 427-2038
Consultant, Elder Abusa
Hill, Wayne (780} 427-6992
Fax (780) 427-2038
Consultant, Child Abuse
Pavtic, Janet (780) 427-7584
Fax (780) 427-2039

Consultant / Coordinater, New |dantities Program

Frisby, Geoff (780) 422-8518
Fax (780} 427-2035

Administrative Support

Trenchie, Sylvia (780} 422-3664

Zerr, Marion {780) 422-8517

Fax (780) 427-2038
First Mations Liaison Unit Morth
North West Unit

PO Box 328, 205 - 1 Strest E
McLennan TOH 2L0
Wain Mumber {T80) 324-3200

Fax (780) 324-3252

S50 Empiovea Listings for e-mail addrsssas

fanager
Auger, Bert {780) 538-5120
Fax (780) 538-5646
{3rd fi Provincial Bldg
10320 - 99 Sirest

Grande Prairie T8S 6J4)
Child Walfare Consultant

Lepard, Ter {780) 324-3208

Tomkins, Lois {780) 324-3228
Fax (780) 324-3252

Administrative Assistant

Gagne, Avis (780} 324-3267
Fax (740} 324-3252

Administrative Support

Sliger, Selena (780} 324-3244
Fax (FBO) 324-3252

Morth East Unit

PO Box 1410, Lakeview Bldg

15 Nipewan Road

Lac La Biche TOA 2C0

Main Numbsay (780) 623-5109
Fax (780) 623-5356

Program Specialist

Anderson, Bruce {T80) 623-5108
Fax (780) 623-5355

First Nations Program Specialist

Auger, Janet {780} 623-5328

Fax (780) 623-2165

Administrative Support

Cardinal, Florence (780} 623-5109
Fax (780) 623-5355

Edmeonton / Central Liaison Unit

10th 1l Sterling Place

9940 - 106 Street

Edmonton T5K 2N2

Manager

Shaughnessy, Fred (780) 422-5653
Fax (780) 415-5841

Administrative Assistant

Serediak, Joyce (780} 422-5695
Fax (780) 415-5841

Calgary / South Liaison Unit

11th fl Century Park Place

855 - B Avenue SW

Calgary T2P 3P1

Main Number (403) 297-5965
Fax (403) 207-5988

Wanager, Calgary / South

McMaster, Lavemna {403) 2974431

Fax (400) 287-0986
Administrative Suppost
EagleChild, Tina (403) 207-5965
Fax {403) 207-5088
Regional Speclalist
Crow, Catharine {403) 297-2145
Fax (403) 297-3427

{9th l Century Park Place
855 - B Avenue SW
Calgary T2P 3P1}

Toleman, Patti {403) 207-2165
Fax (403) 287-3427
(9th fi Century Park Place
855 - B Avenue SW
Calgary T2P 3P1)
Program Support
6th fl Sterling Place

8940 - 106 Street
Edmeonton TSK 22

Main Number {780) 422-5187
Fax (780) 427-3297

Direcior

McDermott, John {780y 415-2944
Fax (T80) 427-3297

Administrative Assistant

Haig, Colleen (780) 422-3358
Fax (780} 427-3257




HManager, Fina
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(780) 422-9197
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Fax (780) 422-0562

Administrative Assistant to the Dirsclor
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Hurnan Resource Management

Services

" 11th fi Stariing Place
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. Mzin Number

._: Director
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(780) 422-5658
Fax (780) 422-0562
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Fax (780) 422-0562

' wianager, Employee Relations / Health and Safety

Vacant,

{780) 427-8740
Faux (780) 422-0562

Manager, Biratagic HR Planning and Support

Systoms
Stizer, Shelley

(780) 422-3368
Fax (780) 422-0562

Hurman Resourcs Policy Speciaiist

Milten, ene

(780) 422-7961
Fax (780} 422-0562

Human Rescurce Strategy Specialist

Deane, Batty

Administrative Assistant
Laird, Laurel

Adminisiraiive Bupport
Galvin, Joyca

Employes Development

11th fi Starling Place
39840 - 106 Strast
Edmonton T5K 2M2
Hiain Mumber

Manager
Anderson, Gina

(780} 415-8989
Fax (780) 422-0562

(780) 422-5638
Fax (780) 422-0562

{780) 415-1850
Fax {780) 422-0562

(7BO) 427-5949
Fax (780) 422-0562

(780) 422-2182
Fax (780) 422-0562

Business Manager / Administrative Assistant

Yacant,

Course Administrator
Chamaschuk, Susan

(780) 422-2185
Fax (780) 422-0662

(780 427-5852
Fax (780) 422-0562

Resource Coordinator [ Room Beokings

MeDonald, Judy

(780} 427-4098
Fax (780) 422-0552

Child Welfare Tralnee /| Administrative Support

Gagne, Randy

(780) 422-2183
Fax (780) 422-0562

Pregram Development Consultant

Wilson, Trudy

Trzinlng Resources Consuitant

Gulli, Maria
Rinella, Josiz

(780) 422-8088
Fax (780} 422-0562

(780} 422-2181
(780) 422-8333
Fax (780) 422-0562

Provineial Chitd Welfare Traines Coordinater

King, Lyan

(780) 427-5950
Fax (780) 422-0562

Information Management and

Analysis

14ith fl Sterling Place
9840 - 106 Strast
Edmoniton T5K 2N2
Dirsctor

Phillips, Ken

information Analys?
Graig, Merrilyn

Administrative Support
Campbell, Janica

(780) 422-5180
Fax (780) 422-0562

(780} 422-3524
Fax (780) 422-0562

(780) 415-9297
Fax (780} 422-0562

information Strategies

11th A Sterling Place
9940 - 108 Street
Edmonton T5K 2MZ

First Nations / Metis Relations

5ih l Sterling Place

G240 - 106 St

Edmonton TSK 2N2

Main Number {780) 4154505
Fax (780) 422-5415

Agiing Direcior

Walligan, Chris {780) 427-7212
Fax (780) 422-5415

Administrative Assistant to the Diractor

Broolks, Carol (780) 4154507
Fax (780) 422-5415

Sonior Policy Adviser

Hamelin, Josy (780} 422-5432

Lee, Myma (780) 415-8916
Fax (780) 422-5415

Research Gfflcer

Sobie, Lorna (780) 415-8914

Fax (780) 422-5415
Governance Support

Dirsctor

Brooke, Alick (780) 427-8472
Fax (780) 422-0562

Sarvice Manager

McGowan, Roy (¥80) 415-9701
Fax (780) 422-0562

Sscurity Consuliant

Chaung, Andy {780) 415-2568
Fax (780) 422-0562

Administrative Assistant

Doucstte, Jocelyn (780} 415-5843
Fax (780} 422-0562

Administrative Support

Sawka, Susan {780} 422-3532
Fax {780) 422-0562

Legal Services
12ih fl Sterling Placa
9940 - 106 Strest
Edmonton T5K 2NZ

Main Mumber {780) 427-7267
Fax (780) 422-0812

Director

Rankin, Susan (780) 427-7207
Fax (780) 422-0912

Legal Policy Analyst

icEirath, Deboran {780) 427-8689

Kuehn, Tanya (780) 422-0405
Fax (780) 422-0812

Legislative Planner

Alonee, MNela (700} 4277202
Fax (780) 422-0812

Administrative Assistant

MacDonald, Diane (780) 427-0797
Fax (780) 422-0912

Partnership and Innovation

Division

5th fi Sterling Place

9840 - 106 St

Edmonton T5K 2N2

Main Mumber (780) 422-0305
Fayx (780) 422-5415

Assistant Deputy Minister

Reynolds, Nancy (780) 415-1548
Fax (780) 422-5415

Exscutive Secretary

Woywitka, Karen (780) 427-6700
Fax (780) 422-5415

Administrative Assistant

Hlingwarth, Carol {780} 415-0720
Fax (780) 422-5415

Administrative Suppeort

Day, Allison {780} 427-7300

Redriguez, Katie {T80; 415-2561
Fax {780} 422-5415

Sea Employes Listings for e-mail addresses

5tn fi Sterling Place

9940 - 106 St

Edmonton TOK 2N2

Soclal Gars Facilities Review {780) 427-3010

Committes Complaint Line

Maln Number {780) 422-5679
Fax (780) 422-5036

Director

Graham, Mary Jane {780) 422-5673
Fax (780) 422-5038

Assistant to the Director
Moletla, Sylvia

Senior Consuitant
Shugg, Alan

Policy Analyst
Baker, Baverly

Research Officer
Bezzanno, Kerry

Adminlstrative Support
Anderson, Laurie
Savoie, Angela

(780) 415-0817
Fax (780) 422-5038

(780) 427-1328
Fax (780) 422-5038

(780) 427-7720
Fax {780) 422-5036

{780} 415-2574
Fax (780) 422-5036

(780) 415-6134
(780} 422-9562
Fax (780) 422-5036

Intergovernmental Initiatives
and Policy Research

Sth fi Sterling Place
9940 - 106 St
Edmonton TS5 2N2

Main Number

Director
Thompson, Sherry

(780) 427-3446
Fax (780) 415-0851

(780} 427-7T748
Fax (780) 415-0651

Administrative Aseistant to the Dirsctor

Lonsbury, Myra

(780) 422-0420
Fax (780) 415-0651

intargovernmental Youth Spacialist

Lacroix, Suzanne

Manager, Evaluation Specialist

Sobkovich, Dala

Manager, Policy Research
Harewood, Sharon

Ssnler Policy Coordinator
Baier Law, Perdila

Senior Research Coordinator

Sheppard, Craig

(780) 422-5437
Fax (780) 415-0651

(780) 415-4503
Fax (780} 415-0651

{780) 4154801
Fax (T80) 415-0651

(780) 422-4408
Fax (780) 415-0651

(780) 427-3118
Fax (780) 415-0651
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'. TA;nslIate Counsel (Calgary)

andard Life Blda

$. o Avenue SW
© galgary T2P OM2
Appailate Gounsel
Hawkas, Joshua
Tolppanen, Eric
© Temijanovic, Goran

(403) 287-8005
(403) 287-6005
{403) 297-6008
Fax (403) 267-3453

§pecial Prosecutions

{Edmonton)

5th fl John E Brownlee Bldg

10365 - 57 Strest
Edmonton T5J 3W7
Diractor

Lepp, Gragory

Assistant Diractor
Pinckney, Witliam

Prosecutor
Brown, Shefla
Yereniuk, Orest

(780) 422-0840
Fax (780) 422-1217

(780) 422-0640
Fax (780) 422-1217

{780) 422-0640
(780) 422-0640
Fax (780) 422-1217

Environmental Prosecutlons Coordinator

McRaory, Susan

(ifice Manager
Fithen, Wendy

(780) 422-9727
Faux (T80} 427-7958

{t1ih fl Oxbridge Place

9820 - 106 Street
Edmonton TSK 2J6)

{780) 422-0640
Fax (780) 422-1217

Special Prosecutions {Calgary)

7 “Mandard Life Bldg

L + Avenue SW
Cagary T2P OMS
Prosecuter
Beattie, Tudor Q.C.
McClellan, Jane
Papadatou, Photini

Eavironmental Prosecutor

Jenkins, Lynda

Organized Crime Coordinator

Brown, Anne

(403) 297-8477
{403) 257-8477

(403} 207-8477
Fax (403) 287-3453

(403) 287-8477
Fax (403) 297-3453

(403) 297-8477
Fax (403} 297-3453

Human Resource Services

Ind fl Bowker Bldg
£833 - 102 Street
Edmonion T5K 2E8
Information

Exacutive Diractor
Pamras, Shiriey

Administrative Assistant

Sterfing, Phyllis

(780) 427-4978
Fax (780) 422-1330

(780) 427-9817
Fax (780) 422-963¢

(780) 427-3348
Fax (780) 422-9539

Sirategle Human Resource Manager

Detahunt, Kathrn

Welham, Barnadatte

(780} 427-1176

Fax {780) 422-1330
{1st fl Bowker Bidg
2833 - 109 Streel
Edmonton TSK 2E8)
(780) 427-2801

Fax {780) 422-1330
{1st 1l Bowker Bldg
8833 - 100 Streal
Edmonton T5K 2E8)

Administrative Assistant to Mansgers and EFLP
Cocrdinator
Paterson, Claire {780} 427-0320
Fag (T00) 4221330
{1st I Bowker Bldg
9833 - 102 Street
Edmonion TSK 2E8)
Human Resource Consultant
Back, Cheryl (780) 427-1130
Fay (780) 422-1330
(1st i Bowker Bldg
9833 - 1049 Street
Edmeonton TSK 2E8)
(780) 427-1153
Fax (780) 422-1330
(4st fl Bowker Blda
8833 - 109 Street
Edmonton TSI 2E8)
Developmental Human Resource Consultant
Serebrin-Janmohamed, Inessa (780) 427-0414
Fax (780) 422-1330
{15t fl Bowker Bldg
4833 - 109 Street
Edmenton TSK 2ER)

Getschel, Sylviz

Human Resource Assistant
Francis, Anna (780) 427-0427
Fax (780) 422-1330
(10931 - 120 Street

Edmonion TSH 3P8)

WMcGill, Pat (TBOY 427-1175
Fax {780) 422-1330
(1st fl Bowker Bldg
9833 - 108 Street
Eogmonton TSK 2E8)
Staff College

1568 Hector Road
Edmonion TER 2H2
Director
Nicholson, Pater (780) 422-6598 [222]
Fax (780) 422-2854
#anager, Public Security Training and Staff
Development Consultant
Robinson, Rick {780 422-6598 [225]
Fax (780) 422-2854
Office Manager
Christman, Cindy (780} 422-6598 [230]
Fax (780) 422-2854
Accommodation Reservations and Finance
Administration
Law, Roger (780) 422-6598 [233]
Fax (780) 422-2854
Project Manager, Professional Development
Program

MecLean, Grant {780) 422-6598 [227)
Fax (780) 422-2854

Training Manager

Jackson, Tim (780) 422-6588 {237]
Fax (780) 422-2854

Administrative Assistant
Koushik, Kays (T80) 422-6598 [243)
Fax (780) 422-2854
Staff Development Consuitant
Mglo, Ana (780) 422-6598 [226]
Fax (780) 422-2854
Aboriginal Cultural Awareness Training Consuliant
Fisher, Lenda {780} 422-6598 [224]
Fax (780) 422-2854
Audio-Visual Technician
Tokaryk, David {780) 422-8598 {229]
Fax (T80} 422-2854

Legal Services Division

2nd fi Bowker Bidg
8R33 - 108 Strest
Edmeonton T5K 2E8

Information (780} 422-0500

Zee Employes Listings for e-mail addresses

Assistant Deputy Minister

Hartman, Pegay Q.C. (780) 427-0912
Fax (780) 422-9639

Administrative Assistant

Gregg, Norma (780) 427-0492
Fax {780) 422-9639

Civil Law Branch

4th fl Bowker Bldg

9833 - 109 Sireet

Edmonton TSK 2E8

Executive Director

Dunne, R. Neit @Q.C. (780) 422-8787
Fax (780) 425-0307

General Counsel

Meikle, G. Alan Q.C. (780) 422-9479

Fax (780) 427-1230
(8th 1l Peace Hills Trust
10611 - 108 Streat
Edmonton T5J 358)

Co-Director, General Legal Services
Fedorak, Jeangtie (780} 415-1870
Fax (780) 425-0310
{5th 1l Bowker Bldg
9833 - 109 Street
Edmonton T5K 2EB)
(780) 415-1870
Fax (780} 425-0310
{5th 1l Bowker Bldg
9833 - 109 Sirest
Edmonion T5K 2EB)

Director, Parinered Legal Services
Bodnarek, Ray

Sumka, Rita

(780) 422-9111

Fax (780} 425-0310

(5th fi Bowker Bldg

9833 - 109 Strest

Edmontan T5K 2E8)
Director, Qperations

Caron, Ken (780) 422-8855

Fax (780) 425-0307
Civil Law Branch Solicitors - Calgary
1680 Standard Life Bldg

532 - 5 Avenue SW
Calgary T2P DMS

Information (403) 287-3360
Fax (403) 662-3824
Solicitor
Burgess, Jo-Ann (403) 297-3778
Carlson, Tanms (403) 2974433
Ford, Chris (403) 297-3360
Graham, Charlene {403) 287-4428
McCurdy, Mancy (403) 297-3790
Mugent, Christing (403) 287-3776
Fax (403) 662-3824
Civil Law Branch Solicitors - Edmonton

Bowker Building
th fl Bowker Bldg
8833 - 109 Sireet
Edmonion T5K ZE8
Main Number (780) 422-0500
Fax (780) 425-0307
Soliciter
Booth, John {780) 427-1064
Fax (780) 425-0307
{4th fl Bowker Bidg
9833 - 109 Street
Edmonton T5SK 2E8)

Brook, Mary-Kay (780) 422-7720
Chiswell, David (780) 422-8888
Fedorak, Jeanelte (780) 415-1870
Franklin, Stan (780) 422-9114
Freund, Inge (780} 422-0500
Fung, Jason (780) 422-9107

Grasne, Mark
Head, Jennifer
Hitesman, David
Huberi, Kremar

(780) 427-1377
(780) 422-9180
(780} 422-9181
(780) 422-9291

2Ye
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Kunicld, Walter
Mekenna, Jerry

Poon, Marieen

Rout, James, Q.C
Skane, David
Smart, Cameron
Stewardson, Lonnie
Sumka, Rita
Svitich, Donald
Thagard, Peter
Thompson, Kara
Workman, Paul

Feace Hills Trust

9th fl Peace Hiils Trust
10011 - 109 Strest

{780) 422-9324
(780} 422-3418

Fay (780) 425-0310
{780) 427-2373
Fax (T80} 425-0307
(4th fi Bowker Bidg
9532 - 109 Strest
Edmonton TSK 2E8)
(780) 422-8636
(780) 422-9175
(780) 415-1105
(780) 422-9320
(780) 415-1870
(780} 422.9647
(780) 422-8760
(780) 422-5290
{780) 422-3088

Fax (780) 425-031C

Sprague, Grant

Stepaniuk, Dasdn

(403) 340-7717

Fax (403) 340-5022
{304 Provincial Bldg
4820 - 51 Sireet
Red Deer T4N 8KB)
{780) 427-6121

S————
(403) 2073388 |
{403) 297-3350
{403) 297-3380

Limpert, Bonnie
Micholson. Jonathan
Toltrup, Karen

Fax (403) 297-6381
Constitutional and Aboriginal
Law
4t i Bowker Bldg

9833 - 109 Strest

Edmonton TS ZES
information
Director

(780) 422-0500

Edmonton T5J 358

Information (780) 427-1295

Veals, Heather (T80) 415-4535

Williamson, Michelie (780) 427-0898
Fax (TBO) 427-4343

Civil Law Branch - Seconded Soliciiors

{Health and Weliness)

18th fi Telus Plaza North

Towsr

10025 Jasper Avanue

Edmonton T5J 2N3

{nfarmation (780) 427-6096

Solicitor (Health and Wellness)

Steed, NolanQ C (7E0Y 422-8553
Fax (780} 425-0307
Team Leader, Constitutional Law
hMaybank, Bab {780} 422-9336
Fax {TBD) 425-0307
General Counsel, Aboriginal Law
Cartier, Susan (7RO} 422-BB77
Fax (780} 425-0307

Solicitor

Solicitor

Bercov, Susan
Boyle, Meil

Bridgett, Kate

Epp, Glenn

Farfon, Lisa

Holmes, Chris
Hurburt, Tim
Kinloch, David
Koshman, Karen
Lewis, Doug
tacDonald, Shelley
Mayan, Jaff
tizDonough, Sean
MeGuire, Deboran
Mernnweather, Lorne
Olver, Jean

Qithuis, Bill

Stengel, Jennifer
Thomson-Baker, Bonnie

Fax (780} 427-1230

(780) 422-9200
(780) 427-2543
(780) 422-7560
(780) 427-1355
(780) 427-0074
(780) 422-7144
(780) 422-3182
(780} 422-9252
(780} 427-1334
(780) 422-9328
(750) 415-2983
(780) 415-2880
(780) 427-1257
(780) 427-1243
(780) 422-9501
(780) 422-9388
(780) 422-9587
(780} 415-1223
(780) 422-7358

Whiltaker, Licnet

Gray, Holly (780} 415-6226
Juselius, Jacqusline (780) 427-8015
MacFarlane, Edie (780) 422-2917
Meatby, Joan {780} 415.0232
Samoil, Howard (780) 415-0236
Schiofter, Herb {780) 415-0230

Fax (780) 422-2512

Civil Law Branch - Seconded Solicitors
(Municipal Affairs / Government
Services)

18th i Commerce Place

10155 - 102 Streal
Edmonton T5J 404

Information (780) 427-8045
Solicitor (Municipal Affairs /| Government Services)
Abele, Nikki (780) 427-8045
Gibbons, Lynetie (780} 422-8668
Harasymiw, Eugene (780) 422-8781
Horst, Christine (780} 415-9614
Masen, Barb (780) 415-0447
tatthews, Keith (780) 422-8757
Nugent, Bill {780) 422-8765
Talaga, Mark (780} 422-8680
Fax (7B0) 427-0956
Civil Law Branch - Family Law -
Edmeonton
5th fi John E Brownles Bldg

Enns, Chrisline
MNormey, Roberi
Parkar, MNick
Rutwind, Stan
Stesle, Randy
Stewart. Tanya
Unsworth, Margarst
Wiltshire, Roderick

Research Coordinator

Graham, Mark

{780 £22-2703
{780} 422-6532
(780} 527-T885
(780} 427-1242
(780} 422-6618
(780} 4279135
(780) 427-0072
{780) 422-7148

Fax (T80) 425-0307

{780} 422-9174

Fax (780} 425-0307

Legal Research and Analysis

4th i Bowker Bldg
9833 - 109 Streat
Edmeonton T5K 2E&

Information
Diractor
Dalton, Clark Q.C

Salicitor
Dafoa. Sarah
hMoizan, Donna

(7801 422-0500

{780) 422-85BY

Fax (780) 425-0307

(780) 415-5688
{760) 422-9502

(780) 427-06841
Fax (7807 427-1230

Civil Law Branch - Seconded Solicitors

{Energy)

11th fl Pelroleum Plaza M Twr

9945 - 108 Street
Edmonton T5K 258
Soiiciter (Energy)
France, Dave
Galloway, Ken
Kaga, Martin
McKeown, William E.
Segatto, Joseph

({780) 422-7171
(780} 422-0332
(780) 427-1870
(780) 427-1866
(760} 427-1860
Fax (780} 427-1871

Civil Law Branch - Seconded Solicitors
{Environmental Law)

Tth 1 Oxbridge Place
9820 - 106 Street
Edmonton TSK 2J6

Information
Solicitor {(Environmental Law)

(780) 427-3406

Booth. Thomas (780) 4154537
Chamberiain. Martin (780} 415-2388
Craig, Renee (780) 415-4536
Didnkson, Randy (780) 415-4534
Freadman, Tim (780) 427-7426
Gerlock, Erika (780) 415-9372
Keshn, Shannon (7801 4159360

tMcDonald, Witham

(780) 427-8122
Fax (780) 427-4343

10365 - 97 Stree!
Edmonton T54 2W7

Information

(780) 422-3715
Fax (780) 427-5814

Solicitor (Family Law - Edmonton)

Coverdale, Kirsten
Dawson, Patricia
Feghan, Brenda
Goulden. Ronda
Henderson, Pat
Kuehn, Tanya
Macinnis, Larry
Matheson, Chenyi
tdchary, Averie
Parker, Resva
Fillay, Vanita
Skinner, Enn
Snow, Tracey
Soria, Antonalla

Civil Law Branch - Family Law - Calgary

1660 Standard Life Bldg
639 - 5 Avenue SW
Calgary T2P OMS
Information

(780) 422-3716
(780) 422-3715
(780) 422-3715
(780) 422-3715
(780) 422-3715
(780) 422-3715
(780) 422-3715
(780) 422-3715
(780) 422-3715
(780) 422-3715
(780) 422-3715
(780) 422-3715
(780) 422-3715
(780) 422-3715

Fax (780} 427-5914

(403) 297-3350
Fax (403) 207-6381

Soelicitor {Famlly Law - Calgary)

Bauer, Beverley 2.C.
Jones, Tess
LaRochelle, Todd

(403) 267-3380
{403) 297-3360
{403) 287-3360

See Employee Listings for e-mail addresses

Fas (780) 425-0307
Manager, Civil Law
Graf, Kim {780y 422-90%5
Eax (780) 4250307
Legislatlive Counsei
2nd fi Bowker Bidg
9833 - 109 Streat
Edmonton T5K 2EB
General Inguiries (780G) 4472217
Fax [780) 422-73686
Chief Legislative Counsal
Pagano. Peter Q C (760) 427-0303
Fax {TB0) 422-7366
Assistant Chief Legislative Counsal

Baugh, Bruce

Legislative Counsel
Bradiey, Rowsna
Calizs, Eiaing
Evaniew, Earl
Gagnon, Denise
Larson, Richard
Singer, Dersk

(760} 427-3733

Fau (780} 422-7366

(780} 427-3853
{780} 427-3768
{780} 427-3698
(780) 422-4874
{780) 427-3858
(780) 427-5809

\Weir, Laurie {780y 427-3817
Fax (780) 422-7386
Publications and Administration Manager
Sutherland, Janice (T8O} 4274105
Fax (780) 422.7358
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Medical Examiners
gxaminer’s Office)

(780) 427-4987
Fax (780} 422-1265

(780} 427-4987

Fax (780} 422-1285
ye ianager

{403) 297-8123

Fax {403) 207-3429

(4070 Bowness Road MW

Calgary T3B 3R7)

{403} 297-8123

Fax (403) 297-3428
{4070 Bowness Road NW
Calgary T3B 3RT)

Regional Office

{780) 427-0373
£hief Medical Examiner
gamard (M.D.) (7TH0) 427-4987
: Eax (TBD) 422-1265
+ Administrator

{780} 427-4987
Fax (780) 422-1285
peords Superviser

(780) 427-4987
Fax (780) 422-1265

473 % (780) 427-4987
i Fax (780) 4221265

Regional Office

piification Number

] (403) 267-8123
v Ghief Medical Examiner

Lloyd (M.D.) {403) 267-8123
Fax (403} 207-3428

it Chief Medical Examiner
{403) 297-8123
Fax (403) 267-3429

Hedical Investigator
(403) 297-8123
Fax (403) 297-3429

{403) 297-8123

Fax (403) 207-3429
it Records Supervisor
3 (403) 297-B123
Fax (403) 297-3429
% Supervisor
Juko (403) 257-8123
_ Fax (403) 207-3420
blic Trustee
ton Office
n E Brownlee Bldg
“ 97 Street
T54 328
2! Inquiriss (780) 427-2744
Fax (780} 422-9136
Trustes
) Jack Q.C. (780) 422-3141
42741 Fax (780} 422-9136
422 nisirative Assistant
(780) 422-3141
Fax (730) 422-9136

Assistant Public Trustee

Polglase, Bil (780} 427-5803
Fax {780) 422-8136

Dirsctor, Esiste Adminisization

Bombak, Roman . {7B0) 427-5935
Fax (780) 422-9136

fhanager, Customer Relations & Organizational

Effectiveness

Beniz, Cindy (780) 427-5689
Fax {780} 422-9136

Mianager, Estate Administration

Gaetz, Alan (780) 422-1885

Kambeitz, Ernest (780) 422-2047
Fax (780) 422-9136

WManager, Lagal Services

McAfee, C. Suzanne (780} 427-5938
Fax (780) 422-9136

Solicitor

Gaossmann, Kimberly {780} 422-2712

Hills, Leslie {780) 427-5938

Hoffmann, Jack (780} 422-2134

Lisevich, Bob {780) 422-2172

McNMally, Beverlay {780) 422-2103
Fax (780) 422-8136

Senier Trust Officer

Frahlich, Ned (780) 422-1898

Sawaisky, Esther (780) 422-4312
Fax (780) 422-9138

Acting Senior Trust Officer

Lang, Cindy {T80) 427-5692

tacivor, June {780) 422-2673
Fax (780} 422-9136

Trust Officer

Armbruster, Patricia (780) 422-1505

Broda, Lidis (780) 422-4310

Conradi, Karin (780} 427-2744

Emsland, Georgs {780} 422-1908

Flores, Tony (780) 427-5694

Hammond, Cheryl (780) 4224303

Hardie, Darothy (T80} 427-5218

Hreczuch, Richard (780) 422-4367

verson-Marshall, Michelle (780)422-2050

Lovig, Caroline (T80) 422-4288

Makofka, Elaine (780) 427-5840

Mar, Lincoln {780) 422-1904

Neilson, Linda {780) 422-1933

Wolch, Douglas (780) $22-3984
Fax {780} 422-9136

Assistant Trust Officer

Cherniwchan, Melany {760) 422-2088

Ferguson, Robbin {780) 422-2046

Murray, Myriam (780} 422-2762

Pruden, Dianne {780) 4221878

Richardson, Sheila (780) 422-1918

Tumer, Alfison {780) 422-1886
Fax (780) 422-9136

Calgary Office

2100 Telus Tower

411 -1 Street SE

Calgary T2G 4Y5

General Inguiries {403) 297-6541
Fax (403) 297-2823

Assistant Public Trustes

Smith, Brian {403} 267-6547
Fax {403) 207-2823

Administrative Assistant

Jakubowych, Maria (403) 297-2814
Fax (403) 297-2823

Manager, Estate Administration

Butterworth, Graham {403) 207-6538

Derijk, Susan (403) 287-6546
Fax {403) 297-2823

Manager, Finanee | Adrinlstration

Rhemtulla, Firoz {403) 297-2812

Fex (403) 207-2823

Ses Employes Listings for e-mall addresses

Solicitor
Hunter, Diane M
ar, Lenard

Senior Trust Officer
Codrington, Curl
Nielsen, Valerie
Stott, Camsron

Trust Offiesr
Burkett, Allison
Carpenter, Jil
Joubert, Anna-Marie
Kwan, Mana
Lamberius, Kemi
Redman, Barclay
Silk, Mary

Assistant Trust Officer
Bogya, Cindy

Hawes, Darlene

Hunter, Dianne E
Wilheim, Cynthia

Auditor
Bhatia, Mebs

General _ 219

(403) 297-5127
(403) 297-6648
Fax (403) 297-2823

(403) 297-2816
{403) 267-7084
(403) 287-2217
Fax (403} 297-2823

(403) 207-5124
(403) 297-2071
(403) 2675125
(403) 297-7082
(403) 297-7148
(403) 297-7085
(403) 297-2818

Fax (403) 297-2823

(403) 267-7083
(403) 297-2819
(403) 297-5128
(403) 297-2807

Fax (403) 297-2823

(403) 207-2817
Fax {403} 297-2823

Maintenance Enforcement

Program

7th 11 John E Brownles Bldg
103865 - 97 Strest
Edmonton T5J 3W7

Information

Esxscutive Director
da Costa, Manuel

Agsistant to Director
Lamb, Clara

Client Services

Tth fi John E Brownlee Bldg
10365 - 97 Streat
Edmonton T5J 3W7
Manager, Ciient Services
Duchsrer, Wanda

(780} 422-5555
Fax (780) 401-7575

(780) 401-7500
Fax (780) 401-7515

(780) 401-7501
Fax (7B0} 401-7515

(780) 401-7530
Fax (7BD) 401-7565

Team Leader, Client Service Centrs

Boigvert, Barbara
Koberstein, Paige
Welnyk, Svivia

(780) 401-4043
(780) 401-4041
(780) 401-4047

Fax (780} 401-7565

Manager, Reglsiration & Good Payor/

Remo-Provisionals
Gajewski, Jerika

(780) 401-7569
Fax (780) 401-7565

Team Leader, Registration & Good Payor |

Remo-Provisionals
Hall, Lou
Reid, Lorri

(780) 401-7571
(780) 401-4053
Fax (780} 401-7565

Team Leader, Reciprocal Orders /

Remo-Provisionals
Meler, Erin

Coliections

7th fi John E Brownles Bldg
10365 - 97 Skresl
Edmonton T5J 3W7

Senlor Manager, Collections

Quail, Kevin

(780) 401-7561
Fax {780) 401-7585

{780) 401-7540
Fax (780) 401-7515
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_ ¢+~ 103 Avenue
““Edmontan, Alberia
78] OHB

izl 780,448, 9275
fax 780.423.0163
shoresjardine.com

(PR b A | BENIEY UITI—LUL L

SHORES JARDINES
September J_.Q, 2012 | _
PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL VIA FAX
o ' ' ' 780436 7771
Old Strathcona Law Offices
7904 103 Street:
Edmonton, AB T6E 6C3-

Attention: Mr. Robert Lee
Dear Sir;
Re:  Labonte v. Her Majesty the Queen et al

Court File No.: 0403 12898
 Our file: 6757 DNJ

In your letter to me of May 25, 2012 you indicate that the Response of the
Public Trustee to the Notice to Admit Facts Filed on April 16, 2012 made

‘reference to “an April 1987 agreement from Child Welfare.,” You then

request that I provide a copy of “the agreement/letter.”

In the Reply to Requested Admlssion #2 the Response of the Public
Trustee stated that

- In=Aprik 1987 the-Office of the-Public. Trustee was advised that-a
poliey decisionhad . been: made confirming. that. the. Children’s
Guigrdian and nnt the Public Trustee: would be thé party to consider
whetHer fo"] ptirste legal action on behialf of children in careof the
Children’s Guardlan; who right have a civil action.

The Response dld not suggest that there was “an agreement from Child
Welfare” and no such “agreement” can be provided.

The Office of the Public Trustee was advised of the policy that is referred

to in the Reply to Requested Admission #2 in the following documents sent
by lawyers in the Civil Law Section, Attornéy General that were copled to
the General Counsel of the Public Trustee:

1 1d

ow y}t.@rw
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1
1  COURT FILE NUMBER: 0403-12888
2 COURT: COURT OF QUEEN'S BENCH OF ALBERTA
4 JUDICIAL CENTRE: EDMONTON
Z PLAINTIFF: TENYEY FEDNTE
7  DEFENDANT: HER MAJESTY THE QUEEN IN RIGHT QF
5 DERECTOR-OF CHILD WELFAR
Y cessmsscscsssmssasEsEssERaSSSaEEEsssesYsesSEsSmsass=ens=
10
11 Questioning for Discovery of JACK KLINCK,
12  taken before Jeffrey Weigl, CSR(A), RMR, CRR, Examiner, ;
13 pursuant to Rules 203, 728, 204(1) of the Court of |
14  Queen's Bench of Alberta, at the offices of {
15 Shores Jardine LLP, Edmonton, Alberta, ;
16 on the 26th and 28th days of September, A.D. 2012. ;
17 ;
18  =--memmemcesmmsecssesssssecssesamscessemssssseme-ms-es-
20  Appearances: |
21 R.P. Lee, Esq. For the Plaintiff ?
22 P.G. Barber, Esg. For the Defendant E
- Ms. S.A. Bowes For the Defendant %
D.N. Jardine, Esg. For the Public Trustee |
24  R.A. Bombak, Esq. For the Public Trustee !
25 ;
- J. Weigl, CSR(A), RMR, CRR  Official Court Reporter §
27 i
H
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under permanent guardianship order?

As I indicated, I don't recall the background. I do
know that at this time at least, that's my thought
on it, that it was something new 1in the Tegisiation,
and that's why I was being requested to give an
opinion or provision or position of our office.

And we treated it as being no different than
any other child that required a lawsuit to be
brought on behalf of them.

And you obviously in August of 1985 were a Tawyer?
Yes, I was.

Have you kept up your membership with the Law
Society from the time that you were called to the
Bar until 20077 )

Yes, I was a member of the Bar throughout that
period.

Okay. And is it fair to say that your legal
training and legal knowledge formed part of the
basis upon which you made decisions in your position
as acting Public Trustee?

Definitely.

And in August of 1985, you treated -- is it correct
that in 1985, August, you treated the Public
Trustee's role towards children under permanent
guardianship as being no different than any other
child that requirsd a lawsuit to be brought on

behalf of them?

GAP
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That's correct. Basically it's part of trust law,
and private trustees are not obligated to fund
actions out of their own pocket to advance the claim
of a minor.

The next Friend is responsible Tor
solicitor-client costs in respect of conducting
1itigation on behalf of a minor and is also
potentially liable for costs on a party-and-party
basis iF they're unsuccessful. And the Public
Trustee is in no different position than any other
trustee in Taw.

And did.you do legal research on this matter prior

to August 19, 19857

I wasn't doing legal research myself. I was relying i

on trust Tawyers in our office.

Okay. So prior to sending thié memo dated August
1985, did you obtain advice from trust lawyers in
your 6ffice?

I would have.

When you use the word "would," is that because you
can't recall?

Well, I can't recall specifically, but that is
exactly what I would have done in all probability.
So you believe you did?

I wasn't a trust lawyer with expertise in this area
when I came into the Office of the Public Trustes.

And this position that I'm relating to you is one
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that would have been given to me as a historical
position that the office has always taken, and they
saw nothing that had changed with respect to the
terminology that they found 1in the Child Welfare
Act.

And they knew about the reference to the Public

Trustee being the trustes --

_Ab501ut619=

-- of children under permanent guardianship?
Yes,.
And I just want to clarify. You stated in an
earlier answer:
I wasn't doing legal research myself. I was
relying on trust lawyers in our office.
So I just want to clarify. You relied on the legal
advice that you received from the trust lawyers 1in
the Public Trustee's O0ffice?

That is corrsct.

And these were trust Tawyers that worked for the
Public Trustee?

That is correct.

And these were trust lawyers that were paid by the
Government?

Yes.

And you might not be able to answer this. Your
Tawyer might be able to answer this. Is it correct,

Mr. Klinck, that all legal opinions from Tawyers,
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+he Public Trustee has claimed a privilege over

those legal opinions in this lawsuit?

MR. JARDINE: Mr. Klinck c}eérly can't answer

that. 1 can. Tﬁe opinions that may be referred to

on these issues, privilege has been claimed on them

as advice given To +he Public Trusiee by lawyers in

that office.

MR. LEE: Okay. So 1in regard o paragraph

9 of that memo on the second page, 1 see that it

states in the second 1ina:
This role is typically +aken by the parents of
the child, and where you are providing a
guardianship role to a child, I would submit
that it would be more properly your
responsibility to retain counsel on behalf oTf
+he child and to assume this responsibilitly as
a program cost.

Was that your opinion in August 19th of 19857

That's correct.

And you formed that opinion based on the legal

advice you received from ybur Tawyers?

That is corrsct.

And so is it correct that in August of 19885, you

helieve that it was -- l1et me rephrase the question.

In August of 19885, you understood that there were
two types of roles in relation to a child in care,

or any child for that matter, those being

o b

e AR
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guardianship powers and trusteeship powers?

That's correct.

And is 1t fair to say that in August of 1985, based
on legal advice and reliance on legal advice, Yyou
believed that it was the guardian’s role to act as
next friend for a child rather than the trustee's
role to act as the next friend of a child who wished
to initiate a civil action?

That tis correct.

Were you still working for the Public Trustee -- OF
were you still the Public Trustee when the Blood
decision was released by Justice Slatter?

I was.

8o I take it, then, that you relieve that Justice
Slatter's -- you helieved at the time that Justice
Slatter's decision was wrong?

I think it could have been appealed, ves.

Did you consider appealing Justice Slatter's
decision?

No, and that is because the decision was really a
catalyst for change in Government. And the issue
was who was going to bring these actions on behalf
of children in care. The responsibility had been
left with the department responsible for the
children in care and looking after guardianship, and
at that point, it was really the catalyst for

change.
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MR. JARDINE:

We started looking at the possibility of having
the Public Trustee take that role in the future.
Ultimately documenis were given to Cabinet, and
Cabinet concluded in June of the following year 1in
2005 that it should he the Public Trustee that
should assume this roie.

Iin what way did Cabinet have authority over the
Public Trustee's O0ffice?
it's ==
That's a pretty broad -- I think
you better direct that as to the witness's
understanding. That covers a whole area of
sxecutive law, and it's very -- that's very much a
question of law.
OBJECTION TAKEN TO - In what way did Cabinet
have authority over the Public Trustee's
Office?
MR. LEE: In your understanding, in what
way did Cabinet have authority over the Public
Trustee's 0ffice?
We are part of -- the Office of the Public Trustee

was part of Government, and Cabinet was the ultimate
decisionmaker. If they chose to have us assume this

responsibility, then with funding in place, we would

do so.
A1l right. And you were the -- were you the Public

Trustee at the time that Cabinet made this decision?

P e T
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1 was. And if I =-- sorry.

What were you going to say?

Well, if I had gone against that decision, 1 would
no longer have been the Public Trustee.

Whaf do you mean?

Well, when Cabinet gives a directive that our office
and the Public Trustee is to bring these actions,
then that's exactly what you are responsible for
doing. They determine the policy.

So if you didn‘t, you would be fired? Is that

what --

I would expect that that would be the case. When I
start going against a Cabinet decision, that would
be the ultimate avenus Tor me.

Okay. And you believed +hat when that Cabinet
decision was made?

I believed that that was my obligation to look after

that area, ves.

. And was that your belief from 1984 ti11 2006, that

if the Public Trustee went against Cabinet, that the
Public Trustee would be Tired? ’
If there was a policy directive that directed the
Public Trustee in a course of action and he failed
to do so, that would quite 1ikely be a result.

And so after Justice Slatter's decision in Blood, 1in
your own mind, you believed that in law, the

decision was wrong; is that correct?
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What the law is is the 1aw states that there 1is no
obligation upon a trustee to fund Tawsuits
themselves on behalf of a minor beneficiary. It
doesn’t mean that the trustee couldn't do S0, but he
would be deing se for no Tegal reason. There was no
reason legally for him to fund 1itigation on behalT
of a minor.

A trustee is entitled to be remunerated for his
efforts, and with respect to any expenses and cost
properly made on kehalf of the keneficiaries, he's
entitled to be reimbursed. S0 without either assets
or an indemnity to reimburse them from somebody,
thers was .no.legal obligation upon the trustee to do
these things. ‘

Okay. Is there any specific case --
it isn't really that it's against the law, in
guotation marks. It's the position that the trustee

holds in law.
Okay. ' Is there any specific case that you're

referring to or textbook that cites this legal
principlie?

I'm sure Donovan Waters, if you 100K at The Law of
Trusts in Canada. would have something in this area.
Now, I don't recall, but in the Blood case, did the
Public Trustee have counsel that had the opportunity
+o make submissions prior to Justice Slatter's

decision?
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Did we -- we didn’t give a formal brief that I'm
aware of in that decision hefore that decision was
made.

Was there a reason for that?

We were there, I think, as really a friend of the
court. If they wished to have us take an obligation
in that case, then we would look at 1t. And so what
we.did.was to obtain_a legal épinion to see whether
or not any one of the three minors had a reasonable
14kelihood of success of an sction and whether or

not it would be in their best interest to. bring an

action.
But within the Blood case, prior to the Slatter
decision, I do recall -- I think Suzanne McATee was

present during that case.
Was there a reason why the Public Trustee did

not provide a legal brief to Justice Slatter

advising Justice Slatter of the public Trustee's
position on the law of the duty or responsibility of
a trustee to sue for a child that had a trustee?

As T understand what happened in the case, the issue
was with respect tc who should be the next friend in
respect of this minor, and we were brought in to
assist the Court in this regard. So it wasn't --
there are always going to be somé exceptions, I
guess, to general policies.

Okay. So you understood -- you were -- you were
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zware of the Blood case and the Blood application;

is that correct, Mr. Klinck?

Yes. Suzanne McAfee did attend, and I believe you
were there as well, S0 YoU would know what her
submissions were better than L.

Okay. And she was reporting to you?

she would.

Okay. So you knew about the case goind on?

Yes.

And were you reporting to the ADM on the case?

Well, the ADM was responsible for +he defencs of the
action, so she would know from what was happening by
the lawyers that were reporting to her 1n Civil,

Law -- From Civil Law.

Okay. Did you provide any advice or opinion to the
ADM that the Public Trustee in law had no legal
responsibility to sue as a trustes?

The ADM Civil would have heen well awars of our

office’s position in respect of that issue.

And --

Because it really dates back to '84, '89 when I
first wrote to Herb Sohn explaining the position of
our department or our office and the fact that the
puhlic Trustee was not under an obligation to bring
sctions, even though he was_designated as the sole
trustee in respest of children under permanent

guardianship ordars.

—— R R
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After that peint in time, there was
correspondence that went back and forth between our
office and the Tawyers in Civil Law who ultimately
accepted the position of the Office of the Public
Trustee.

Okay. 8o you're saying that back in 1984 -- is this
after this 1985 memo?

Yes, it would be..

Okay.

I was, as you ars aware, appointed as the ADM
shortly after that period. But .the correspendence
between lawyers and the Public Trustee’'s 0ffice and
Civil Law continued, and ultimately the lawyers ipn
Civil Law agreed with the position that our office
took.

And so from 1985 to 1991 as the Assistant Deputy
Minister, the lawyers for the Public Trustee were
under your responsibility; is that right?

That 1is correct.

Were the lawyers for Alberta Justice or Civil Law,
were they also under your responsibility?

No, no.

Okay.

They reported to the ADM Civil.

Okay. And who was your Deputy Minister? What wés
the title?

Of the Deputy Minister at that time?

e
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MR. BARBER:

Yeah.

Or =--

That's right. I'm just trying te fTind out where
there's going to be a connection here between the
Public Trustees and Alberta Justice Civil.

The connection comes at the ADM Civil, because 1
report to the ADM Civil as does Civil Law. And
civil Law is responsible for legal services to the
director of Child WelTare.

Okay. So is this when you're the ADM?

When I was the ADN --

From '85 to --

-- for Property Services, the discussion took place
between lawyers znd the Office of the Pub]ic 
Trustee. I wasn't a party to these, but they
continued to --

I'm sorry. Mr. Klinck, I'm going
to intervene for a minute here because I'm getting
concerned about my client's solicitor-client
privilege on this issue, and I'd 1ike to speak to

Mr. Jardine.

MR. JARDINE: No. And so I can be clear,

Mr. Lee, the witness has told you -- and I don't
have a problem with the witness telling you -- that
there was, in Tact, a position expressed, which he's
given you,

I don't have a problem with the fact that there

TS = b, T s s, 1

[P —




AN, ATRE T B

al

o Pt.?;-(g, .............. AL e




KELLY GAIL BESLER
Questioned remotely by Mr. Lee

1 COURT FILE NUMBER: 1203 19700
2
5 COURT: COURT OF QUEEN'S BENCH OF ALBERTA
4  JUDICIAL CENTRE: EDMONTON
5 1 2
PLAINTIFFS: T.W., by his Trustees
6 i — 0 HER RJESTY
. THE QUEEN IN RIGHT OF ALBERTA
8  DEFENDANTS: HER MAJESTY THE QUEEN IN RIGHT OF
ALBERTA as represented by IRIS
9 EVANS, THE MINISTER OF CHILDREN'S
SERVICES, PAULA TYLER, THE DEPUTY
10 MINISTER OF CHILDREN'S SERVICES,
KERAY HENKE, THE ASSISTANT DEPUTY
11 MINISTER OF CHILDREN'S SERVICES,
BILL MEADE, THE CEO OF MA'MOWE
12 CAPITAL REGION CHILD AND FAMILY
SERVICES AUTHORITY, JACKIE
13 STEWART, MANAGER OF LITIGATION
SUPPORT FOR CHILDREN'S SERVICES,
14 GAIL PERKINS, CAROL ADAGALA,
WENDY MITCHELL-KUBAN, DAVID JAMES
15 MILLAR, MRS. MILLAR and JOHN DOE
1 T L L L L E L
17  Questioning for Discovery of KELLY GAIL BESLER,
18 held remotely via Zoom videoconference,
19  on the 9th day of April 2021 C.E.
4 I T
21 Appearances [via Zoom]:
22 R. P. Lee, Esq. For the Plaintiffs
[from Edmonton, A]berta]
23
24 Ms. A. F. Kostek, Esq. For the Defendant Her
[from Edmonton, Alberta] Majesty the Queen and
25 Representatives
26 Ms. K. MclLeod, CSR(A), RMR Official Court Reporter
o [from Edmonton Alberta]
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KELLY GAIL BESLER
Questioned remotely by Mr. Lee

MR.
MS.

MR.

MS.

MS.

MR.

MS.

Affidavit of Records. Let me just pull it up and
I'1T show you.

Our Affidavit of Records, the Supplemental,
Schedule 2B identifies that the March 23rd --

LEE: What page? Page 14?

KOSTEK: Page 14, yes. It identifies the
names of everybody. 1I'11 make this bigger.

LEE! Can you clarify what's the claim
of privilege -- oh, solicitor-client privilege.
KOSTEK: Solicitor-client. Yeah.

MR. LEE: With regard to the March 23rd,
1987, memorandum, can you tell me who requested the
information in that memorandum?

KOSTEK: This witness has not seen the
memorandum. The memorandum was provided to

Justice Feth, though, and he's going to rule on the
producibility of it.

LEE: Yes, I understand that.

Ms. Besler, can you tell me who requested the advice
in that memorandum?

No. I have not seen that.

Can you tell me if it was intended that the advice
be used for the benefit of foster children?

KOSTEK: She can't answer that.

MR. LEE: Would you undertake to advise me

if the purpose of that -- of requesting that legal

advice was for the benefit of foster children?

[ca
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KELLY GAIL BESLER
Questioned remotely by Mr. Lee

—

MS. KOSTEK: We'll take that under advisement.

2 UNDERTAKING - 25 - [UNDER ADVISEMENT]

3 TO ADVISE IF THE PURPOSE OF

4 REQUESTING THE LEGAL ADVICE IN THE

5 MARCH 23, 1937, MEMORANDUM WAS FOR

6 THE BENEFIT OF FOSTER CHILDREN, AS

T REFERRED TO ABOVE.

8 Q. MR. LEE: Would you advise me if that Tegal
9 advice was obtained with the intention that it would
10 be kept secret from foster children?

11 MS. KOSTEK: We'll take that under advisement.
12 HBR. LEE: Or to be kept confidential from
13 foster children.

14 MS. KOSTEK: We'll take that under advisement.
15 UNDERTAKING - 26 - [UNDER ADVISEMENT]

16 TO ADVISE IF THE LEGAL ADVICE IN THE

17 MARCH 23, 1987, MEMORANDUM WAS

18 OBTAINED WITH THE INTENTION THAT IT

18 WOULD BE KEPT SECRET FROM FOSTER
20 CHILDREN OR TO BE KEPT CONFIDENTIAL
21 FROM FOSTER CHILDREN, AS REFERRED TO
22 ABOVE.

23 Q. MR. LEE: Could you tell me if the

24 information in that March 23rd, 1987, memorandum
25 puts the public trustee's office and the department
26 responsible for administering the Child Welfare Act
27 to be adverse in interest?

[wiz)
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KELLY GAIL BESLER
Questioned remotely by Mr. Lee

e

MS. KOSTEK: No, we won't answer that.

2 OBJECTION - 4 - Could you tell me if

3 the information in that March 23rd,

4 1987, memorandum puts the public

5 trustee's office and the department

6 responsible for administering the

7 Child Welfare Act to be adverse in

8 interest?

9 MR. LEE: I understand that part of the

10 claim of privilege is a common-interest privilege.
11 It appears to me that the information -- without

12 knowing what's in there, it would appear to me that
13 the information in that legal advice would put the
14 department of Child Welfare, as I'11 refer to it

15 generically, and the public trustee's office, as

16 I'11 refer to it generally, in a conflict of

17 interest, in that that document could be used by one
18 or the other to deny an allegation by a foster child
19 that either the Child Welfare department or the

20 public trustee's office had a responsibility to

21 assist the foster child with potential civil

22 actions.

23 So would you tell me if the content of that

24 advice puts the public trustee's office and the

25 Child Welfare department in a conflict of interest
26 or being adverse in interest?

27 MS. KOSTEK: No.

i
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KELLY GAIL BESLER
Questioned remotely by Mr. Lee
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MS.

MR.
MS.

MR.

MS.

OBJECTION - 5 - So would you tell me

if the content of that advice puts

the public trustee's office and the

Child Welfare department in a

conflict of interest or being adverse

in interest?
MR. LEE: And would there be any privilege
by the public trustee's office or the director of --
or the children's -- Child Welfare department to use

that memorandum against the other?

KOSTEK: Well, we won't answer that
guestion.

LEE: And on what basis?

KOSTEK: It's solicitor-client privilege.

We're not going to go into what somebody can do or
use with documentation that's covered by
solicitor-client privilege. It's already before
Justice Feth. He'll rule on it.
EEE:S Ms. Kostek, you understand that
you have to establish that it is solicitor-client
privilege?
KOSTEK: I think we have.

OBJECTION - 6 - And would there be

any privilege by the public trustee's

office or the director of -- or the

children's -- Child Welfare

department to use that memorandum

WIZ
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1 against the other?
2 Q. MR. LEE: And with regard to the
3 April 28th, 1987, memo from Neil Dunne, civil Taw,
e to Herb Sohn, children's guardian, referencing the
5 legal advice of March 23rd, 1987, a memorandumhto
6 Camilla Witt, what was -- was the intention of that
7 memo to be kept secret from foster children?
8 MS. KOSTEK: We'll take that under advisement.
9 UNDERTAKING - 27 - [UNDER ADVISEMENT]
10 TO ADVISE IF THE INTENTION OF THE
11 APRIL 28, 1987, MEMO FROM NEIL DUNNE
12 TO HERB SOHN REFERENCING THE LEGAL
13 ADVICE OF MARCH 23, 1987, WAS TO KEEP
14 IT A SECRET FROM FOSTER CHILDREN, AS
15 REFERRED TO ABOVE.
16 Q. MR. LEE: Was the intention of that memo to
17 be used for the benefit of foster children?
18 MS. KOSTEK: We'11l take that under advisement.
19 UNDERTAKING - 28 - [UNDER ADVISEMENT]
20 TO ADVISE IF THE INTENTION OF THE
21 APRIL 28, 1987, MEMO FROM NEIL DUNNE
22 TO HERB SOHN REFERENCING THE LEGAL
23 ADVICE OF MARCH 23, 1987, WAS TO BE
24 USED FOR THE BENEFIT OF FOSTER
25 CHILDREN, AS REFERRED TO ABOVE.
26 Q. MR. LEE: Was the intention of that memo to
27 assist the children's -- the Child Welfare
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1 department to understand its role in helping foster
2 children who had potential causes of action?
3 MS. KOSTEK: We'll take that under advisement.
4 UNDERTAKING - 29 - [UNDER ADVISEMENT]
5 TO ADVISE IF THE INTENTION OF THE
6 APRIL 28, 1987, MEMO FROM NEIL DUNNE
7 TO HERB SOHN REFERENCING THE LEGAL
8 ADVICE OF MARCH 23, 1987, WAS TO
9 ASSIST THE CHILD WELFARE DEPARTMENT
11:28 10 TO UNDERSTAND ITS ROLE IN HELPING
11 FOSTER CHILDREN WHO HAD POTENTIAL
12 CAUSES OF ACTION, AS REFERRED TO
13 ABOVE.
14 Q. MR. LEE: What position did Neil Dunne hold
15 in April of 19877

16 A. I don't know.
17 Q. 1Is this the same Neil Dunne that made a Law Society

18 complaint against Robert Lee in 2003 regarding the
19 Tetter written by Robert Lee to Mike Kinash that was
11:29 20 earlier referred to?

21 A. I don't know.
22 Q. Would you undertake to find that out?

23 MS. KOSTEK: I'm not sure that's relevant and
24 material. Can you explain how that's relevant?
25 MR. LEE: It would appear that Neil Dunne
26 was aware of these documents -- he was aware of the
27 obligation of Her Majesty the Queen to produce

CAP|
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advocate?

No.

From 1988 onwards, was there a policy or practice
within Her Majesty the Queen to keep it a secret
from foster children the things that the children's
advocate could do and would not do for foster
children that might need a Tawyer?

No.

From 1988 onwards, was there a policy or practice
within Her Majesty the Queen to inform foster
children of the things that the children’'s advocate
could and would not do for foster children that
might need a Tawyer, if it was suitable to the
child's age and mental ability?

I don't know that.

From 1980s onward, was there a policy or practice
within Her Majesty the Queen to keep it a secret
from foster children that there was a director of
child welfare that was the guardian of the foster
children?

No.

From 1980 onward, was there a policy or practice
within Her Majesty the Queen to keep it a secret
from foster children the things that the director of
Child Welfare could do and would not do for foster
children that might need a Tawyer?

No.

1
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From 1980 onwards, was there a policy or practice
within Her Majesty the Queen to inform foster
children of the things that the director of

Child Welfare could do and would not do for foster
children that might need a lawyer when suitable to
the child's age and mental abiTlity?

Sorry. Can -- you've changed the time frame on the
last couple of them, not that that would matter
greatly, but you started with 1988, and then it was
1980. Can you repeat the question, please?

Yes. There wasn't a children's advocate until 1988.
That's why I used the date 1988 when referring to
the children's advocate. There was a director of
Child Welfare from 1980, which is why I'm using that
date.

So from 1980s onward, was there a policy or
practice within Her Majesty the Queen to inform
foster children of the things that the director of
Child Welfare could do and would not do for foster
children that might need a lawyer when suitable to
the child's age and mental ability?

I don't know.

From 1980s onward, was there a policy or practice
within Her Majesty the Queen to Keep it a secret
from foster children that there was a public trustee
that was the trustee of the estates of foster
children under PGO?
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1 A. No.
Q. From 1980s onward, was there a policy or practice
within Her Majesty the Queen to keep it a secret
from foster children the things that the public

trustee could do and would not do for foster

2
3
4
5
6 children that might need a lawyer?
7 No.

8 From 1980s onward, was there a policy or practice
9 within Her Majesty the Queen to inform foster

0

01:25 1 children of the things that the public trustee could
11 do and would not do for foster children that might
12 need a lawyer when suitable to the child's age and
13 mental ability?

14 A. I don't know.

15 Q. From 1984 to 1988, was there a policy or practice

16 within Her Majesty the Queen to keep it a secret
17 from foster children that there was a children's
18 guardian that was the guardian of the foster

19 children under PGO?

01:25 20 A. No.
21 Q. From 1984 to 1988, was there a policy or practice

22 within Her Majesty the Queen to keep it a secret

23 from foster children the things that the children's
24 guardian could do and would not do for foster

25 children that might need a lawyer?

26 A. No.

27 Q. From 1984 to 1988, was there a policy or practice
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within Her Majesty the Queen to inform foster
children of the things that the children's guardian
could do and would not do for foster children that
might need a lawyer when suitable to the child's age
and mental ability?

I don't know.

From 2000 to 2003, was it the policy or practice to
keep it a secret from TENEB and other foster
children that foster children under TGO and PGO
might have the right to have some part of the
government to assist them with civil claims against
the department of Child Welfare?

No.

From 2000 to 2003, was it the policy or practice of
Child Welfare or the government to keep it a secret
from Tl and other foster children that foster
children under TGO and PGO might have the right to
have the district manager assist the director of
Child Welfare to assist the foster children with
civil claims against the department of

Child Welfare?

No.

From 2000 to 2003, was it the policy or practice of
Her?Majesty the Queen to keep it a secret from
‘.and other foster children to know what kind
of medical, psychological, and dental treatment that

they were entitled to receive?

lcAr
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No.

Was it the policy from 1985 to present to act in the
best interests of foster children, even if the
interests of foster children were in conflict with
the interests of Child Welfare or the government?
Well, I'm not sure if -- I need a -- an
interpretation of "conflict." Is there a way --
Where --

-- that you can rephrase that?

Yeah. So what I'm referring to is where what the
child -- the foster child might want is not what
Child Welfare or the government might want. And the
prime example here is a foster child might want to
sue the government, and the government might not
want to be sued.

Right. And so you’ve used the time frame of 1985 to
present.

Yes.

And can you repeat the question again? Are you
asking if there was a policy to conceal?

Was it the policy from 1985 to present to act in the
best interests of foster children, even if the
interests of foster children were in conflict with

the interests of Her Majesty the Queen?

MS. KOSTEK: I don't know that you've

established that they were in conflict. Are you

asking a hypothetical? Like, if they were?

E8
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COURT FILE NUMBER: 1203 19700

COURT: COURT OF QUEEN'S BENCH OF ALBERTA
JUDICIAL CENTRE: EDMONTON '
PLAINTIFFS: T.W., by his Trustee‘Ii-;;E'

and HER MAJESTY
THE QUEEN IN RIGHT OF ALBERTA

DEFENDANTS: HER MAJESTY THE QUEEN IN RIGHT OF
ALBERTA as reﬁresented bﬁ IRIS
EVANS, THE MINISTER OF C ILDREN'S
SERVICES, PAULA TYLER, THE DEPUTY
MINISTER OF CHILDREN'S SERVICES,
KERAY HENKE, THE ASSISTANT DEPUTY
MINISTER OF CHILDREN'S SERVICES,
BILL MEADE, THE CEO OF MA "' MOWE
CAPITAL REGION CHILD AND FAMILY
SERVICES AUTHORITY, JACKIE
STEWART, MANAGER OF LITIGATION
SUPPORT FOR CHILDREN'S SERVICES,
GAIL PERKINS, CAROL ADAGALA,
WENDY MITCHELL-KUBAN, DAVID JAMES
MILLAR, MRS. MILLAR and JOHN DOQE

--------------------------------------------------------

Questioning for Discovery of JACQUELINE ARLENE STEWART,
held remotely via Zoom videoconference,

on the 1st day of April 2021 C.E.

Appearances [via Zoom] :

R. P. Lee, Esq. For the Plaintiffs
[from Edmonton, Alberta]

Ms. A. F. Kostek, Esqg. For the Defendant Her

[from Edmonton, Alberta] Majesty the Queen and
Representatives

Ms. K. McLeod, CSR(A), RMR Official Court Reporter

[from Edmonton, Alberta]
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MS. KOSTEK: Okay. Thank you for your

2 rr o >

comments. You have our answer. We will get back to
you. We're not saying no, but we will get back to
you.

UNDERTAKING - 1 - [UNDER ADVISEMENT]

TO ADVISE WHETHER THE AFFIDAVIT OF

RECORDS PROVIDED BY HER MAJESTY

THE QUEEN DISCLOSES A DELEGATION/V

RECORD OF A DIRECTOR FOR Wl

BETWEEN 2000 TO 2003, AS REFERRED TO

ABOVE.
MR. LEE: Ms. Stewart, from 1985 to 1988,
was there a policy or practice in the government to
keep it a secret from foster children that there was
a children's guardian?
Was there a policy?
Or a practice.
Not that I'm aware of.
From 1985 to 1988, was there a policy or practice to
keep it a secret from foster children that things
that the children's guardian could do and would not
do for foster children that might need a lawyer?
Not that I'm aware of.
From 1985 to 1988, was there a policy or practice to
inform foster children of the things that the
children's guardian could do and would not do for

foster children that might need a Tawyer?

I|/ E
5N




10:42

10:42

29

JACQUELINE ARLENE STEWART
‘Questioned remotely by Mr. Lee

0 N O R W N -

11
12
!
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27

A.
Q.

I don't recall.

From 1988 to present, was there a policy or practice
to keep it a secret from foster children that there
was a children's advocate?

No.

From 1988 to present, was there a policy or practice
to keep it a secret from foster children the things
that the children's advocate could do and would not
do for foster children that might need a lawyer?

Say that again. Sorry.

From 1988 to present, was there a policy or practice
to keep it a secret from foster children the things
that the children's advocate could do and would not
do for foster children that might not need -- that
might need a Tawyer.

I'm not aware of that.

From 1988 to present, was there a policy or practice
to inform foster children of the things that the
children's advocate could do and would not do for
foster children that might need a Tawyer -- I think
that's the same question. So let's strike that --
oh, sorry.

The difference was in the '88 to present time
period, was there a policy or practice to inform the
foster children of the things that the children's
advocate could do and would not do for foster

children who might need a lawyer?

|
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—

It wasn't that specific. I can't imagine a policy

2 that would state things they would not do, for

3 example,

4 Well, this is -- well, for example, the children's

5 advocate won't help foster children to sue for civil
6 actions; correct? Is that is something that

2 Child Welfare keeps a secret from foster children?

8 Not that I'm aware of.

9 Okay. From 1985 to present, was there a policy or
10 practice to keep it a secret from foster children

11 that there was a director of Child Welfare who was
12 the guardian of the foster children?

13 Not that I'm aware of.

14 From 1985 to present, was there a policy or practice
15 to keep it a secret from foster children the things
16 that the director of Child Welfare could do and

17 would not do for foster children that might need a
18 Tawyer?

19 Not that I'm aware of.
20 From 1985 to present, was there 3 policy or practice
21 to inform foster children of the things that the
22 director of Child Welfare could do and would not do
23 for foster children that might need a Tawyer?
24 I don't know.
25 Well, you're the person responsible for the records.
26 This 1awsu1t is about whether or not the director
27 to]d‘—- informed him of his rights. How can

L wiz)
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you say you don't know?

Because I don't recall.

And you might have recalled in 19 -- in 20047

I don’'t know.

So it is possible, then -- because you don't know,
it is possible that there was a practice or policy
from 1985 to present that Child Welfare workers
would not tell foster children what the director of
Child Welfare could do or would not do when the
foster child needed a lTawyer?

I am not aware of a policy or a practice related to
that.

So it's possible that there was such a policy?

No.

It's not possible?

I don't -- I've already answered that question. I
said I'm not aware.

Right. Well, if you're not aware, then I would
assume the follow-up answer to "is it possible” is
that it is possible?

No, that's not the follow-up.

Well, that was my follow-up question. So if you
say -- if you say it wasn't possible, then that
means that you know there was no policy. But since
you say that you don't remember, it should be
possible. That's what I'm trying to understand. Is

it possible? 1Is it not possible?

)
[wiz)
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1T A, Idon't -- the answer I gave was I'm not aware.
2 Q. And you don't know if it's possible or not that
3 there was such a policy?
4 A. I'mnot --
5 If you're testifying -- you swore to tell the truth.
6 So do you know if it was or was not possible for
¥ there to be a policy or a practice to not inform
8 foster children of the things that the director of
9 Child Welfare could do and would not do for foster
10:47 10 children who might need a lawyer?
11 A. I'm not --
12 MS. KOSTEK: So she can't speak.to what she
13 doesn't know, right. And she can't even go so far
14 as to say it's possible, because she doesn't know.
15 She's already given you her answer.
16 OBJECTION - 2 - If you're
17 testifying -- you swore to tell the
18 truth. So do you know if it was or
19 was not possible for there to be a
20 policy or a practice to not inform
21 foster children of the things that
22 the director of Child Welfare could
23 do and would not do for foster
24 children who might need a Tawyer?
25 MR. LEE: Well, that defies logic,
26 Ms. Kostek, but I'11 go on.
27 Q. From 1985 to present, was there a policy or practice
L [ wiz)
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1 to keep it secret from foster children that there

2 was a public trustee and that the public trustee was
3 the trustee of the estates of foster children under
4 PGO?

5 A. I'm not aware of any.

6 Q. From 1985 to present, was there a policy or practice
7 to keep it a secret from foster children the things
8 that the public trustee could do and would not do

g for foster children that might need a lawyer?

10:48 10 A. I'm not aware of that.

11 Q. From 1985 to present, was there a policy or practice

12 to inform foster children of the things that the
13 public trustee could do and would not do for foster
14 children that might need a Tawyer?

15 A. I don't recall.
16 Q. Okay. Well, let's Timit it from 1985 to 2003, the

17 date of your Affidavit of Records, the first one.

18 Was there any policy or practice that the

19 public trustee could do anything for foster children
10:48 20 who might have a civil action?

21 A. I don't recall.

22 Q. Didn't you collect all the records with regard to

23 that issue?

24 A. I don't recall what records I collected in 2003.

25 Q. What have you done to prepare for today's

26 Questioning? Did you look at the

27 Affidavit of Records that you swore in 2003, and did

:
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you look at those documents --

No.

-- 1in preparation for your Questioning?
No.

2 PO >

Did you look at the Supplemental Affidavit of Records
that you swore and look at the documents that were
included?

I didn't 1ook at the records, no.

f ]

So Tet me understand. You filed a Supplemental
Affidavit of Records; correct?

Correct.

You swore it; correct?

Correct.

The Affidavit of Records would have listed the

2 PP O >

titles of documents: correct?
Yes.

A description of the documents?
That, I don't know.

2 k o »

But you didn't look at the documents to determine if
those documents had had any relevancy to this
Tawsuit?

MS. KOSTEK: So her affidavit -- her
supplemental was sworn on information and belief,
and it was prepared by me as her counsel.

MR. LEE: Yes.

Q. So you didn't look at those documents yourself,

Ms. Stewart?
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1 A. No. I no longer have access to the documents

2 because I no longer work for the government.

3 Q. So are you telling me, Ms. Stewart, that as a

4 defendant, you're not allowed to look at those

5 documents?

6 MS. KOSTEK: She's only allowed to Took at her

Ve documents. She doesn't have access to HMQ's

8 documents.

9 Q. MR. LEE: Ms. Stewart, can you tell me why
10:51 10 you don't have access to Her Majesty the Queen's

11 documents.

12 A. I don't --

13 Q. Do you know why?

14 A. Pardon me?

15 Q. Do you know why you don't have access to Her Majesty

16 the Queen's documents?

17 A, Well, I'm no Tonger an employee, so I don't have

18 access to government documents any longer.

19 Q. Okay. And so you don't -- you didn't have -- you
10:51 20 don't have access to Mr. Meade's records either?

21 A. No.

22 Q. Or to any of the codefendants?

23 A. Correct.

24  MR. LEE: Can we just take a short break?
25 MS. KOSTEK: Sure.

26 [ADJOURNMENT]

27 Q. MR. LEE: Ms. Stewart, you confirm that

wiz)
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MR.

MS.
MR.

MS.

MS.

you're still under oath?
Yes.
AlT right. So I just want to show you a document,

Ms. Stewart.

LEE: It's the Sharon Heron memo,

Ms. Kostek.

KOSTEK: Just one moment, please.

LEE: This is a memo dated October 7,
1999.

KOSTEK: Let me just make it bigger.

MR. LEE: Ms. Stewart, you didn't see this

document before filing your Supplemental

Affidavit of Records?

; -

KOSTEK: I have shown this document and
specific other documents to Ms. Stewart.

MR. LEE: Okay. I'm -- I'm just seeking
clarification, Ms. Stewart. I take it this document
is not in your personal possession?

Correct.

Okay. So, Ms. Stewart, you -- either you or

Ms. Kostek made a statement that you're not allowed
to access the government records because you're no
longer a government employee; is that correct?
That's correct.

Okay. So I'm just trying to understand, if you're

not able to access the government records, how or

=
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MS.

MR.

MS.
MR.

MS.

MR.

MS.
MR.
MS.
MR.

why were you allowed to access this Sharon Heron

memo? In what context?

KOSTEK: So there were specific documents
I shared with her in the course of preparing for
today that she was allowed to access, and I can't go
into more detail without starting to talk about
things covered by solicitor-client privilege.

That's all I can say.

LEE; Okay. So I just want to clarify
this, and perhaps you can answer this, Ms. Kostek.
So Ms. Stewart is not allowed to access all of the
government fecords, only the government records that
Her Majesty the Queen allows her to access?

KOSTEK: That's my understanding.

LEE: Okay. And would that include all
of the documents that are in the government
Supplemental Affidavit of Records?

KOSTEK: The medical records, no, but I --
the records Tisted in C, I have shared with this
witness. So just a second.

LEE: A1T I'm trying to understand 1is,
is she entitled to see all of the records, or is it
at the discretion of Her Majesty the Queen?

KOSTEK: That's correct.

LEE: You're nodding?

KOSTEK: Yes.

LEE: And that's in regard to all of

(CAP|
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1 the documents in Her Majesty the Queen's affidavit
2 of -- Supplemental Affidavit of Records: is that

3 correct?

4 MS. KOSTEK: That's my understanding. So,

5 like, the medical records --

6 MR. LEE: Okay. So what I'm confused

7 about, Ms. Kostek, is as Ms. Stewart is an

8 independent codefendant, why wouldn't she have

9 access to the Supplemental Affidavit of Records or

11:01 10 Affidavit of Records of any litigant? I'm a

11 Tittle -- I'm a Tittle confused here.

12 MS. KOSTEK: Yeah, I can't really get into
13 that. I can discuss that with you separately.
14 MR. LEE: Okay.

15 Q. So you have seen this document recently,

16 Ms. Stewart? This Sharon Heron 1999 memo?

17 A. Yes. _

18 Q. Okay. Can you just tell me the date that you saw

19 this memo. Recently?

11:01 20 A. Within the last month.

21 Q. Okay. And prior to that, when was the last time you

22 saw this memo?

23 A. I don't remember.

24 Q. Would it have been more than five years ago?
25 A. Yes.

26 Q. More than ten years ago?

27 A. That -- I don't know after that.

=
X

‘f'




11:02

11:03

39

JACQUELINE ARLENE STEWART
Questioned remotely by Mr. Lee

1 Q. Okay. When did you start working for the
2 children's advocate?
3 A. In 2006.
4 Q. Have you seen this document after 20062
5 A. I don't know.
6 Q. Was it a policy from 1985 to present to ensure that
7 foster children --
8 A. Sorry. When you asked the question, did I see this
9 document after 2006, I did about a month ago.
10 Q. Yeah, other than that.
11 A. Okay. No, I haven't seen it since 2006.
12 Q. I might have questioned you on it maybe in 2012.
13 A. That, I don't recall.
14 Q. Okay.
15 A. Maybe. Maybe. I don't remember.
16 Q. Was it the policy from 1985 to present to ensure
17 that foster children knew what their rights were?
18 There is a --
19 Q. Age -- age appropriate.
20 Yes. I don't re -- I don't know the specifics of
21 the policy. There is some policy in place related
22 to children being made aware of rights.
23 Q. Yes. There is no policy to keep things a secret
24 from foster children, what their rights are; is that
25 correct?
26 A. I'm not aware of any policy.
27 Q. Al right. So, for example, if a child -- if g
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foster child was -- and I don't know. 1I'nm just

using this hypotheticaTTy to explain my question.
Hypothetically, if g foster child was entitled

to $10,000 for braces or dental work, there was no

policy to keep that g secret from the child to save

the $10,000 in dental costs; is that correct?

I'm not aware of any policy 1ike that.

In fact, that would be contrary to the principles of

the Child Welfare Act to act in the best interests

of the child; is that correct?

Yes.

Was it a practice and policy of Child Welfare from

1985 to present to make all decisions in the best

interests of the foster child?

It's -- it has been a principle or practice to act

in the best interests of the child.

Okay. After 1999, was it the policy of T,

Child Welfare to keep it a secret from iand

other foster children that foster children under

temporary guardianship order and permanent

guardianship order might have the right to have some

part of the government to assist them with civil

claims against the Department of Chiid Welfare?

I'm not aware of 3 policy or practice like that.

After 1999, was there a policy or pract1ce in

Child Welfare to keep it a secret from ‘and

other foster children that foster children under TGO

s
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and PGO might have the right to have the director of
Child Welfare to assist them with civil claims
against the Department of Child Welfare?

I'm not a -- I'm not aware of a policy or practice
in that area.

Was there -- after 1999, was there -- was it the
policy and practice in Child Welfare to Keep it a
secret from* and other foster children that
foster children under TGO and PGO might have the
right to have the district manager assist the
director of Child Welfare to assist the foster
children with civil claims against the department of
Child Welfare?

I'm not aware of a policy or practice 1ike that.
Was it the policy or practice after 1999 in

Child Welfare to Keep it a secret from _and
other foster children to know what kind of medical,
psychological, and dental treatment that they were
entitled to receive?

I'm not aware of a policy or practice like that.
After 1999, was it the policy or practice 1n _
Child Welfare to keep it a secret from ‘ and
other foster children to know the details of the
assistance that they might be entitled to when they
had had a potential civil claim?

I'm not aware of a policy or practice 1ike that.

After 1999, was it the policy or practice in

\
|
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Child Welfare to keep it a secret from and
other foster children to know the details of the
assistance that they might be entitled to when they
had a potential civil claim against the

Alberta Government?

I'm not aware of a policy or practice in that area.
After 1999, was it the policy or practice in _
Child Welfare to keep it a secret from ‘ and
other foster children to know the process for
requesting to have their legal fees paid to
prosecute a civil claim?

I'm not aware of a policy or practice in that area.
After 1999, was it the policy or practice in

Child Welfare to keep it a secret from “and
other foster children to know the process of
requesting to have their legal fees paid to
prosecute a civil claim against the government?

I'm not aware of a policy or practice in that area.
After 1999, was there a difference in the policy or
practice regarding the manner in which Child Welfare
was to help foster children with potential civil
actions against third parties, as compared to the
manner that Child Welfare would assist foster
children with potential civil actions against the
Alberta Government?

I'm not aware.

After 1999, was there any difference in the policy

wiz)
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JACQUELINE ARLENE STEWART
Questioned remotely by Mr. Lee

1 the government had a duty to help the

2 foster children to sue.

3 Q. MR. LEE: Ms. Stewart, you're responsible
4 for the records and knowing whether documents are

5 privileged or not privileged.

6 MS. KOSTEK: Well, no. That's counsel that's
7 responsible for whether it's privileged or not

8

9

0

privileged.

MR. LEE: She's signs the affidavit. You

11:50 1 don't sign the affidavit, Ms. Kostek. She might

11 have a claim against her counsel, but she's the one

12 that signs the affidavit.

13 Q. So there were communications happening in the

14 mid-1980s between the public trustee, Child Welfare,

15 and Alberta Justice about who should be suing for

16 foster children. Were you aware of this? And when

17 I say "were you aware of this," before 2005.

18 Were you aware that in the mid-1980s, these

19 conversations had been taking place between the
11:861 20 public trustee, Child Welfare, and Alberta Justice?

21 A. I don't recall.

22 Q. Who was involved in the communications? Do you know

23 the names of the people that were involved in the
24 communications? The departments that were involved
25 in the communications?

26 A. I don't know.

27 Q. And who initiated the communications?

]
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I don't know.

So you don't know if they're privileged, do you?

I think privilege is a legal concept, and I am not a
lawyer to make that assessment.

Do you know what was the purpose of the
communications?

I don't know.

Do you know why the communications might be
privileged?

I don't know.

Do you know what the privilege is?

No.

Was the purpose to determine the proper
interpretation of the legislation so that the proper
part of the government carried out the duties of the
guardian of foster children and the proper part of
the government carried out the duties of the trustee
of foster children? Was that the purpose of these
communications?

I don't know.

Was the purpose so that the government would know
what their duties were and they could keep it secret
from foster children?

I don't know.

So that's possible?

No, I didn't say that's possible. I said I didn't

know.

[ wiz)
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MS. KOSTEK: There was no hiding.
MR. LEE: Let's just take a short break. I

find your comments to be quite infuriating when your
client concealed the most important records, the
most Qg]evant, the most inculpatory records related
to '_s allegations of failure to sue and
breach of fiduciary duty: and then you want to try
to use that concealment to prevent further and

complete questioning.

MS. KOSTEK: That is inaccurate.

A. How Tong is our break?

MS. KOSTEK: Let's take ten minutes.

[ADJOURNMENT]

Q. MR. LEE: Ms. Stewart, you
acknowledge you're stil] under oath?

A. Yes. ) —
After‘-was assaulted by Mr. MﬂTar,'ﬁ
wanted to know if he was entitied to have his legal
fees paid by the government.

Was there a policy or practice from 2000 to
2004 to keep it a secret from foster children which
part of the government would facilitate foster
children's potential lawsuits?
I'm not aware of that.
Q. Was there a policy or practice in place 1in

Child Welfare from 2000 to 2004 to keep it a secret
from foster children who they should apply to in the

Wiz
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government to have their legal fees paid?

I'm not aware of that.

Was there a policy or practice in place from 2000 to
2004 in Child Welfare to treat children with
potential Tawsuits against the government
differently from foster children with potential
lTawsuits against nongovernment-related defendants?
I'm not aware of that.

And this is, 1in particular, in relation to their
request for legal fees to be paid?

Again, I'm -- no, I'm not aware of that.

Do you know if policy or practice -- when a child
wanted to have their legal fees paid, was that an
internal administrative decision that would be made
by the district manager?

It -- I guess it depended if there was an active
lawsuit or not.

Oh. And how did that change things?

Well, I think, as you've asked me previously and I
noted in the transcript, that when there was an
active lawsuit on -- I beljeve it was“ that
Doug Lewis responded back, because the matter was
already an active lawsuit.

SO -- s0 is -- sorry. So the practice was that if a
foster child had a potential Tawsuit against the
department but the lawsuit had not been started yet,
then Child Welfare would consider paying for the

[ wiz)
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1201 7D Tower, 10088~102 Ave NW, Edmonton, AB, CANADA T5J4K2  «

& 7804233441 @ 780.420)763 www.chmilp.com i

ey
Amanda F. Kostek
Email: akostek@comllp.com
Direct Line (780) 702-2308
Legal Assistant: Marija Grasa

Qur file: 27146-329

March 11, 2021
Via email: allan@garberlaw.ca

Allan Garber
108, 17707 — 105%™ Avenue NW
Edmonton, AB T5S 1T1

Attention: Allan Garber
ALY
Re:  JRs V. Her Majesty the Queen et al

Action No. 0203 09700

I am writing to address Jackie Stewart's prior undertakings. Attached are the Amended Answers. Since Jackie
Stewart is no longer with the Government, she is no longer in a position to search for records. Asa result, we
have consulted with our client directly in terms of getting clarification with respect to your questions and any
outstanding undertakings.

Interms of the clarifications in your February 26, 2021 letter in relation to Undertakings 4 and 7, | will address
them in this letter,

Undertaking 4

On February 26, 2021 you advised that you were seeking any records related to the following with respectto

Undertaking 4. The short answer is that my client has not identified any producible records in relation to your
specific questions,

For ease of reference | have listed each, and our answers are below,

i)
(a) Whether Child Welfare considered the merits of 'ﬁ.s action;

0
Ak

@R s :ction was commenced before this was considered. After HMQ was sued, HMQ became

adverse in interest, and any consideration of this was cloaked in Solicitor Client Privileg:

Vi

Hx
(b) Whether Child Welfare considered if W’ s action might be successful;

See answer to item (a) above,
’_]':’ Wt
(c) Whether Child Welfare considered the amount of compensation G could receive;

r

See answer to item (a) above,

A member of Risk Hanagemen! Cotinssl of Canada
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(d) Whether Child Welfare considereddiilimess ability to retain counsel on an hourly basis or
Vi

on a contingency basis; Y

1N L

Wl s action was commenced before this was considered, Once the claim was commenced,
HMQ's counsel, Ken Holmstrom, asked Mr. Lee to have this addressed in Case Management in his
correspondence of February 13, 2004.

Any other documents related to discussions between HMQ and it's counsel are covered by
solicitor client privilege.

(e) Whether there are records related to the lawyers with the most experience suing;

Tristan’s action was commenced before this was considered. Once the action was commenced
HMQ became adverse in interest, so this was not considered,

(f) Considering the payment of |egal fees and disbursements;

See answer to item (d) above,

(g) Consldering how to avoid a breach of fiduciary duty;

There are no records to produce.

AC:
(h) Considering how to avoid a conflict of interest with
There are no records to produce,
(i) Considering the assistancﬁwouid need from Child Welfare to prosecute a

potential law suit or actual law suit once filed:

This was considered, and all relevant and producible records have been produced. Specifically,
we refer to our producible document C-20.

0 Identifying the suitable next/friend:

This was addressed, and Dean Duckett was retained in this respect. See also our producible
document C-20.

Peter Duckett advises that his file was shredded as it was closed in the early 2000s.
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=

(k) Identifying suitable lawyers for SR

-

v
W s action was commenced before this was considered. Once it was commenced, HMQ was

adverse in interest, and HMQ did not consider seeking alternative counsel.

(1 Paying legal counsel for making zn application for crimes compensation;
K

=M. commended the application before this was considered. The Public Trustee then
addressed the appeal of the award.

Vouax

(m) Paying legal counsel to assist @il to appoint the most suitable next friend;

Dean Duckett was retained for this purpose. Peter Duckett advises that his file was shredded as it
was closed in the early 2000s, No further records are available due to the passage of time.

(n) Paying legal counsel and disbursements for*_to sue the Millers and Child Welfare;

See answer to item (d) above.

(o) Referral to the District Manager for consideration of suing;

I A

S s -ction was commenced before this was considered.

(p) Consulting to determine if it was in i]‘s best interest to commence a law suit;

W5 action was commenced before this was considered.

{a) Collecting Evidence for mtmmmpés ase with the dominant purpose of litigation;

Evidence was collected, and produced throughout this litigation. Further, court appointed experts
were obtained in order to preserve evidence.

{r) Considering whether Tomlinson or Lee should be next Friends and Virginia May as legal
counsel;

This was not considered. Mr. Lee was already counsel, and ultimately Gerald Robertson became
the Next Friend.

Pt ;

(s) Considering whether Sl was part of the Tomlinson case:

Too much time has passed to determine if this was considered. No records have been identified.
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T-k A
(t) Applying to dismiss the Tomlinson case and allowing (e to prosecute the claim
himself after he turns 18; and

Seeitem (s) above.
‘f'/"\,.r.\_'_.
(u) Opposing payment of any legal fees in relation to@umm’s part of the Thomlinson law

suit,

See item (s) above.

Undertaking 7

In terms of Undertaking 7, that related to documents produced in the original Affidavit of Records. On
February 26, 2021 you advised that you were seeking to know whether the list of people you provided have
any documents related to exhibits you provided in 2021. This could not have been the undertaking originally
asked, and appears to be a new request for information.

The list is extensive, and at least some of the individuals are no longer with the Government, and at least
one person has died. My client is making best efforts to determine if anyone on the list is still with the
government, and to the extent they are, will follow up. However, we are treating this as a new request for
information given the foregoing.

Yours truly,

CHOMIC RIL MAH
Per:

AMANDA F. KOSTEK

Ces Damian Shepherd Via email: dshepherd@cbmllp.com




AMENDED Answers to Undertakings Requested of Jackie Stewart

1. To ask Doug Lewis for any document relevant to be provided in an Affidavit of Records as they
relate to Paragraph 24 of the Statement of Claim. (Under Advisement)

Answer:

Doug Lewis is a lawyer at Alberta Justice. He does not have any records in his

personal possession related to paragraph 24 of the Statement of Claim.

e

2. Toinquire of Child Welfare for any documents related to _’5 request for legal fees to be
paid. (Under Advisement.)

Answer:

Please find enclosed letters exchanged concerning legal fees.

3. Provide all documents in relation to Child Welfares actions that it took in requesting a next
friend.

Answer: Refused on the Record on the basis that they are already public record, or
covered by Litigation Privilege.

4. Produce internal records that relate to Child Welfare’s role as guardian. (Under Advisement.)

Answer: Refused. This undertaking is too broad. If you have a specific record you are
looking for, please advise.

On February 26, 2021 you advised that you were seeking any records related to specific
questions you identified with respect to Undertaking 4. No producible records have been
located with respect to your specific questions.

5. Number Documents (Under advisement)

Answer: The records are already numbered.




6. Advise if file provided includes working notes of member of special case review.

Answer: The complete file was produced in the original Affidavit of Records, and the
documents speak for themselves. This is Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Alberta’s complete
file, and Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Alberta has not located any other notes, whether
working notes or otherwise.

7. Ask people CC'd if they have documents in their own file relevant to the lawsuit (Under
Advisement.)

Answer: This is simply too broad. You need to specific exactly what records you want us
to ask about and what specific individuals you want us to follow up with.

On February 26, 2021 you advised that you were seeking to know whether the list of people you
provided have any documents related to exhibits you provided in 2021. This could not have
been the undertaking originally asked, and appears to be a new request for information, which
is being followed up on.

’J’\L.\-’
8. To produce document indicating who CEO was of Ma’Mowe Region from date of fijsmmw’s birth
until date Statement of Claim was issued. (Under Advisement)

Answer: On October 4, 2004 Ken Holmstrom advised that Steve Brown was the CEO.

We view this undertaking to be complete.




Undertaking 2- Jackie Stewart’s examination
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CHOMICKI BARIL, MAH 1LLp 291 Gresr

3 BARRISTERS AND SOLICITORS
ALBERTA JDSTH
‘4t A29-2447
Bt o W MWD 56 e 7 421743
10060 Jaspsr Avanue www.chimiip.com
Edmonton, Albarta, Cansda T5J 4K2
E-mail: kholmstror@cbmilp.com
Direet telephone #: 702-2313
Tune 4, 2003
Oy file: 27,146-329/KAH
Yonr file: 8962
“Viag Fax #436-77717
ROBERT P. LEE
Barrister and Solicitor
7904~ 10314 Strest
EDMONTON, AB T6E 6C3
Dear Sir:
R A MA E QUR al

1 refer to your letter of May 28th, 2003,

I am instructed to advise you that Mr. Lewis is not the person who is to respond to yout requests, My review
of the government policies does not provids any obligation on the part of the Crown to pay the legal fees in
the manner you have requested them, It seems to me this is a matter that requires an appropriate court
application, with appropriate documentary evidence and appropriate compliance with the Rules of Court, if
you feel this is something your client should pursue. Maybe it is something you will raise at the Cage
Management mesting so some timelines can be set, with the appropriate indication of notice that is going to
be required 1o the appropriste governmental department. .

Yours truly,
CHOMICKI BARIL MAH LLP

Pers  KENNETH A. HOLMSTROM
{H@m;! i1 the writer’s ahsence to avoid delay)
KAH/st




ROBERT P, LEE+, ss.us

Barrister & Salicitor

Old Strathcona Law Offices-

# Independent Lawyers associated for the practice of Law,
1 Denates Professional Corporation

¥ Student-at-Law

Gary A. Dlin, Q.C. Robert P, Leet 7904 — 103 Sirest
Darrel B, Harkert Blair Geigert Edmonton, Alberta
Barry Besmant Uwe Welzt T6R 6C3
Andrew Zebak Robert Kassian Phone: (780) 438-4972
Daniel G. Segal Ronald A. Morin Fax: (780) 436-7771
Faye Emmanue**

Our File: 8962 January 26, 2004

Your File: 27,146-329/KAH

Attention: Ken Holmstrom
Chomicki Baril

2101 Scotia 2

10060 Jasper Ave,
Edmonton, AB T5] 4K2
Fax: 420-1763

Dear Sir;
S T
Re: 8y v. Evans & HMTOQ

Please be advised that Gerald Robertson has retained me to rcpresent*t in this law suit, I
am now acting on his instructions.

At the last Court appearance, I brought up the issuc of the Crimes Compensation application that must
be conducted on "s behalf.

A4
Could you please askm s uardzan if he/she would consent to allowing Gerald Robertson to be
the Litigation Guardian, fo in the Crimes Compensation application. This would include the
power to appoint counsel to make the application and to use the materials that he receives in the law
suit for the purpose of the Crimes Compensation application. It may also require the need to retain
medical experts to provide medical opinions to the Crimes Compensation Board.
Could you also ask Se's Guardian if he/she is willing to pay for Tigm's legal fees and
disbursements in this law suit. It is my client’s position that as the legal guardian, that Child Welfare
has an obligation to pay '_ s legal fees and d:shursements &

AT e

I would be prepared to d1scuss these issues with SSlBR's Guardian or counsel for"s Guardian,
If us Guardian and my client caunot come {o a mutual agresment on these issues, [ have
instructions to make the necessary Court applications,
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ROBERT P. LEEY, pa, w0

Barrister & Solicitor

Ol Strathcona Law Offices-

* Independent Lawyers associated for the practice of Law,
t Denotes Professiénal Corporation

& Student-at-Law X

Gary A. Dlin, Q.C. Roberl P, Leet 7904 — 103 Street
Darrel B. Harkert Blalr Gelgert Edmonton, Alberta -
Barry Bermant Uwe Welzf TEE 6C3
Andrew Zehak Robert Kassian Phone: (780) 438-4972
Daniel G, Sepal Romnald A, Morin Fax: (780) 436-7771
Faye Emmanue]**

Qur File: 8962 : Feb 1, 2004

Your File: 27,146-329/KAH

Attention: Ken Holmsirom
Chomicki Bari} )
2101 Scotia 2 ‘
10060 Jasper Ave,

. Edmonton, AB, T5] 4K2

Fax: 420-1763

Dear Sir;

Re: WSy, Evans & HMTQ

Please advise me if you have spoken with your client about payment of “TREmiliammn' s loge] foos and
disburspmeuts. This is an important and preliminary matter that must be dealt with by Professor
Robertson on behalf of T

1 also need your client’s position on the Crimes Compensation application.

1 will have my secretary contact your secretary for the examination of Jackie Stewart on her Affidavit
af Records,

Barrister & Solicitor

cc. Gerald Robertson Fax: 492-4924
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ROBERT P. LEEY, s.0.00
Barrister & Sollcitor

Ol Strathcona Law Offices-

* Indepeadent Lawyers associated for the ptactice of Law,
{ Denotes Professional Carporation

¥ Student-AtLaw 04 103 Steet
Gary A. Dlin, Q.C. Robert P, Leet Edmanlon, Alberia
Darzel B, Harkert Blair Guigert T6r 603
Barry Bermang Uwe Welzf Phzoes (180) 438-4072
Andrew Zebak Robrtt Kassian Fux. {780) 436777}
Daniel 0. Sepal Faye Emmuonusle#

Ronsld A, Motin

Our File: 8952 Februaoy 10, 2604
Your File:

Doug Lewis

Alberta Justice

Civil Law Branch

9" Floar, 10011 - 109 Street
Edmonton, AB T35 388
Fax: 427-1230

URGENT

Dear Sir: _
Fie: TS
PAYMENT OF LEGAL FEES AND DISBURSEMENTS,

Further to my previous correspondence, [ believe that T stil] have ot receivind yiur decisiun regarding
the paymant of W ’s fcgal fess and dishursements for his lavy suit sgaitist the Millers and Child
Welfare et al. Ibetievs chat Ty client initially applied on March 11, 2009 for shess fecs o be patd and
1 have sent numerous follow up letters, Alinost | year bas passed and I my client has still not received
aveply to his application,

Could I plsase have a reply or an indication of wher: 2 reply will be given by Friday Fabruary 13, 2004.

11 do not hear from you & il seek instructions to apply for mandamus for a decision 16 be made.

Barrister & Solicitor

oo, Gerald Robertson Fax: 402-4924

Tesl8'd 1444 S8 p8L 331450 My ENOOMLIENLE a0 6T PEAZ-B1-a34
Tddd, oy @R
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CHOMICKI BARIL, MAH 1LLP

BARRISTERS AND SOLICITORS
2101 Seotla 2 Telephone {780) 423.3441
Scotia Placs Fax (780) 420-1763
10080 Jasper Avenus www.cbmllp.com
Edmonton, Alberta, Canada T5J aK2 g
Email: kholmstrom@cbmiip.com
Direct telephone #: 702-2313
February 13th, 2004
Our file: 27,146-329/KAH
Your file: 8962
“Via Fax # 436-7771»
ROBERT P. LEE
Barrister and Solicitor
7904 — 1031d Street
EDMONTON, AB T6E 6C3
Dear Sir;
o Srasin HER THE QUEEN et al.

T'am responding to your letter of January 26th, 2004, as well as your letter of February 10th, 2004 to Doug
Lewis,

First, in respect of the January 26th Tetter, if I understand what Justice Macklin said, you have to bring a
separate application if you want Gerald Robertson to be the Litigation Guardian in respect of any action in
tespect of the Crimes Compensation Board, 1suggest to you it is inappropriate to come back to me and ask
me to have someone at Family and Social Services deal with this matter, as well as dealing with payment of
the legal fees., That all has to be dealt with through the court process, and since Professor Robertson is not

even the Litigation Guardian of @@ in the crimes compensation matter, I take the view that your inquiry
is premature. | L

Secondly, in respect of the comments I have made in coutt regarding efforts to try to find 2 solution, our
Statement of Defence remains as indicated. In terms of any efforts that are going to be made on a “without
prejudice” basis to move this matter along to an early conclusion, that is something that is always on my
mind as defence counsel, and T am entitled to make those representations to the court. IfIam reading J }ti}ge
Macklin correctly, I think he is encouraging both you and T to come fo that point with respect to @liile’s

claim. My goal is to address the application of Rule 218 very shortly, and then to move the matter to further
Case Management in that regard.

Third, in respect of scheduling Examinations for Discovery of Jackie Stewart, you have given me some days
that do not work, Ihave some time in May, and I think we can work towards that aspect, Hopefully we can

have Case Management in advance of that date and see if we can address some of the issues that will
otherwise bring this matter to a conclusion,

A member of Risk Management Counsel of Canada




ROBERT P, LEE
Barrister and Solicitor

Now, I tutn to the letter of February 10th, 2004 directed to Doug Lewis, I have been asked to respond to you.
L attach at this time my letter of June 4th, 2003, as well asa copy of your draft letter to Justice Macklin dated
June 4*11, 2003, Funding was an issue was raised in those letters, to be dealt with in our litigation. It seems
to me that any applications you may wish to bring regarding this matter have to be brought in this action
before Justice Macklin, at the next Case Management meeting, What you are alleging back as against Mr,
Lewis regarding “mandamus” is not appropriate, and you are not in a position to proceed in that regard, As
you know, Gerald Robertson as Litigation Guardian, is accountable to the court in this matter, for the best
interests of gy, Pethaps when we have our next Case Management meeting you can address the legal

fees at that point, while we are also addressing the expert reports and where we go from here in terms of
trying to find a solution for this claim,

Yours truly,

CHOMICKI BARIL MAH LLP

Per: KENNETH A, HOLMSTROM
{signed in the writer's absence to avoid delay)
KAH/st Enclosures
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ROBERT P. LEET, sa, L.

Barrister & Solicitor

Old Strathcona Law Offices-

* Independent Lawyors associated for the practice of Law.
+ Denotes Professional Corporation

fok Student-ar-Law
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Our File: 8962 April 1, 2004

Your File; 27,146-329/KAH

Attention: Ken Holmstrom
Chomticki Baril

2101 Scotia 2

10060 Jasper Ave.
Edmonton, AB TAJ 4K2
Fax: 420-1763

Dear Sir:
s

Re: _v Evans & HMTQ

An article in today’s newspaper quotes Lorelei Fiset-Cassidy, spokesperson for Child Welfare as
saying that “we (child welfare) has a process in place for taking action on behalf of children in our
care”,

Please provide me with details of this process for taking action on behalf of children in the care of
Child Welfare as part of your affidavit of records.

Could 1 also please have a reply to my client’s request to have his legal fees paid. Mr, Robertson has
given me instructions to seck payment of the legal fees for the law suit.

Iwould also like to know if it is part of the process that Ms, Fiset-Cassidy refers to, that Child Welfare
refuses to provide any information and any answers to the request for payment of legal fees? Please
provide me with disgfoure on this issue as well,

cc. Gerald Robetrtson Fax; 492-4924
18,78'd  TlLlA SSb @84 301440 MU BNODHLLNIS a0 91:LT  PEBE-TE-NdY
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Barrister & Solicitor

Old Strathcona Law Offices+

# Independent Lawyers assoeiated for the practice of Law.

+ Denotes Professional Corporation

#* Shudent-at-Law

Gary A, Dlin, Q.C, Robort P, Leet 7904 - 103 Strost
Damel B. Harkerf Blair Geigerf Edmonton, Alberta
Barry Bermany Twe Welzf TGE 6C3
Andrew Zebak Robert Kassian Phone: (730) 438-4972
Danlel G. Begal Ronald A, Morin Fax: (780) 436-7771
Faye BEmmanuel™*

Our File: 8962 April 7, 2004

Your File: 27,146-329/KAH

Attention: Ken Holmstrom
Chomicki Baril

2101 Scotia 2

10060 Jasper Ave.
EBdmonton, AB T57J 4K2
Fax: 420-1763

Dear Sir!

Re: ‘Pv Evans & HMTQ

i

T
Could we please have a reply to our request for THllagINGENY s [ogal fecs and disbursements to be
paid by his guardian, Child Welfare. Iwould appreciate a response by the end of the week.

Could you also ask your client fo reconsider it's position to consent to Professor Robertson to be the
Litigation Guardian for the Ctimes Compensation application. I see no need to be forced to make an
application over this issue.

Barrister & Solicitor

ce. Cerald Robertson Fax: 492-4924
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ROBERT P. LEEf, 54,10,
Barrister & Solicitor

Ol Strathcona Law Offices:

* Independent Lawyers associated for the practice of Law,
T Denotes Professionel Corporation

¥ Student-at-Law

Gary A, Dlin, Q.C. Robert P, Leet 7904 — 103 Strovt
Darrel B, Harkert Blair Geigert Edmonton, Alberta
Barry Bermant Uwe Welzt T6E 6C3
Andrew Zebak Robert Kassian Phone: (780} 438-4972
Daniel G. Segal Ronald A, Morin Fax: (780) 436-7771
Faye Emmanuel¥*

Our File: 8962 April 15, 2004

Your File: 27,146-329/K A1

Attention: Ken Holmstrom
Chomicki Baril

2101 Scotia 2

10060 Jasper Ave.
Edmonton, AB T5J 4K2
Fax: 420-1763

With Prejudice
URGENT

Dear Sir:
Re: VIOLATION OF T.W.’s LEGAL RIGHTS

Further to my numerous letters. Could we please have a reply to our request for T.W.’s legal foes i
disbursements to be paid by his guardian, Child Welfare, I asked fora response by April 12, and did
not receive one, I would appreciate 2 response by noon on April 19.

Your client has besn telling the media that Child Welfare pays for a child’s lawyer when it is
appropriate, It would seem to be completely appropriate for T,W.’s legal fees to be paid, T.W. was
brain injured by his foster father. Child Welfare does not deny the brain injury by the foster father in
it’s statement of defence. It would ssem to be appropriate for T.W.’s legal fees to be paid by his
guardian, Child Welfare,

If your client’s public comments are true, I do not understand why T,W’s legal fees are not being paid
and I do not understand why it is taking so long to receive an answer to this simple request,

Could you also ask your client ta reconsider it’s position to consent to expand the role of the litigation
guardian fo include applying under the Victims,of Crime Aot. I see no need to be forced to make an
application over this issue, Itis clearly in Sllatas’'s best interests. It is also a waste of Court resources
and the tax payers money to force me to make a Court application over this simple issue. Please
respond by noon on April 19,
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T.W.’s legal interests are being violated by the delay in your client responding to simple requests,

Barrister & Solicitor

ce. litigation guardian

TTal P_.a2
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CHOMICKI BARIL, MAH LLP

BARRISTERS AND SOLICITORS
2101 Scotla 2 Telephons (780} 423-3441
Scotla Place Fax {780) 420-1763
10080 Jasper Avenue www.chmllp.com
Edmonion, Alberta, Canada T5J 4K2
E-mail: kholmstrom@cbmllp.com
Direct telephone #: 702-2313
April 19, 2004
FAX MESSAGE
Our file: 27,146-329/KAH PN . '
i 5 : obert Les
Your file: 8562 FAX #: 780-436-7771
This message is intended ONLY for the use of the
addressee and may contain information that is privileged
and confidential. If you are not the Intended recipient, you
are hereby notified that any dissemination of this
ROBERT P. LEE communication is strictly prohibited, If you recelve this
Barrister and Solicitor communication in error, please notify us immediately by
7904 — 103" Street Hisshices:
EDMONTON, AB T6E 6C3 EIGHT pages are being forwarded. Please call Donna at
423-3441, If you do not recelve It in its entirety. Originals:
Dear Sir: RETAINED ON FILE
' A
Re: _ *¥ . HER MAJESTY THE QUEEN et al,

My letter of February 13, 2004 deals with your recent various letters as to legal fees and being litigation
guardian in the Victim of Crime Act. There is nothing more o add to that letter.

Yours truly,
CHOMICKI BARIL MAH LLP
Per: /KENNETH A'HOLMSTRO

;_x

A member of Risk Management Counse! of Canada
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LAWYERS

Our file: 27146-329

March 11, 2021
Allan Garber

108, 17707 - 105 Avenue NW
Edmonton, AB T5S 1T1

Attention: Allan Garber

—{ ()
WWewee. Her Majesty the Queen et al
Action No. 0203 09700

Re:

1201 TD Tower, 10088-102 Ave NW, Eclmonton, AB, CANADA
7804233441 &780.4201763 www.chmilp.com

T5J 4KK2

Amanda F. Kostek

Email: akostek@ cbmilp.com
Direct Line (780} 702-2308
Legal Assistant: Marija Grasa

Via email: allan@garberlaw.ca

Please find attached the Answers to Undertakings of Ms. Kelly Besler.

Yours truly,

CHOMICKI BARIL MAH LLP

Per: P
' f’_,M
J Vs -

3

Mt

,’j - 4 / . il
Pt I
AMANDA F. KOSTEK

ce: Damian Shepherd

Via email: dshepherd@chmlip.com -

CHOMICK! BARIL MAH LLP - A member of Bisk Hanagement Counsel of Canata




Answers to Undertakings of Kelly Besler

1. To advise and provide all the facts about why the government has provided additional
documents that are relevant to the topic of failing to sue or failing to protect legal rights of
children under permanent guardianship orders in other lawsuits and have not provided them
in this lawsuit, which the officer knows or must properly inform herself of. {Refused)

Answer: Refused on the record.

To advise when Lorraine Mytikiuk was Florence Chung’s supervisor

Answer: Lorraine Mytikiuk was her supervisor at the time of her Questioning, and

remained so from April 1, 2003 to December 1, 2005. -

3. To provide the name of the Person or persons who are responsible for:

Making decisions with regard to the defence of this lawsuit (Refused)

Answer: Refused.

Making decisions with regard to assisting [l anat .y in prosecuting this lawsuit
(Under Advisement)

Answer: Gerald Robertson, Litigation Guardian, pursuant to Justice Macklin’s Order,
lanuary 14, 2004. Gerald Robertson was ultimately replaced by a subsequent Litigation
Guardian.

T

A4

Assisting " in protecting his legal rights (Under Advisement)

Answer: Gerald Robertson Litigation Guardian, pursuant to lustice Macklin’s Order,
January 14, 2004. Gerald Robertson was ultimately replaced by a subsequent Litigation
Guardian,

Deciding whether or not to make a Crimes Compensation Board application on behalf

of TRenJNNNF (Under Advisement)
Ty

T

Answer: Jimuiiy according to her March 6, 2003 Affidavit, deposed that she
applied for the Victims of Crime compensation. The Public Trustee applied for a review
of the decision.
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On December 12, 2005 SNEPEEN— \as awarded $36,500 under the Victims of Crime
Act. This was appealed by the Public Trustee on behalf of”, and on June
19, 2007 the award was increased to $83,500. "/

.~ To provide all of the facts with regard to that new policy and all of the underlying documents

as well that went into the creation of that policy (Refused) — Agreed to provide policy from
August 2005 only.

Answer: The policy with respect to suing from children in care as it existed from 2005 to
2011 has already been produced.

To advise and provide all of the facts about the policies that Child Welfare has had after the
Blood decision of Justice Slatter from that point to the present time with regard to what is to
be done when a child who is under a permanent guardianship has a potential civil claim (Under
Advisement)

Answer: This question is too broad. The Policy was revised in 2005. Revisions to Section
8.2 Legal Representation for a Child in a Civil Claim were made October 1, 2011
and January 13, 2020.

To find out if Susan Rankin has a function to sue Child Welfare (Refused)

Answer: Refused on the record.

| ‘_L
(a) To find out was NSNS YEEEENs case referred to Susan Rankin for consideration as to

protection of his legal rights for a Crimes Compensation Board Application

Answer: Too much time has passed to determine if this referral was made.

(b) And, if not, advise why it was not referred to Susan Rankin {Under Advisement)

Answer: See answer to 7(a).

To advise why it was the policy of Child Welfare to assist children in prosecuting cases against
Child Welfare to refer it to Susan Rankin whose job description was to defend lawsuits, not to
prosecute them {Refused).

Answer: Refused on the record.
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10.

11.

12.

(]

To ask Mr. Bertsch if the policy was thatﬁ’s case was supposed to be referred to
Susan Rankin (Under Advisement)

B3

Answer: Darryl Bertsch no longer works with the Government of Alberta, and has no
recollection of the policy in place at the time, and has no recollection of <

g o' his claim.

T

To advise if in the course of this examination it is later determined that an answer given was
not correct.

Answer: Should something be identified that was answered in error, we will advise.

To advise and provide all of the facts about what happens when it is determined after a special
case review that a worker has made mistakes (Under Advisement)

Answer: This question is too broad. To the extent that you are seeking information on the
process and results from a Special Case Review, please refer to the
Memorandum, dated October 26, 2000, located at our document 210141, which
outlines the process of Special Case Reviews.

(a) To advise whether in general the Public Trustee is notified of a special case review (Under
Advisement)

Answer; Given the passage of time we are unable to determine whether the Public Trustee
was notified of a special case review for” at the time.

(b) To advise whether in general the Public Trustee is notified if negligence or wrongdoing has
been found as a result of a special case review (Under Advisement)

Answer: This is too broad. To the extent that this relates to *, please see
answer to undertaking 12(a).

(c) To advise whether in general the Public Trustee is notified if negligence is found outside of a
special case review {Refused)

Answer: Refused on the record.




13. To advise and provide all the facts with regard to whether child welfare workers are advised
that special case reviews are confidential and will not be disclosed to third parties, which the
officer knows or must properly inform herself of (Under Advisement)

=
1

Answer: This is too broad. To the extent that this question relates to T, yes, child
welfare workers involved in‘-;‘s Case Review were advised that Special Case
reviews were for Internal Use only. The report was marked “For Internal Use Only
Do not copy-do not circulate”

14, To advise whether the workers involved i_'s case were told that the special case review
would be confidential and not disclosed (Under Advisement)

Answer: Please refer to the answer to Undertaking #13.

15. To advise whether child welfare workers are less likely to be honest and to tell the truth when
they know that a special case review may become public {Refused)

Answer: Refused on the record.

16. To advise if counsel for Child Welfare has ever made submissions to the Court advising the Court
that if special case reviews are made public that child welfare workers will not be as honest and
forthcoming in giving answers during special case review (Refused).

Answer: Refused.

A

17. To advise if Bob Rechner was a review board member or if he had any participation in the Q"
“FESEE case.

Answer: Bob Rechner was part of the Chair Review Board. Bob Rechner participated as
the Children’s Advocate.

18. To advise if in general when policies are created that there are underlying documents, memos,
reports that are created before the policy is instituted (Refused)

Answer: Refused on the record.
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18. To advise if the government knew that Sseen could sue Mr. Millar after October 22™ of 2000,

and when did they know.

Answer: The Government knew tham could sue Mr. Millar after October 22,
2000. The government knew‘ could sue Mr. Millar once it was determined
that Mr. Millar had assaulted W, and thasReemn had suffered injuries as a

result. -

A

20. To advise if the government knew that @ could appiy to the Crimes Compensation Board

21,

22,

23.

for the assault by Mr. Millar, and when did they know.

Answer: See answer to undertaking 19.

-

| \A )
To advise and provide all the facts if on the dates that the government knew thath—
could sue Mr. Millar whether the government frontline worker, child welfare worker, Ms.
Chung, or her manager at the time, or the regional managey, or anyone else in the government
considered whether it was in the best interests of m:: commence a lawsuit
against Mr. Millar on that day or at any time after that day, which the officer knows or must
properly inform herself of (Under Advisement)

Answer: This question is too broad.

Ms. Chung was examined and her evidence on this issue is available at page 18
of her Examination transcript onward. She-testified that this was not within her
area of responsibility. She took over asw worker in June, 2001. All her
notes are in the Children’s services file, which has been produced.

1
To advise if on the date that the government knew tham could sue Mr. Milar,
whether the government frontline worker, child welfare worker, Ms. Chung, or her manager at
the time, or the regional manager, or anyone else in the government considered whether it was
in the best interests of TSNS o commence a lawsuit against Child Welfare for
negligence or vicarious liability on that day or at any time after that day, which the officer knows
or must inform herself of (Under Advisement)

Answer: This question is too broad, and largely a duplicate of undertaking 21.

To investigate and provide all of the facts regarding the Blood decision of Justice Slatter and the
government advising the Court that Child Welfare or the Public Trustee’s Office would
communicate with each other to determine who would undertake the responsibility to
commence legal proceedings for children in care, which the officer knows or must inform herself
of {Refused)



Answer: Refused on the record.

=T

24. To advise if after November 3™, 2004 Child Welfare considered providing payment 0 Gy

25,

26.

27.

e lawyer for prosecuting’ -’s lawsuit against Mr. M@y and against Child

Welfare {Under Advisement).

Answer: Refused. Any discussions are covered by solicitor client privilege.

A,

}\

To advise if after November 3™, 2004 Child Welfare considered their responsibilities to Vil

agemmls to apply to the Crimes Compensation Board on behalf of “ {Under

Advisement)

Answer: “‘Sagpilmmmerhad already applied for Victims of Crime compensation by this date,
5o to the extent that you are asking if Child Welfare considered a duplicative
application, no, no duplicative application was submitted, because an application
had already been made, which was subsequently appealed by the Public Trustee.

To advise if after November. 37, 2004 Child Welfare considered their obligation to notify the
Public Trustee of“s potential lawsuit and ability to apply to the Crimes
Compensation Board (Under Advisement)

Answer: By this date the Public Trustee was already aware of this matter, and W

already had an active lawsuit and an active application for compensation under
the Victims of Crime legislation. I

‘1 L]

The Public Trustee’s file confirms that I(ellv&- sent a referral memo to the
Public Trustee August 16, 2005, and Suzanne McAfee responded September 16,
2005 declining the referral because the action was already in progress and Gerald
Robertson was the Litigation Representative.

To advise if after November 3™, 2004 Child Welfare had conversations or discussions or
exchanged correspondence with the Public Trustee in relation to the issue of which part of the
government, whether it be the Child Weifare Department or the Public Trustee’s Department
that would have the duty or responsibility to assist children under permanent guardianship
orders to commence lawsuits and to apply for Crimes compensation Board benefits.
J A T
Answer: To the extent that the question relates to il <aaSe alrcady
had an active lawsuit and an active application for compensation under the
Victims of Crime legislation, and therefore, there were no discussions around



28

28.

30.

commencing duplicative actions, or making duplicative applications under the
Victims of Crime legislation.

Please note that the Public Trustee is a corporation sole created under statute,
and is a separate and distinct entity from the Government Defendants listed in
this action.

- To advise if after November 3", 2004 Child Welfare had any discussions or exchanged any
correspondence with the Public Trustee’s Office in relation to whether a child, beingsiulumee

Sy, who was under a permanent guardianship order, and who apparently had a possible
cause of action and a possible claim to the Crimes compensation Board, as to who would assist
e with those applications, whether it would be the Public Trustee’s Office or Child
Welfare (Under Advisement)

Answer: We are unable to answer on behalf of the Public Trustee.

Due to the passage of time it is not possible to determine if any verbal discussions
took place that are not documented in writing.

In terms of written communications, other than whatis already contained in the
Public Trustee’s file, Child Welfare is unable to locate any correspondence
between the Public Trustee’s Office concerning discussing which of them would
assist TREE... \vith initiating an action, or commencing Victims of Crime
compensation after November 3, 2004.

To provide all of the facts about the issue of the discussions, conversations, exchanges of
memorandum or correspondence between the Public Trustee and Child Welfare and the
Children’s Advocate’s Office, if they were involved, with regard to whether the Public Trustee’s
Office or Child Welfare had the responsibility to assist children under permanent guardianship
orders such as“ to apply for Crimes Compensation or advance civil lawsuits,
which the officer knows or must properly inform herself of (Under Advisement)

Answer: This duplicates undertaking 28. See answer to undertaking 28.

In addition, the Children’s Advocate’s file was produced at our document A-8.

To advise and provide all the facts regarding from October of 2000 when ilgms was injured
whether Child Welfare also had discussions with the Children’s Advocate’s Office with regard
to the duty that Child Welfare haq to protect the legal interests of children under permanent
guardianship orders such as m which the officer knows or must properly inform
herself of (Under Advisement)

Answer: In October, 2000 when Sillngmwas injured in care Her Majesty the Queen in Right
of Alberta was investigating what happened. At that point there were no



discussions with the Children’s Advocate’s Office as the investigation was
ongoing.

The Children’s Advocate’s file was produced at our document A-8.

.r‘
M

31. To advise whether Child Welfare was aware that TSP was one of four hundred and
thirty-nine children who were injured in care in the year 2001-2002 (Refused)

Answer: Refused on the record.

32. To advise and provide all of the facts regarding whether Child Welfare was aware that 28
[, e=iiwwwe was one of four hundred and thirty-nine children being referred to in Bob Rechner's
Children’s Advocate’s 2000-2001 Annual Report, which the officer knows or must properly
inform herself of (Under Advisement)
Answer: Child Welfare has no knowledge over whether S BaSI® as one of the 439
children referred to in Bob Rechner’s Children’s Advocate’s 2000-2001 Annual
Report.

33. To advise whether the government was aware that a lawsuit was commenced by Ray Tomlinson
on behalf of four hundred and thirty-nine maltreated children referred to in the Children’s
Advocate Annual Report 2000-2001 of Bob Rechner (Refused)

Answer: Refused on the record.

34. To advise whether the government was aware that Tl aillls was one of these four
hundred and thirty-nine named John Doe plaintiffs that Mr. Tomlinson commenced his lawsuit
regarding (Refused)

Answer: Refused on the record.

35. To advise whether the government opposed the action brought by former Dean Tomlinson
{Refused)

Answer; Refused on the record.



36.

37.

39.

40.

41.

W
To advise whether Child Welfare obtained any independent legal advice for Telmn Wy or
considered whether -!h wanted to participate in the lawsuit brought by former

Dean Tomlinson on behalf of the four hundred and thirty-nine children (Refused)

Answer: Refused on the record.

To advise what steps, if any, the government took to consider whether or not it was beneficial

for Wilimedtsgliamlls to be a participant in the action brought by Ray Tomlinson (Refused)
el
0¥

Answer: Refused on the record.

. To advise what was the motivation for the government to not consider or make inquiries with

regard to TsimNvEmmms potential participation in the Ray Tomlinson lawsuit (Refused)

\

Lab
|

Answer: Refused on the record.

To advise whether the government, the two departments, being the Public Trustee’s
Department and Child Welfare had communications with regard to the Tomlinson legal
procedures (Refused)

Answer: Refused on the record,

To advise and provide all the facts with regard to whether the October of 2000 to the present
date Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Alberta has trained its employees to understand that

the Director of Child Welfare is responsible for being the trustee of the estate of children in
care, which the officer knows or must properly inform herself of (Under Advisement)

Answer: This question is too broad. All documentation with respect to training and
policies has been produced. There is no specific policy or training with respect to
training employees “to understand that the Director of Child Welfare is
responsible for being the trustee of the estate of children in care.”

To advise and provide all the facts with regard to whether from October of 2000 to the present
date the government, Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Alberta, has trained the workers in the
Child Welfare Department or its employees that it is the Public Trustee that is the trustee of the
estate of children under a permanent guardianship order, which the officer knows or must
properly inform herself of (Under Advisement)



42,

43,

44,

45,

10

Answer: This question is too broad. All documentation with respect to training and
policies has been produced. There is no specific policy or training with respect to
training employees that “it is the Public Trustee that is the trustee of the estate
of children under a permanent guardianship order’.

To advise regarding date of oral directive regarding referrals to Public Trustee.

Answer: The date of the oral directive is not available.

To advise and provide all the facts with regard to from October of 2000 to the present time who
was responsible in her Majesty the Queen in Right of Alberta to develop the policies with regard
to protecting the legal interests of children under permanent guardianship orders, which the
officer knows or must properly inform herself of {Under Advisement)

Answer: This is too broad. Policy drafting is not up to one specific person or department.
We have produced the policies in place from the time of injury. We have also
provided the updates and amendments with respect to protecting legal interests
of children in care.

To advise and provide all the facts with regard to during the period of October 2000 until
sometime in the spring of 2005 when an oral directive was made whether the persons in charge
of creating the policy manual for Child Welfare with regard to protecting the legal interests of
children knew that under the Child Welfare Act that the Public Trustee was the trustee of the
estate of children under a permanent guardianship order, which the officer knows or must
properly inform herself of (Under Advisement)

Answer: Refused. Thisis irrelevant.

To advise and provide all the facts with regard to what was the motivation of the people who
were in charge of creating the policy manual with regard to the protection of legal rights of
children under permanent guardianship orders for failing to include in the policy manual that
child welfare workers and managers or the Director of Child Welfare or their delegates should
advise the Public Trustee when a child under a permanent guardianship order may have a cause
of action or application under the Crimes Compensation Board, which the officer knows or must
properly inform herself of (Under Advisement)

Answer: Refused. This undertaking is too broad, and is not answerable due to the passage
of time.
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47.

48.

49,
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To advise and provide all the facts with regard to whethe:: Ms. Chung was the sole person
responsible for making decisions whether to consider if Sainkestty had 2 potential lawsuit
that he might want to pursue or that he had a possible Crimes Compensation Board that he
might want to pursue, which the officer knows or must properly inform herself of (Under
Advisement)

Answer: At Ms. Chung’s Questioning_she, advised that she was responsible for making
decisions in the area of ZueEEN—s’ cducation, and his social and health
development. She further advised that she did not believe making the decision
form asto wfl_ether to sue somebody was within her job description.

Ms. Chung became<Sknilllngy’'s worker in June of 2001 and when she took
over this case, she was not given consideration or instruction to commence legal
proceedings. No steps were taken as the case was already in the hands of
litigation services.

To advise and provide all the facts with regard to the people that did have the responsibility to
consider whether or not ‘should commengce a lawsuit or whether ﬁs case should
be referred to the Public Trustee or whether Sulisben should apply for Crimes Compensation
Board benefits what was the motivation for that person or those persons in failing to do those
things, which the officer knows or must properly inform herself of {Under Advisement)

Answer: This is too broad, and is not answerable due to the passage of time.

To advise and provide all the facts with regard to what discussions did Her Majesty the Queen
in Right of Alberta have with the Children’s Advocate’s Office with regard to the issue of the
protection of legal rights of children under permanent guardianship orders, including who the
people are on behalf of Her Majesty the Queen in right of Alberta and who was spoken to at
the Children’s Advocate’s Office, which the officer knows or must properly inform herself of
{(Under Advisement)

Answer: This is too broad, and is largely duplicative. See underta king 30.

To advise and provide all the facts in relation to the discussions, conversations or exchange of
correspondence between the Children’s Advocate’s Office and Her Majesty the Queen re lating
to the issue of protection of legal rights of children whether recommendations were made by
the Children’s Advocate’s Office with regard to the steps that the government should take to
protect the children’s legal rights, and if there were any, were those suggestions not followed,
and if they were not followed, what was the motivation for not following the recommendations
of the Children’s Advocate if he made any, which the officer knows or must properly inform
herself of (Under Advisement)
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51.

52,

53.

54.

12
Answer: ~ This is too broad, and is largely duplicative. See undertaking 30.

To advise whether the motivation for Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Alberta in terminating
or negotiating the retirement of Bob Rechner related to his urging of the government to
recoghize their legal obligation to protect the legal rights of children under permanent
guardianship orders (Refused)

Answer: Refused on the record.

To review the severance documents with regard to Bob Rechner to determine if there are any
issues in those materials that are relevant to the issue of fraudulent concealment in the lawsuit

of * {Refused)

Answer: Refused on the record.

To advise and provide all the facts with regard to whether in approximately 1994 the Children’s
Advocate Bernd Walter prepared a Children’s Advocate’s report reviewing the Child Welfare
system and in that report did he make recommendations with regard to providing
compensation to children in care who had suffered injuries while in care, which the officer
knows or must properly inform herself of {Refused)

Answer: Refused on the record.

To advise and provide all the facts with regard to what was the motivation of Her Majesty the
Queen in Right of Alberta for failing to accept and implement the recommendations made by
Bernd Wailter in his 1994 Children’s Advocate report regarding providing compensation for
children who were injured while in the care of Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Alberta, which
the officer knows or must properly inform herself of {Under Advisement)

Answer: This question is too broad, and is not answerable given the passage of time.

To advise and provide all the facts with regard to whether Her Majesty the Queen in Right of
Alberta had a formal or informal policy from October 2000 to the present time to never sue
itself on behalf of children who were abused while in the care of the government, which the
officer knows or must properly inform herself of (Under Advisement)

Answer: There was no formal or information policy.




13

55. To advise, if there was no such policy, formal or informal, why Her Majesty the Queen in Right

56

-

57.

58,

59.

of Alberta never sued itself on behalf of a child in care who had a potential lawsuit against Her
Majesty the Queen in Right of Alberta for being abused while in care {Refused)

Answer: Refused on the record.

To advise after the decision of Justice Slatter in the VB case on November 3", 2004 whether Her
Majesty the Queen in Right of Alberta or any employees of Her Majesty the Queen in Right of
Alberta considered Justice Slatter’s decision as it related to Tristan Weaver’s situation (Under
Advisement)

Answer; The VB decision was considered and precipitated a change in policy generally.
The policy from 2005 to the present has already been produced. However, by
the time the VB decision was released <Bgm®8s action was already in litigation,
and any such discussions were in the context of discussions with counsel, and are
therefore subject to solicitor client privilege.

To advise and provide all the facts with regard to why Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Alberta
has three separate systems for children in care to obtain legal representation, what the
motivation is for the different systems to obtain legal representation for children, and if any of
those motivations are in relation to any conflict of interest that Her Majesty the Queen in Right
of Alberta may have with regard to children in their care, which the officer knows or must

properly inform herself of (Under Advisement)

/./'| 3
I\
Answer: This is too broad and goes beyond the scope of i s claim.

To advise and provide all the facts with regard to whether it was the motivation for Child
Welfare to have the Children’s Advocate’s Office report to Child Welfare, rather than the
Legislature, so that the Children’s Advocate’s Office would not be___!ir‘sflependent and, therefore,

cannot assist SeievEBSNRY to advocate independently for NS em's logal rights, which

the officer knows or must properly inform herself of (Under Advisement)

Answer: This question is too broad. There was no motivation as suggested. On April 1,
2012 the Child and Youth Advocate Act was proclaimed, making the Office of the
Child and Youth Advocate an independent office reporting to the Legislature of
Alberta.

To advise and provide all the facts with regard to whether the Ml family was properly
qualified to accept a high needs child such as SN, which the officer knows or must
properly inform herself of. T
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Answer: This question is too broad. To the extent you are asking about the Millar's
training, evidence is produced in our Affidavit of Records A-9 and A-10, the files
surrounding the Millars. Those records confirm that in April 1998, the Millar
family was at the Approved Level and had subsequently moved to the Qualified
Level in or around May 1999. The June 2000 annual evaluation listed the courses
completed by the Millar family.

T e/
was categorized as requiring a Qualified Level foster care and, as
of May 18, 1999, the Millars were at the Qualified Level designation.

To advise and provide all the facts with regard to the times that they were deemed to have two
children in their home and whether they actually had three children in the home, which the
officer knows or must properly inform herself of.

Answer: This question is too broad. Pursuant to the May 18, 1899 annual evaluation the
Millars were to have a maximum of two children in their foster home. The June
19, 2000 annual evaluation indicates that the Millars had two children placed with
them; however, there was a planned 12-day period wherein they have three
children in the home.

To provide all of the information and materials, documents, standards that apply to foster
parents that were given to the Millars, as well as those materials that existed but were not given
to the Millars,

Answer: Due to the passage of time, this undertaking cannot be answered. However, the
Millars files have been produced at our producible documents A-S and A-10.

] s
To advise and provide all the facts about the categorization of @misliag by Child Welifare, Her
Majesty the Queen in Right of Alberta, which the officer knows or must properly inform herself
of.

Answer: Pursuant to the Intake Screening Form completed by Gail Perkins, the B
Placement Guide Score indicated Qualified was requested and that Smmpe ' (5,
W did not require a medical home at the time. Pursuant to their training
certificates as of May 18, 1999, the Millar family was designated as being at the
Qualified Level,

il

To advise and provide all the facts with regard to the level of training required for 7NER's
designation, which the officer knows or must properly inform herself in regard to foster parents
in general and then in particular if the Millars did receive those training requirements.
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Answer: " /25 dlesigned as requiring a Qualified foster home. As noted in
Undertaking #59, the Miilars had received the designation of Qualified in or

around May 1999, Pursuant to an email from Bryan Kelly, located in the
producible records, the Millars took a significant amount of training and met, or
exceeded, the level of requirements they were currently in at the time.

To advise and provide all the facts with regard to whether the monitoring practices of foster
parents changed and was the motivation of changing the monitoring of foster parents due to
the fact that the previous monitoring system was found to be deficient, which the officer knows
or must properly inform herself of (Under Advisement)

Answer: This is not capable of an answer due to the passage of time. We have produced,
at document C-2 the general handbook. The general handbook is updated from
time to time. Her Majesty the Queen is not aware of the monitoring system being

found to be deficient generally from 2000 to the present.

To advise and provide all the facts with regard to whether child welfare workers were trained
or told or advised that when they visit the children that they are to monitor the foster homes,
foster parents, which the officer knows or must properly inform herself of.

Answer: This question is too broad. To the extent See our producible document C-2, CWH-
06-02-03 providing details on Case Management Responsibilities for a child
welfare worker when dealing with a child placed in foster care. Post Placement
responsibilities include intensive support during the first 3 months, as well as a
service plan showing goals and tasks for each person involved, including the
foster parent. DuUring contacts with the child, the parent, and the foster parent,
child welfare workers are directed to address various topics including topics
pertaining to foster parentis’ care.,

To advise and provide all the facts with regard to whether if foster parents didn’t want to move
up a classification, they could just not take any new training, which the officer knows or must
properly inform herself of.

Answer: This question is too broad. We would refer to our document production C-2,
specifically “Services to Foster Families — Case Management” (CWH-06-04-04). A
foster parent can request a change in classification. Upon receipt of same, if the
supervisor approves the request, a schedule of upcoming training sessions is
provided, and the foster parent must complete the required training. To maintain
a home’s classification, a foster parent must complete a set number of hours each
year depending on their classification.
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67. To advise and provide all the facts with regard to if the officer becomes aware of anything else
with regard to any steps that Child Welfare took to ensure that foster parents were not abusing
children in care, which the officer knows or must properly inform herself of.

Answer: First, this question is too broad. Second, this question is not relevant to e
1 1x <aEmmr's claim, because the Millars were not permitted to continue as foster

parents after == s injury.

68. To provide any additional materials (other than policy manual) with regard to the duties of the
foster home support worker as they existed in the year 2000,

Answer: Available records have already been produced.

69. To provide any changes to the policy manual due to a determination that the proper policy
manual was inadequate (Under Advisement)

Answer: First, there has been no determination that the proper policy manual was
inadequate. Policies are updated from time to time. Updates relevant to this
claim have been provided,

70. To advise and provide all the facts with rezard to how often a foster family support worker has

to meet with the foster parents in general and the Millars in particular, which the officer knows
or must properly inform herself of.

Answer: This question is too broad. We would refer to our production, C-2 “Services to
Foster Families — Case Management” (CWH-06-04-04). As of 1995, the foster care
worker is to contact the foster parent at least once a month for the first three
months. Following this period, the foster care working will visit each foster home
at least once every four months. During one of these visits they are to complete
the annual evaluation.

The Millars’ file has been produced at our producible document A-9 and A-10,

71. To advise and provide all the facts with regard to if there’s a disagreement between the foster
parent and the child welfare worker as tc which respite home will be used, the child welfare
worker has the final say, which the officer knows or must properly inform herself of.
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Answer: This question is too broad. Pursuant to our production, C-2 “Services to Foster
Families ~ Overview)” (CWH06-04-01), in 1998, if there is a disagreement
between a foster parent and social worker that they cannot resolve, they are to
use the Protocols and Guidelines for Resolution of Issues in Foster Care agreed to
between the Department and the Alberta Foster Parent Association. It may also
be used by-a foster parent if they are concerned about a practice issue or about
a child’s service plan.

72. To advise and provide all the facts with regard to whether the foster homes need to get prior
approval from Child Welfare with regard to things like babysitters, which the officer knows or
must properly inform herself of,

Answer: This question is too broad. We would refer to our production C-2 “Services to
Foster Families — Supporting a Family” (CWH-06-04-03). The document sets out
criteria to be met for supplying babysitting to a foster parent including, except for
foster parent training, including, but not limited to the arra ngements and costs
being pre-approved by the child welfare worker according to the procedures set
by the regional director.

73. To advise and provide all the facts with regard to whether if the custody agreement by the
parents subdelegated medical attention down to the child weifare worker, that could also
potentially have been delegated down to the foster parents as care providers, and in this case
was it delegated, which the officer knows or must properly inform herself of,

"?"\.\'\-;_
Answer:  This question is too broad. Pursuant to the Custody Agreement with Ms.‘“
“mmmmm, it was agreed to that the director may “consent to ordinary medical or dental
care”,

Please refer to our production A -1 at page number stamped, 010364, which provides
delegation from Ms. Gail Perkins to the Millars as foster parents les—r Lt
including: | LA

® Consent to ordinary medical or dental care (including inoculations, examinations,
treatment for minor illnesses, injuries and other procedures that are performed
routinely and do not require hospitalization, surgery or general anesthetic); and

® Consent to emergency treatment or surgical procedures (including immediate
measures necessary to preserve the child’s life, health or physical well-being. This

authority could only be used if contacting the director would delay treatment
such that it would endanger the child’s life)

74. To advise what duties were subdelegated 10 the foster parents (Under Advisement)
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78.
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Answer:  In addition to the answer for Undertaking #73, the foster parents were delegated the
following powers and duties as outlined in our document A -1 at page number
stamped 010364:

*  Making decisions about daily routines

* Making decisions about recreational activities

" Enrolling the child in school or vocational training

* Making decisions about religious or cultural activities

To advise and provide all the facts with regard to whether there is a distinction between a
frontline child welfare worker making a PGO application on behalf of the Director of Child
Welfare as opposed to making an application on behalf of Her Majesty the Queen in Right of
Alberta, which the officer knows or must properly inform herself of.

Answer: This is broadly worded. The application is made under legislation, and Her
Majesty the Queen in Right of Alberta makes the application. Any individual involved and
delegated under legislation by Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Alberta is the instructing party.

To advise and provide all the facts with regard to whether the PGO application itself is directed
by the worker, not the lawyer, which the officer knows or must properly inform herself of.

Answer: This is broadly worded. Lawyers are counsel who take instructions from the
delegated case worker, which is the instructing party.

To advise and provide all the facts with regard to whether all child welfare workers are
governed by the Public Service Act, which the officer knows or must properly inform herself of,

Answer: This is a legal question. Section 2 of this legislation sets out its application.

To advi ¢ and provide all the facts as to whether the child welfare workers that were involved
with : subscribed to an oath under Section 20(1) of the Public Service Act, which the
officer knows or must properly inform herself of.

Answer: Pursuant to Section 20 of the Public Service Act, all new employees take and
subscribe to the oath set out in the legislation.

To advise and provide all the facts with regard to the duty of fidelity that child welfare workers
have to Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Alberta that are relevant to this action, including the
directives or information expressed with regard to child welfare workers in relation to or in
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connection to or as a result of the discip]inarv proceedings against Jason Gibson, part of action
number 003-0474-AC and 003-0513-AC, which the officer knows or must properly inform herself
of (Under Advisement)

Answer: This is refused. This duty of fidelity is a legal question. Further, the undertaking
is so broadly worded that it is not capable of an answer.

To advise and provide all of the facts with regard to the extent of the duty of fidelity of a child
welfare worker to its employer as to whether it extends to allowing a child welfare worker to
recommend and to assist a children under a permanent guardianship order to commence legal
proceedings against Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Alberta, which the officer knows or must
properly inform herself of (Refused)

Answer: Refused.

To provide all of the facts with regard to any training or any manuals or any verbal or written
communications to child welfare workers with regard to whether their duty of fidelity may
extend to allowing them to recommend to children under permanent guardianship orders to
assist them to sue Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Alberta, which the officer knows or must
properly inform herself of. (Refused)

Answer: Refused.

To advise and provide all of the facts with regard to any documents that exist, memos,
communications, notes, letters, correspondence, reports, dealing with the issue of conflict of
interest of an employee of the government recommending to children or third parties to
commence legal proceedings against Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Alberta and, in
particular, that those inquiries be directed to the Children’s Advocate’s Office and, in particular,
to Bob Rechner, whose Children’s Advocate Reports commented on what he believed to be a

conflict of interest, which the officer knows or must properly inform herself of (Under
Advisement)

Answer: Refused. This is broadly worded and not capable of an answer. To the extent
that you are requesting records related to suing for children tin care or conflicts
of interest in doing so, the available records have been produced, including the
Bob Rechner report from 2000/2001.
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November 12, 2020
Via email: allan@garberlaw.ca

Allan Garber
108, 17707 — 105" Avenue NW
Edmonton, AB T35 171

Attention: Allan Garber

-
| WL

Re: o v. Her Muajesty the Queen et ol
Action No. 0203 08700

I aim writing to address the questions you raised i1 your various emails.

Examinsiicns for Discovery

The fellowing parties were examined in this matter:
/!"r‘__ ¥
1. Fiorence Chung, Gl s social worker, was examined suly 15, 2004,

2. Jackie Stewart was examined on the Governnient Defendant’s Affidavit of Records on July 186,
2004,

3. Bill Meade was examined November 24, 2004;

4. Kelly Besler, the government’s officer was examined April 28, 2005;

5. Bryan Kelly, a government employee, was examined February 6, 2006;

6. Rebecca Fitzgerald, also a government employee, was examined February 6, 2006;

7. Judy Kolasa was examined June 1, 2011 on her Affidavit in support of an application to quash
the examination of Sherry Wick; and

8. Ed Garel was examined pursuant to Court Order with Sherry Wick present en August 28, 2012,

On August 19, 2020 you indicated that you needed to do examinations on liability. However, on review of
this matter, those examinations were already completed vis a vis HMQ long ago. We will not consent toany
further examinations with respect to Her Majesty the Queen.
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In terms of the remaining individuslly named government employees, we note that Ken Holmstrom
provided muitipie dates for examinalions of any other Defendants in this matter more than 15 yearsago. |
attached the following correspondence toliowing a demand by Mr. Lee to examine them:

{a) July 13, 2004 letters from Mr. Lee demanding to examine Wendy Mitchell Kuban, Gail
Perkins, Brenda Scolt, Rebecca Fitzgerald, Iris Evans, Bob Rechner, John Mould and Bill Mead:;

(b) Juiie 14, 2005 Letter from Ken Holmstrom to Mr. Lee providing multiple examination dates;
(c) June 24,2005 Letter from Ken Holmstrom to Mr. Lee providing multiple examination dates;

(d) November 1, 2005 Letters from Mr. Lae to Mr. Holmstrom and Mr. Holmstrom to Mr. Lee
discussing further witnesses Mr. Lea wanted to examing, and further dates provided to Mir. Lee;

(&) November 25, 2005 Lettar from Ken Holmstrom to Mr. Lee providing multiple examination
dates,

{f) December 19, 2005 Letter from Ken Holmstrom to Mr. Lee providing multiple examination
dates;

(g) February 27, 2006 Letter from Ken Holmstrom to Mr. Lee asking him to advise who else he
wants to examine;

{h) September 18, 2006 Letter from Ken Holmstrom to Mr, Lee asking him to advise who else
he wants to examine.

Correspondence from and to Mr. Lee concerning Discoveries [TAB 1]

in terms of Bill Meade, on October 4, 2004 Ken Holmstrom advised that Bill Mead “did not become CEO of
Ma’Mowe until May of 2001. In the time frame of October 19" to 22, 2020 Steve Brown was the CEQ.”

October 4, 2004 Letter from Ken Holmstrom [TAB 2]

Bill Meade was ultimately examined on November 24, 2004, and his evidence under oath is that he did not
move to the Ma’Mowe Authority until January, 2002. He had no knowledge of @ s file, and had no
involvement whatsoever in 2N s file. T

T/ Transcripts [TAB 3]

Jackie Stewart had already been examined.
On April 11, 2011 Mr. Lee served an Appointment and Conduct Money to examine Sherry Wick. This was
contested on the basis that the Defendant government entity had already been examined, and this was

resolved at case management with an order that resulted in £d Garek being examined August 28, 2012,

Correspondence from and to Mr. Lee concerning Discoveries [TAB 1]
May 27, 2011 Affidavit opposing further exa minations of Government Defendant {TAB 4]
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The government officers were examined at length. Ample opportunity was given o examine both the
individuaily named government employees as well as the government officers on the involvement, or lack
thereof, of Iris Evans, Paula Tyler, Keray Henke, Gall Perkins, Carol Adagala, and Wendy Mitchell-Kuban.
In our view, once we were asked to consent to & Form 37, and setting the matter down for Trial but for
some additional expert reports, the Plaintitf had aiready had ampie opportunity to conduct any further
examinations they desired. Once the Form 37 was executed, the paities certified that they were ready for
Trial but for the expert ieports.

As a resuit, we wili not consent to any turtiser examinations absent a Court Order.

Liability

(2) There was never any admission of liability

As discussed in our email exchanges the week of August Z1%, 2020 Judge Holmstrom denies that he ever
admittad liability for this matter,

Liabifity has never hGeen admitted, In fact, on January 11, 2005 Mr. Lee advised that since liabiiity was not
admittad, he wouid not be delaying exeminations,
January 11, 2005 letter [TAB 5]

I note that on January 10, 2008 Mr. Lee made the following representations before Justice Thomas;

- the defendant has not admitted liability in any way ... [eriphasis added]

P. 14 line 26-27 [TAB 6]

An April 20, 2011 letter from Mr. Lee notes that lia bility was not admittad,
April 20, 2011 letter [TAB 7]

Contrary to Mr. Lee's advice, liability examinations had already taken place.

Following this date Mr. Lee continued to identify more pqg)qle he wanted to examine. For instance in 2012
Mr. Lee wanted to examine Sl foster mom, (gEeEls. Ken Holmstrom felt this was not
appropriate and encouraged Mr. Lee to address thisin case management,

Inany event, on December 18, 2019, in advance of this matter appearing before Justice Feth to set the Trial
in this matter, | sent you an email that specifically said:

Hi Allan,

For ease of reference | attach our Amended Amended Statement of Defence, Tne Government
defendants do not admit liability. They specifically deny negligence and they specifically deny
vicarious liability, We admit that the Co-Defendant, David James Millar, assaulted ausss, \We
don't represerit David Miliar or his wife. T
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December 18, 2019 email [TAB 8]

| reiterated this again multiple times this past August, 2020 when you again brought up liability. From our
perspective, ihere are no surprises here,

{b) Amendments to the Statement of Defenze
The error in the Amended Statement of Defence was corrected on notice to both Mr. Lee and the case
management Judge. In fact, the Case Management Judee, Justice Macklin signed the Fiat. In this regard,

please find enclosed the foliowing:

(a) July 30, 2003 Letter from Ken Holmstrom to Mr. Lee explaining the error and immediate
efforts to correct it;

(bj Septernber 5, 2603 hand written note from Mr, Lee confirming that he consented to the
Fiat;
{c) September 24, 2003 Letter from Ken Holinstrom to the Case Management ludge concerning

the Amended Amended Statement of Defence; and
(d) October 7, 2003 letter to Mr. Lee serving the Amended Amended Statement of Defence.
2GU3 Correspondence concerning the Amended Amended 50C [TAB 9]
No one changad their positions based on this. The srror was fixed without delay and on notice to all
parties involved. Jackie Steward was examined on the Affidavit of Records after this correction, and not

before as you aiieged previousiy.

Document Production

{a) Updated Exchange of Records

You have asked me what documents were provided since the Affidavit of Records was sworn. Document
production was, as follows:

(a) March 13, 2006 Ken Holmstrom provided the updated children’s services records on disc;

(b) November 12, 2008 Ken Holmstrom provided the updated records;

(c) January 8, 2009 Ken Holmstrom provided the updated medical records;

(d) October 26, 2069 Ken Holmstrom provided Dr, Joshko’s October 8, 2009 Expert report;

(e) On February 28, 2011 Ken Holmstrom provided the updated children’s services records on disc;

{f} CnlJanuary9, 2012 Mr. Lee provided a Conway Scanlan and Associates Report dated December 14,
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2011;

(8) On August 10, 2012 Ken Holmstrom provided updated children’s services records;
T i)
(h) March 7, 2017 | provided you with Jlmew's statement of Benefits;

{i} April3, 20171 provided you with the updated Child In tervention file (Volumes 3-11);

(i) Decemibar 4, 2017 | advised you that the normal pretoco! for records listed on tne Statement of
benefits is for you to request them directly, as they are net government records; and
T8
(k} December 21, 2017 vou provided me with ‘s school records.

] Correspondence enclosing updated records [TAB 10]

G
Gnce S turned 18 his Children’s Services file was closed.

&

e
In February, 2018 you asked me how to gt s updated records, and we connecied you with a lawyer
with Aloerta Health Services who facilitated getting the records for you, Those reccrds were sent directly to
your office.

A
I A

Cn ay 22, 2018 you advised that you had the Glenrose records for @ 2 nd subsequently provided us a
copy.

On September 5, 2018 Samantha Baifour and Sarah Trough became Wi 's suardians. You provided us
with the guardianship order. T

Criminal Injuries Review Decision

We note that& was awarded $36,500 under the Victims of Crime Act, but that that decision was
appealed by Weir Bowen. On May 15, 2007 that appeal was heard, and a decision issued June 19 2007.

The Criminal Injuries Review Board awardea__ $83,500. The additional $47,000 was to he forwarded
to the Public Trustee’s Office. 7LD

{b) Documents with respect to the alleged duty to Sue

You asked me about document production related to any policies ect, related to the government bringing
actions on behalf of children in care,

I understand that you, Mr, Lee, or both, obtained these records in collateral litigation against the
government that was uitimately certified as a class action.

T
Our understanding is that this portion of ’s claim was subsumed in the Class Action brought by Mr,
Leein TLv. Alberta (Director of Child Welfare). Pleasefind enclosed an excerpt from the hearing on May 24,
2005 in this matter, You will note that at page 42 Justice Thomas asked Mr. Lee i M Tormed part of the

[
| L
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I L/
The Court: .. Mir, Lee, there is a class action that you have started. !s _ part of that
class action?

Mr. Lee: My instructions ... are these, if the class action is certified at some point in the
future, that we would be agreeable to moving portions of this ciaim thatare similar
to the class action into the class action ...

Excerpt from transcripts [TAB 12]
—f tz)
Recall that Action 0503 02047 was issued for<¥igi@im® -nd the allegations for “failure to sue”. For ease of

reference that Staternent, of Claim is attached.
Statement of Ciaim from 2005 Action [TAB 13}

On Juiy 14, 2010 justice Thomas issued a letter to Mr. Lee rioting that the z005 action was stayed pending

the certification of the class action, and that this action would remain dormant until the certification of the
, .

1355 sction.

July 14, 2010 letter from Justice Thomas [TAB 14]
The class action was certified in 2008, and settled in 2015,
{c) Conclusion with respect to Document Production

Our understanding is that the allegations with respect to the duty to sue were dealt with in the Class Action,
which resoived.

We have provided updated records throughout the life of this file.

P Y
1

A
Once sggii® turned 18, his Children’s Servicas file was closed.

Itappearsthat you already have all records with respect to that, Any records from medical doctors have to
be obtained directly from those medical practitioners, and you have obtained records directly as needed.

Pages 27-29 of our Production

You advised that these were partly cut off or missing. | enclose those pages.
Pages 27-29 of production [TAB 15]

Answers to Undertakings requested at the Examination of Jackie Stewart

You advised that you do not have the answers to undertakings from Jackie Stewart. | went back and
reviewed that transcript. Several questions would have subsequently been covered by the subsequent class
action that Tristan v:as a member of, That matter resolved, and to the extent that those same allegations
are pled in this action, those matters are duplicative, The other issue | noie is that several questions are
quite broad, and i am unabie to determine who you specifically want me to follow up with, and with respect
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to what record,

fn any event, our answers are enclosed, |am following up on iterm 6, although my understanding is that this
question was resolved at the examination of £d Garek,

Upcoming Case Management

As advised previously, we will need to have the deadlines for expert reports revised due to the setious
COVID defays, | have been waiting on Dr. shelby's updated report in oeder ta determine if we need to retain
our own expert. Any word on when her report will be ready?

thave your application materials, which ! have read. ve addressed the concerns raised in this letter along
with your other questions. | have not vet had an opportunity te review Mr., Lee's brief, but will do so next
weel.

[ believe | have answered and responded to all your auestions while | was in hospital as well as your
subsequent emails. {f there is anything outstanding, please let me know.

Yours truly,

CHOMICKI BARIL MAHLLE _
Fer: ."‘ i e e —_—

F

AMANDA F. KOSTEK

£t Tony Slemko Via email: tslemko@cbmllp.com
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Answars to Undertakings Requested of Jackle Stewart

L. To ask Doug Lews for any document rajevant to be provided in an Affidavit of Records as they
relate to Paragraph 24 of the Statement of Claim. {Under Advisement)

Answer: Refused. This was deait with and resolvad as part of the Class Actionin T.L.v.

Alberta {Director of Child Welfare}. Our understanding is that Tristan was a class
member.

4

2. ToInquire of Child Welfare for any documants related W ERm's request for legal fees to be
pald. (Under Advisement.)

Answer: Refused. We do not see how this is relevant to the remaining issues in this
action. The Class Action was resolved in 2015,

3. Provide all documents In relation to Child Welfares actions that It took in requesting a next
friend,

Answer: Refused on the Record on the basis that they are already public record, or
covered by Litigation Priviiege,

4. Produce internui records that relate to Child Welfare’s role as guardian. .Under Advisement.)

Answer: Refused. This undertaking is too broad, If you have a specific record you are
looking for, please advise.

5. Number Documents (Under advisement)

Answer: The records are already numbered.

6. Advise if file provided Includes working notes of member of spechal case review.

Answer: Pending.



7. Ask people CC'd if they have documents in their own file refevant to the lawsuit {Under
Advisement.)

Answer: This Is simply too bread. You need to specific exactly what records you want us
to ask about and what specific individuals you want us to foilow up with,

8. To produce document indicating who CEQ was of Ma'Mowe Region frorn date of”s birth
untH date Statement of Claim was issued. {Under Advisement) J &}

Answer: Gn Qctober 4, 2004 Ken Holmstrom advised that Steve Brown was the CEO.

We view this undersaking to be compiete.



i et
Gorair DRl Mo R LN

Iremrtey

pes RE




Allan Garber

e
From: Allan Garber
Sent: Aprii 10, 2021 11:24 AM
To: Amanda Kostek; Damian Shepherd
Ce: Robert Lee; il | '

Subject: P v. HMTQ

On January 18, 2021, justice Feth ordered your client to pay the Plaintiff $4000.00 in costs in respect of your abandoned

application. We are now almost three months later and it still has not been paid. What gives? This is completely
unacceptable. There is no other way to describe this.

Allan Garber

Barrister & Solicitor

11420 — 142 Street NW
Edmonton, AB T5M 1V1
Telephone (587) 400-9310
Fax (587) 400-9313

Email allai(@ garbeiiaw.ca

Note: This email address is not a valid address for service pursuant to Rule 11.21 of the Alberta Rules of Court. If you
need to serve legal docunients on Allan A. Garber, as lawyer of record, please do so by courier, recorded mail or fax.
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4/28/2021 Re: Weaver

From: leerobertp@netscape.net,
To: akostek@cbmllp.com, allan@garberlaw.ca,
Cc: dshepherd@cbmlip.com,
Subject: Re. iy -
Date: Tue, Apr 13, 2021 12:15 pm

Ms. Kostek,

The Honourable Mr. justice Feth had asked HMTQ to inquire if there was
anyone in the Government that was supervising the lawsuits by foster
children (or something to that effect). has your client provided a response
yet?

Yours truly,

Robert P. Lee

Barrister and Solicitor

Victims Rights Law

18, 11420 - 142 Street

Edmonton, AB T5M 1V1

Ph/fax: 780 800 5584

Email: Robert@victimsrightslaw.ca
www.victimsrightslaw.ca

**WE HAVE MOVED EFFECTIVE SEPTEMBER 29, 2020**

hitps://mail.aol.com/webmail-std/en-ca/PrintM essage
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P\f\i-\if-'t;/ o Chilave's Seryjees
MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2001

Note & Contingencies (in thousands)
At March 31, 2001, the Ministry is a defendant in 63 legal claims (2000 - 45 legal claims). Sixty of these claims have

specified amounts totaling $143,670 and the remaining three have no specified amounts (2000 - 40 claims with
specified amounts of $70,057 and five with no specified amounts),

Included in the total legal claims are 43 claims amounting to $124,706 in which the Minisiry has been jointly named
with other entities. Thirty-six claims amounting fo $97,480 may be partly covered by the Alberta Risk Managerment Fund.

The resulting loss, if any, from these claims cannot be determined.

Mote 7 Paymenis under Agreements (in thousands)

The Ministry has entered into various agreements to deliver programs and services that are fully funded by
other entities, These agreements resfrict the use of funds to the purpose set out in the agreement. Revenue is
recognized as expenses are incurred. Excess funds received amounting to $60 (2000 - $3) are included in accounts
payable. Certain agreements require expenses to be incurred prior to receipt of the funds. Reimbursement for

expenses incurred for which funds have not been received, in the amount of $1,300 (2000 - $0) are included in
accounts recejvable.

The full amount of expenses allowed for under agreements with the program sponsors are as follows:

(In thousands)

2001 2000
Alberta Learning - Calgary Rocky View CFSA $ 928 $ .
Alberta Human Resources and Employment - Calgary Rocky View CFSA 230 -
Metis General Council, Justice Canada and Alberta lustice -

Mefis Settlements CFSA ' 211 151
Alberta Learning, and Alberta Health & Wellness - Ma'Mowe CFSA 794 -
Justice Canada - Neegan Awas'sak CFSA 35 s
Ft. McMurray Public School Board - Awasak CFSA 264 180
Elk Island School Division - Sakaigun Askiy CFSA 39 -

$ 2,501 § 331







Minl _.?f‘gllaé-bhifdf;eh.’s Services A

Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended March 31, 2002

NOTE 5 COMMITMENTS

At March 31, 2002, the Ministry has the following commitmsnis:

{in thousands)

2002 2001
Service contracis $ 4,448 $ 4,556
Long-term lsases® % 2,205 $ 2,283

{a) The Ministry leases certain equipment and vehicles under opsrating leases that expire at various dates to 2007. The aggregate
amounts payable for the unexpired terms of these leases are as follows:

{in thousands)

2003 $ 940
2004 $ 629
2005 8 366
2006 $ 181
2007 5 118

NOTE 6 CONTINGENCIES {In thousands)

At March 31, 2002, the Ministry is a defendant in 76 claims (2001 - 83 legal claims). Sixty-six of these claims have specified
amounts totaling $219,5667 and the remaining ten have not specified any amount (2001 - 60 claims with a specified amount
of $143,670 and three with no specified amount).

Included in the total legal claims are 46 claims amounting to $128,350 in which the Ministry has been jointly named with other
entities. Forty-six claims amounting to $137,709 are covered by the Alberta Risk Management Fund.

The resulting loss, if any, from these claims cannot be determined.

NOTE 7 PAYMENTS UNDER AGREEMENTS (in thousands)

The Ministry has sntered into various agresments to deliver programs and services that are fully funded by other entities.
These agreements restrict the use of funds to the purpose set out in the agreement. Revenue is recagnized as expenses are
incurred. Excess funds received amounting to $3 (2001- $50) are included in accounts payable. Certain agreements require
expenses to be incurred prior to receipt of the funds. Reimbursement for expenses incurred for which funds have not been
received, in the amount of $1,006 (2001 - $1,300) are included in accounts receivable.
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MINISTRY OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
MARCH 31, 2017

NOTE 7

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(in thousands)

The Ministry is involved in legal matters where damages are being sought. These matters
may give rise to contingent liabilities.

As at March 31, 2017, the total amount claimed for all likely claims is $122,100 (2016:
$131,150). Included in the total likely claims are claims in which the Ministry has been jointly
named with other ministries. Included in the total likely claims are claims covered in whole or
in part by the Alberta Risk Management Fund.

The Ministry has been named in 48 (2016: 44) claims of which the outcome is not
determinable. Of these claims, 44 (2016: 43) have specified amounts totalling $477,765
(2016: $506,424). The remaining 4 (2016: 1) claims have no amounts specified. Included in
the total claims, 37 claims totalling $464,700 (2016: 39 claims totalling $ 496,480) are
covered in whole or in part by the Alberta Risk Management Fund. The resolution of
indeterminable claims may result in a liability, if any, that may be significantly lower than the
claimed amount.

2016-17 CHILDREN'S SERVICES ANNUAL REPORT 54




